



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	1
Client Application Installation	
Failover Agent Installation	
DVR Driver Installation	
Smart Phone Client Installation	
Quick Start	
Execute Mainconsole	
Activate IP Camera License(s)	
Install IP camera(s)	
Add IP camera(s)	
Add I/O box	
Set Schedule	
Set Smart Guard	
Start Recording & Smart Guard	
Playback	
1. MAINCONSOLE	
1.1 User Interface Overview	
1.2 PTZ Camera Control	
1.2.1 Set Preset Point / Go to Preset Point	
1.2.2 Zoom	
1.2.3 Focus	
1.2.4 Patrol	
1.3 On Screen Menu	
1.3.1 Camera Setting	
1.3.2 Enable Talk	
1.3.3 Enable Digital PTZ	
1.3.4 Fisheye Lens Setting	
1.3.5 Connect/ Disconnect	
1.3.6 Stream Profile	
1.3.7 Show Camera	
1.3.8 Delete Camera	
1.3.9 Fix Aspect Ratio	
1.3.10 Instant Playback	
1.3.11 Snapshot	
1.3.12 Manual Record	
1.3.13 Toggle Full screen	
1.3.14 Enable Move/Area Zoom	
1.3.15 ImmerVision Lens Setting	
1.3.16 Duplicate Camera	
1.3.17 Enable Digital PTZ	
1.3.18 TV-Out Pop-up	
1.4 Live Display	
1.5 Instant Playback	
1.5.1 Instant Playback window overview	
1.5.2 The navigation of Instant Playback	
2. PLAYBACK	20
2.1 Lar back	
2.1 User Interface overview: 2.2 Browse Recordings / Date Time Search Dialog	
2.2.1 Date Time Panel (update)	
2.2.2 Record Display Window 2.2.3 Date Time Period	
2.2.3 Date time Period 2.2.4 Video Preview	
2.2.5 Event Type 2.2.6 Time Table	

2.2.7 Withdraw the Record	
2.3 Search Mode	
2.3.1 Unusual Event-General Motion	
2.3.2 Unusual Event-Foreign Object	
2.3.3 Unusual Event-Missing Object	
2.3.4 Unusual Event- Focus Lost / Camera Occlusion	
2.4 Enhancement / Post Processing Tool	
2.4.1 General Setting	
2.4.2 Filter Setting	
2.5 Save Video	
2.6 Save Image	
2.7 Print	
2.7 Finiti	
2.9 Log Viewer	
2.9.1 System Log	
2.9.2 Export and Backup Log	
2.9.3 Unusual Event	
2.9.4 Counting Application	
2.9.5 Counting Application (Diagram)	
2.9.6 Metadata Log	
2.9.7 Export and Backup Log	
2.9.8 Export	
2.10 Setting	
2.11 Remote Server	
2.11.1 Add Remote Playback Site	
2.11.2 Access Remote Playback Site	
2.12 Switch Recordings	44
3. SCHEDULE	45
3.1 Day / week Mode	
3.1.1 Load Preset Modes	
3.1.2 Insert a New Schedule Manually	
3.1.3 Copy Schedule	
3.1.4 Holiday and Custom setting	
3.2 Adjust the Scheduled Setting:	
3.3 Encoding Option	
3.3.1 Pre-record/ Post-record Time	
3.3.2 Record Mode	
3.3.3 Option	
4. GUARD	51
4.1 Event	
4.1.1 Camera Event - Assign a Camera Event	
4.1.2 Camera Event – Basic Setting	
4.1.2 Camera Event - Signal Lost	
4.1.4 Camera Event - General Motion	
4.1.5 Camera Event - General Motion (Device)	
4.1.5 Camera Event - Foreign Object	
4.1.8 Camera Event - Nissing Object	
4.1.7 Camera Event – Focus Lost	
4.1.9 Camera Event - Camera Occlusion	
4.1.10 Metadata Event - Assign a Metadata Event	
4.1.11 Digital Input/Output Event - Digital Input/Output Event	
4.1.12 System Event - Assign a System Event	
4.1.13 System Event - Disk Space Exhausted	
4.1.14 System Event - System Health Unusual	
4.1.15 System Event – Resource Depleted	
4.1.16 System Event – Network Congestion	
4.1.17 System Event – TV-Out	61

4.2 Action	61
4.2.1 Action - Assign an action type	61
4.2.2 Action Type - On Screen display	61
4.2.3 Action Type - Play Sound	
4.2.4 Action Type - Send E-mail	
4.2.5 Action Type - Phone Call	
4.2.6 Action Type - PTZ Preset Go	
4.2.7 Action Type – DI/DO	
4.2.8 Action Type –Send an SMS message	
4.2.9 Action Type – Send to Central Server	
4.2.10 Action Type – Send snapshot to FTP	
4.2.11 Action Type – Popup E-Map on Event	
4.2.12 Action Type – Push Notification	
4.2.13 Action Type – TV-Out	
4.3 Advanced Settings	66
5. GENERAL SETTING	67
5.1 System Setting – General	
5.1.1 Startup	
5.1.2 Storage	
5.1.3 Status Display	
5.1.4 Miscellaneous	
5.1.5 Audio Preview	
5.1.6 Auto Reboot	
5.2 Setting – Camera	72
5.2.1 Add Camera	
5.2.2 IP Camera / Video Server Setting panel	73
5.2.3 Camera Settings	74
5.3 Setting - I/O Device	
5.4 Setting - PTZ General Setting	
5.5 Setting – Hotline	
5.6 Setting - Address Book	
5.7 Setting – Monitor Display	
5.8 Setting – Joystick	
5.9 User Account Setting	
5.10 Auto Backup Setting	
5.11 Counting Report Setting	
5.12 License Manager	
5.13 Save/ Load General Setting	
5.14 TV-out Setting	
5.15 Video Analytics - C Intelligent Video Surveillance	
5.16 Video Analytics - Counting Application	90
5.17 Video Analytics – Privacy Mask	91
5.18 Metadata Application	91
5.19 Network Service	
5.19.1 Live Streaming Server	
5.19.2 Remote Playback Server	
5.19.3 3GPP Service	
5.19.4 Remote Desktop	
5.19.5 Central Management Service	
5.19.6 Push Notification	
5.20 Help 5.21 About Mainconsole	
5.22 Video Source	99
6. E-MAP	.100
6.1 Edit Mode	
6.1.1 Add/Edit/Delete Map	
6.1.2 Add/Rotate/Delete Device Indicator	

	Intelligent NVR Software
6.2 Operate Mode	
6.2.1 Device and Map Tree list	
6.2.2 E-Map picture	
6.2.3 Information and Preview windows	
6.3 Layout Adjustment	
7. LOG VIEWER	104
7.1 System Log	
7.2 Export and Backup Log	
7.3 Unusual Event	
7.4 Counting Application	
7.5 Counting Application (Diagram)	
7.6 Metadata Log	
7.7 Export	
8. BACKUP	100
8.1 Backup Recorded files 8.2 Delete Recorded files	
o.z Delete kecolded liles	
9. REMOTE LIVE VIEWER	113
9.1 Setting	
9.1.1 General Setting	
9.1.2 Server setting	
9.1.3 Group Setting	
9.1.4 Camera Setting	
9.1.5 OSD Setting	
9.1.6 Metadata Setting	117
9.1.7 Monitor Display Setting	
9.1.8 Notification Setting	
9.1.9 Joystick Setting	
9.2 Server/Group/Camera	
9.2.1 login/logout server	
9.2.2 Connect/Disconnect camera	
9.2.3 Multiple Views:	
9.3 PTZ Control	
9.3.1 Preset/ Go	
9.3.2 Zoom	
9.3.3 Focus	
9.3.4 Patrol	
9.4 On Screen Menu	
9.4.1 Enable Move / Area Zoom 9.4.2 Enable Talk	
9.4.3 Enable Audio	
9.4.4 Enable Digital PTZ	
9.4.5 ImmerVision Lens Setting	
9.4.6 Generic Dewarp Setting	
9.4.7 Fix Aspect Ratio	
9.4.8 Stream Profile	
9.4.9 Instant Playback	
9.4.10 Duplicate Camera	
9.4.11 Snapshot	
9.4.12 Toggle Full screen	
9.5 Start Monitor	
9.5.1 Multiple Monitor	
9.5.2 E-Map	
9.5.3 I/O Control	
9.6 Playback	
9.6.1 Add Remote Playback Site	
9.6.2 Access Remote Playback Site	

Intelligent	NVR	Software
-------------	-----	----------

10.	WEB VIEW	124
	10.1 Server IP	
	10.2 Remote Live Viewer	
	10.3 Remote Playback	
	10.4 Download Client Pack	124
11	UTILITIES	105
11.		
	11.1 Verification Tool	
	11.1.1Execute Verification Tool 11.1.2 Verification Tool Overview	
	11.1.3 Verify Image/Video	
	11.2 License Management Tool	
	11.2.1 Execute License Management Tool	
	11.2.2 License Management Tool Overview	
	11.2.3 Activate License	
	11.2.4 Transfer License	
	11.3 Resource Management Tool	
	11.3.1 Execute Resource Management tool	
	11.3.2 System Resource Overview	
	11.3.5 Advanced Resource Report	
	11.4 Stream Usage Panel	
	11.5 DB Tool	
	11.5.1 Repair Database	
	11.5.2 Export General Settings	137
10		120
12.	FAILOVER AGENT	
	12.1. Services	
	12.2. Activate Failover License	
	12.3. Start and Stop Failover Agent 12.4. Enable and Disable Failover Service	
	12.4. Enable and Disable Fallover Service	
	12.6. Check Failover Agent Status	
	12.7. View Version Information	
	12.8. General Settings	
	12.8.1. Startup	
	12.8.2. Password	
	12.8.3. Log File	
	12.8.4. Storage	
	12.8.5. Automatic Recycle	
	12.9. Server Settings	144
	12.9.1. Set up A Server	145
	12.9.2. Change Server Setting	145
	12.9.3. Delete a Recording Server	
	12.9.4. Server List	
	12.10 Remote Live viewer and Remote playback	
	12.10.1 Remote Live Viewer	
	12.10.2 Remote Playback	147
13	ONGUARD	149
10.	13.1. Using OnGuard	
	13.2. Open OnGuard	
	13.3. Quit OnGuard	
	13.4. Version Information	
	13.5. Check Connection Status	
	13.6. Log File	
	13.7. Failover Agent Service	
	13.8. Failover Agent and OnGuard Scenario	

#### INSTALLATION

The Installation CD contains the software you need to run the complete system. After inserting the CD, you should be able to see this window:



- Run SetupTool: Mainconsole, Playback, Remote Live Viewer, Backup, and Verification Tool.
- **Client Application:** Remote functions of NVR system including Playback, Remote Live Viewer, Backup, and Verification Tool.
- **Remote Desktop Tool:** The tool to access Mainconsole and setup General Setting remotely.

The following section describes the installation of each element of the Intelligent Surveillance System.

#### **Server Application Installation**

Step 1: Insert the Installation CD. Run autorun.exe from the CD-ROM directly to start the installation.

#### Step 2: Select Run SetupTool.

Note: The Setup Tool will detect the type of capture cards installed on PC and enable the system options automatically.

Step 3: Select Next to continue.



Step 4: Select the appropriate Language

EVS_PRO - InstallShield Wizard	
Choose Setup Language Select the language for the installation from the choices below.	
Bulgarian Chinese (Simplified) Chinese (Traditional) Czech Darish Dutch English (United States) Finnish French (Standard) German Greek Hungarian Italian Japanese Korean	E
InstallShield	Cancel

Step 5: Check the option I accept the terms of the license agreement, select Next to continue. EVS\_PRO - InstallShield Wizard

all of the license eing to the license be acceptance of legally enforceable curityTronix.
an Cable Equipment, y the terms of this
Print

×

Step 6: Enter the appropriate information, select **next** to continue.

Customer Information Please enter your information.		
Please enter your name and the n	ame of the company for which you w	iork.
User Name:		
User Name.		
с		
Company Name:		
A		

#### COMPLETE SETUP TYPE

Installs all program features into the default directory.

Check **Complete**, and then select **next**. All program features will be installed. [COMPLETE SETUP requires the most disk space.]

#### CUSTOM SETUP TYPE

Allows you to install the system to a preferred directory and select whichever program feature(s) to install. [Recommended for advanced users]

Check **Custom**, and then select **next**. Select **Change** if you wish to modify the installation directory. Select the feature(s) for setup to install, select **next**.

Step 7: Select Install to start the installation.

EVS_PRO - InstallShield Wizard
Click Install to begin the installation.
If you want to review or change any of your installation settings, click Back. Click Cancel to exit the wizard.
InstallShield
< Back Install Cancel

Step 8: Select Finish, installation complete.



#### **Client Application Installation**

**Step 1:** Insert the Installation CD, run **autorun.exe** from the CD-ROM to start the installation.

Step 2: Select Client Application Installation.

Step 3: Select Next to continue.

Step 4: Check I accept the terms of the license agreement; select Next to continue.

**Step 5:** Enter your information and select **next** to continue.

**Step 6**: Select **Complete** or **Custom** setup type and select **Next** to continue.

## COMPLETE SETUP TYPE

Installs all program features into the default directory.

Check **Complete**, and then select **next**. All program features will be installed. [COMPLETE SETUP requires the most disk space.]

#### CUSTOM SETUP TYPE

Installs the system to a preferred directory and allows you to select whichever program feature(s) to install. [Recommended for advanced users]

Check **Custom** option and then click **next**. Select **Change** to modify the installation directory where setup will install, select **Next**. Select the features setup will install, select **next** after confirmation.

Step 7: Select Install to begin the installation.

Step 8: Select Finish when install is complete.

#### **Failover Agent Installation**

- **Step 1:** Insert the Installation CD. Run Autorun Tool from the CD-ROM directly to start the installation.
- Step 2: Select "Failover Agent Installation" then Click it.
- Step 3: In the Install Shield Wizard dialog box, select language and click **Next** to continuous.
- Step 4: There are 2 Installation Mode of options in "Initiation Mode" window, select one and click Next to start the install shield of Server package.
- **Step 5**: In the InstallShield Wizard dialog box, click **Next** to continuous.
- Step 6: Check the option "I accept the terms of the license agreement". Click Next to continuous.
- Step 7: Please enter your name and the company name for which you work. Click Next to continuous.

Step 8: Select "Complete Setup Type" or "Custom Setup Type" to install the System.

#### COMPLETE SETUP TYPE

Install all program features into the default directory.

- Check the option "**Complete**", and then click "**Next**". All program features will be installed. [Require the most disk space.]

#### CUSTOM SETUP TYPE

Install the system to a preferred directory. Or select whichever program feature(s) to install. This is recommended for advanced users.

- Check the option "Custom", and then click "Next".
- Select appointed folder where setup will install files to. Click "**Change**" to modify the installation directory.
- Select the features setup will install. Click "**Next**" after confirmation.

Step 9: Click install to start the installation.

**Step 10:** Click Finish after installing the system completely.

Step 11: Execute the Failover Agent

Step 12: Enter the password you like into the edit box and enter again at the edit of Password Confirm. And then press "OK". Now enjoy our Failover Agent service.

**Note:** When use Windows 8, please disable Metro function first before start Mainconsole. For further steps, please refer to: <u>http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xERxpbwBt0U</u>

**Note:** When use Windows Server 2012, please enable desktop experience first before start Mainconsole. For further steps, please refer to:

http://social.technet.microsoft.com/wiki/contents/articles/10531.windows-server-8-beta-how-to-enable-desk top-experience-feature-en-us.aspx

The Desktop Experience feature in Windows Server 8 Beta belongs to User Interfaces and Infrastructure feature. In order to install Desktop Experience feature, do the following steps:

Open Server Manager > Manage > Add Roles and Features.



Before you begin to install a feature, you can read information in the **Before you begin** page. This page is very useful for anyone who has started learning Windows Server 8. **Select Skip this page by default** in order to remove this page for the next times you add roles or features.

In the Select installation type page, you have two options:

- 1. Role-based or feature-based installation: this option that similar to the one available in the Windows Server 2008 is used when you want to add roles, features in single server.
- 2. Remote Desktop Services scenario-based installation this option allows you to install, General Setting and manage RS session Host servers from a central location.

In the **Select destination server** page, select the server pool under **SERVER POOL**. With flexible server platform, now you can select a virtual hard disk as a destination server when deployed roles or features.

Skip the **Select server roles** page. In the **Select features** page, you can select User Interfaces and infrastructure feature. You will be prompted to install the required components or services "**Ink and Handwriting Services**" and "**Media Foundation**". Click **Add Features**.

L		L TFTP Client	
ŀ	⊿	User Interfaces and Infrastructure (Installed)	
l		Graphical Management Tools and Infrastructure (Installed)	
l		Desktop Experience	=
L		Server Graphical Shell (Installed)	
Γ		Windows Biometric Framework	-

In the **Confirm installation selections** page, select **Restart the destination server automatically if required**. You must restart computer after installing completely.

You have another way to add feature by using Powershell: Add-WindowsFeature Desktop-Experience.

#### Remote Desktop Tool

# Intelligent NVR Software

Remote Desktop Tool allow user remote to access EVS System and setup General Setting.

Step 1: Insert the Installation CD. Run autorun.exe from the CD-ROM directly to start the installation.

- Step 2: Select Remote Desktop Tool.
- Step 3: Select Next in the Install Shield Wizard dialog box.
- Step 4: Check the option I accept the terms of the license agreement. Select Next.
- Step 5: Enter your information, select Next.
- Step 6: Select Complete or Custom setup type.

#### COMPLETE SETUP TYPE

Install all program features into the default directory. Check **Complete**, and then select **next**. All program features will be installed. [Requires the most disk space.]

#### CUSTOM SETUP TYPE

Install the system to a preferred directory. Select program feature(s) to install. [Recommended for advanced users]

Check the option **Custom**, select **next**. Select **Change** to select folder setup will install files. Select the features setup will install.

- Step 7: Select Install to start the installation.
- Step 8: Select Finish after installing the system completely.

#### **Quick Start**

# Intelligent NVR Software

**Execute Mainconsole** 

Step 1: Go to Start > All Programs > EVS\_PRO > Mainconsole to execute Mainconsole

Step 2: Enter your own password into the edit box and then Click OK.

Activate IP Camera License(s)

Step 1: Open License Manager Tool in General Setting menu.

Step 2: Select Activate tab, check the PC in Online network environment.

Step 3: Insert the SN, SN file or dongle to activate license.

**Step 4**: After software license is activated successfully, please restart Mainconsole. **Note:** Please refer to Utilities>>License Management Tool for advanced settings.



#### Install IP camera(s)

Step 1: Setup the IP camera(s) by referring to the user manual provided by the IP camera manufacturer.

Step 2: Make sure you can access this camera through IE browser.

**Step 3**: Add the IP camera(s) to the system by following the steps below.

#### Add IP camera(s)

Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.

Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in to the system.

Step 3: In Mainconsole, go to General Setting and select Setting>System Setting to obtain the Setting panel.

#### Step 4: Go to Camera tab.

- Note: If the IP camera supports UPnP, follow step 5. Otherwise, follow step 8.
- Step 5: Click Search to detect IP cameras under this local area network (LAN).
- Note: The Search function is available only when the IP cameras support UPnP.
- Step 6: Select one of the IP cameras that are available and enter the username and password.
- Step 7: Click OK to add the camera.
- Step 8: Click Insert to insert the IP cameras.
- Step 9: Enter the IP address or domain name (check the **DNS** option), Port, Username, and Password.
- Step 10: Select Auto Detect.
- Step 11: Select OK to add the camera.
- Step 12: Select OK to exit.



Device Found:			Stop Sc	an 🛛
Ib	Vendor	Model	MAC	8
192.168.1.131	LevelOne	FCS-5011	00-40-25-00-00-06	
192.168.1.43	Panasonic	BL-C10	00-80-f0-56-d6-ad	
192.168.1.130	LevelOne	FCS-4000	00-40-25-00-00-13	
192.168.1.97	LevelOne	WCS-2010	00-11-6B-80-44-F1	
192.168.1.90	LevelOne	FCS-1010	00-11-6B-80-44-8D	
192.168.1.60	AXIS	207	00-40-8C-72-47-85	
192.168.1.93	LevelOne	FCS-3000	00-11-68-80-3A-05	
192.168.1.98	LevelOne	FCS-1040	00-11-6B-80-47-01	
192.168.1.92	LevelOne	WCS-2030	00-11-6B-80-32-2B	
192.168.1.94	LevelOne	FCS-1030	00-11-6B-80-36-FD	
IP Camera Option	- 1m			
Camera Name:	LevelOne FCS-	5011 (192.168.1.	131)	
User Name:				
Password				
Password:				
				Cancel

Step 12



#### Add I/O box

Mainconsole supports USB (SCB-C08), Ethernet (SCB-C31A) box converter and all-in-one SCB-A08 IO box.

#### For USB (SCB-C08) I/O box converter:

- Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.
- Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in to the system.
- Step 3: In Mainconsole, go to General Setting and select Setting>System Setting to obtain the Setting panel.
- Step 4: Go to I/O Device tab.

Step 5: Type in module in **Module** and select device for USB (SCB-C08) I/O converter device: SCB-C24, SCB-C26 or SCB-C28.

Step 6: Select COM port and ID.

*Note:* COM port and ID information need to use SCB-C08 config tool. Please close Mainconsole first when setup I/O box converter.

Step 7: Select OK to go back to Mainconsole.

#### For Ethernet (SCB-C31A) I/O box converter:

- Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.
- Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in to the system.
- Step 3: In Mainconsole, go to General Setting and select Setting>System Setting to obtain the Setting panel.
- Step 4: Go to I/O Device tab.
- Step 5: Type in module in Module and select device for Ethernet (SCB-C31A) I/O converter device: C31A+C24, C31A+C26 or C31A+C28.
- Step 6: Type in C31A IP address



*Note:* Port and ID information need to use SCB-C31A config tool. Please close Mainconsole first when setup I/O box converter.

Step 8: Select OK to go back to Mainconsole.



				Name:	
Module	1	vice Camera	^	Type:	
Lobby	T	/O Device Setting		States and some	
Park1 PTZ Sunell Arecont Module name: Device: IP Address: Port:	I I Mall I IP Came 192.168. 80	Module name: Device: IP address: Port: ID:	C24 C31A+C24 4001 Addr:01	<b>*</b>	
Digital Input Monitor		Test		OK Cance	H )
0				0	

## Eye View Smart

#### Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.

- Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in to the system.
- Step 3: In Mainconsole, go to General Setting and select Setting>System Setting to obtain the Setting panel.
- Step 4: Go to I/O Device tab.
- Step 5: Type in module in **Module** and select device SCB-A08.
- Step 6: Type in SCB-A08 IP address.
- Step 7: Select IP port and ID.

*Note:* Port and ID information need to use SCB-A08 config tool. Please close Mainconsole first when setup I/O box converter.

Step 8: Select OK to go back to Mainconsole.

#### Set Schedule

- Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.
- Step 2: Type in user name and password.
- Step 3: Click on the schedule icon
- Step 4: The default schedule is "always record' when a camera is newly inserted.
- Step 5: Choose a camera and then select **General Setting** or just double Click the schedule bar to modify the recording mode.
- Step 6: Select OK to use the recording schedule.
- Step 7: Select OK to go back to Mainconsole.





Module	Device	тур	e:
Fish eye	IP Camera		
	Module name: Device: IP address: Came Port: 2.168. ID:	A08 SCB-A08 4001 Addr.01	•
Digital Input Monitor	Test	OK	Cancel
0			0

## Set Smart Guard

- Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.
- Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in the system.
- Step 3: Click Smart Guard Configuration.
- Step 4: Select a camera and then Click Insert Event.
- Step 5: Take "General Motion" for example, select General Motion as the event type and then Click OK.
- Step 6: In Alarm Event General Setting panel, define your own detection zone, sensitivity and interval. After that, Click OK to save the General Setting.
- Step 7: Click OK to go back to Mainconsole.







Step 5



Step 6

to

#### Start Recording & Smart Guard

Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.

Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in the system.

#### Step 3: Click Start.

Step 4: Click Start Recoding Schedule and Start Smart Guard System enable the two functions.





#### **Playback**

Step 1: Execute Mainconsole.

- Step 2: Type in user name and password and log in the system.
- Step 3: Click Playback.
- Step 4: In Playback, Click Date Time Search Dialog.
- Step 5: Select a specific day from the calendar, left Click mouse and drag to select a video clip to replay; user can also select multiple channels to replay at the same time.
- Step 6: The recorded files are now ready to view.





Start Monitor All Start Recording Schedule

Start Smart Guard System

# 1. Mainconsole



This is the main operating system - to activate schedule recording, setup smart guard and General Setting system setting.

#### 1.1 User Interface Overview



#### Exit:

Shut down the Surveillance System or log out current user.

#### Minimize:

Minimize the Mainconsole window.

#### **Screen Division:**

Allocate the sub-screen display by clicking on the desired layout icon. To switch to single camera display, double Click a particular sub-screen. Double Click the screen again to regain previous screen division layout.



Divide into	Divide into	Divide into	Divide into
4 screen(s)	6 screen(s)	9 screen(s)	12 screen(s)

#### **Information Window**

Display date, time, free Disk space, IP Camera Bit rate customized text and Further information like Temperature, Fan speed, System Resource and Network Utilization.

	LiveView	Playback	3GPP	Desktop	CMS
Start	e			<b>&gt;</b>	
Stop	e	Ð		\$	

**Note:** To customize Information about window's setting, go to General Setting - Setting - General - Status Display. Select Advanced Setting for further information like Temperature, Fan speed, System Resource and Network Utilization.



#### Start Menu:

Click **Start Menu** and use the drop down menu to activate/ deactivate: (a) Recording Schedule System, (b) Smart Guard System, (c) Counting Application, (d) Adv Intelligent Video Surveillance or (f) Start/Stop Monitor All to activate/ deactivate all the functions at once.

**Start Menu** include the option to Enable Secondary Display, and run monitor tools, such as run event report to monitor smart guard event; run E-map window to monitor all devices with map indicator; run Resource Report to check system status; run Stream Usage Panel to monitor stream usage status; run IO Control panel to monitor the DI/DO status and manual triggering the DO devices; or lock the system.

#### Note:

- 1. When activating any of the monitor functions of Smart Guard, system would consider the current screen status as normal. Therefore, if you want to, for example, detect Missing Object, be sure the object needed to be protected is in its position at the moment you click Start button.
- 2. To automatically activate the Recording Schedule System, Smart Guard System and Counting Application, at the Mainconsole go to General Setting; Setting; General; Startup to setup the auto-startup functions.
- 3. As for Secondary Display, open event report, open E-map window, open Resource Report and open IO controls panel, Mainconsole will keep the behaviors as the latest status when exiting the system.

#### **Playback System:**

Click the icon to get Playback Console. You can watch recorded video, search recorded video, adjust image of the stored data, save video/ pictures, print images, check log information and event records, and set up recording function General Setting. See Playback on page 28 for detail.

#### Schedule Configuration:

Organize recording time schedule and setup recorder General Setting. See Schedule on page 45 for detail.

#### Smart Guard Configuration:

Add/edit type(s) of events that you want to detect; setup action(s) responding to events. See **Smart Guard** on page 51 for detail.

#### **General Setting:**

Select from the drop down menu to modify the general settings, user account settings, save/ load General Setting settings, open License Manager, edit counting application and metadata application, access log viewer and backup files, or setup network services. See General Setting on page 67 for detail. Note: User account and License manager could only be enabled for users with administrator privilege.



#### **1.2 PTZ Camera Control**

Control the movement of PTZ cameras. With cameras that support PTZ control, you can move, zoom, patrol, adjust the focus, and set preset points of the cameras.

#### 1.2.1 Set Preset Point / Go to Preset Point

Adjust the camera view until you are satisfied. Click the Set icon and set up the view as the preset point 01. Adjust the camera view again and set up the preset point 02. Repeat the process until finish setting up all preset points. You can enter any names you want instead of the preset point 01, preset point 02, preset point 03..., Click the Go icon and view the result of your setting.

**Note:** For the speed settings of PTZ camera, go to General Setting – Setting - PTZ General Setting to setup the advanced settings.

#### 1.2.2 Zoom

Click the + and - signs to zoom in and zoom out the view.

#### 1.2.3 Focus

You can select to have the camera focused near or far. Click **Focus Near** to focus on objects closer to the camera. Click **Focus Far** to focus on objects further away from the camera. Click **Auto Focus** if you want the system to decide the focus point for you.

#### 1.2.4 Patrol

Go to Set Preset Point - Set Patrol to obtain the Patrol Setup dialog. From the left window, select the cameras that you would like to have in the patrol group. Align the cameras in order in the right window and adjust the time. Rename the group name if required. After completing the setup, check the Active option, and then click OK.

**Note:** You can define up to four groups of auto patrol. To start or stop, Click Go to Preset Point in the Mainconsole, and select Start

Group 1 Grou	o 2 Group 3 Group 4
Group Name :	Group 1
Period:	-j
	☐ Active
->	A
<	v

Patrol or Stop Patrol.

# Intelligent NVR Software

#### 1.3 On Screen Menu

Right Click the camera screen and get the On Screen Menu, from which you can quickly adjust the setting of camera.

#### 1.3.1 Camera Setting

Click to go to the camera setting page for General Setting. See page 73 for details.

#### 1.3.2 Enable Talk

\*This feature is not available with the ST-NVREVS-PRO license.

With cameras that support two-way audio, select enable talk to utilize the function.

#### 1.3.3 Enable Digital PTZ

To enable the PTZ functions of the camera, select the Enable digital PTZ option. Use mouse wheel or Click the + and – signs to zoom in and zoom out on the camera, or drag a rectangle to enlarge the area.

The square flashing on the video grid indicate the correspondent view ratio of the camera.

#### 1.3.4 Fisheye Lens Setting

Right Click the display screen and select the mode of lens, original, PTZ mode, Quad mode and Perimeter mode. If the lens setting set as Quad, PTZ, or Perimeter mode, the Enable Digital PTZ option would become Enable digital PTZ.

#### 1.3.5 Connect/ Disconnect

Right Click the display screen and select Connect/ Disconnect to modify the connecting status of the camera.

#### 1.3.6 Stream Profile

Right Click the display screen and select Stream Profile to change the camera stream profile in order to have different video quality per profile setting.

#### 1.3.7 Show Camera

Select the camera from the Show Camera Menu to display video on selected screen. **Note:** 

- 1. The camera list of show camera menu shows as the one in the right column of monitor display panel.
- 2. The change of displayed screen is only applied to the current display divisions.

#### 1.3.8 Delete Camera

Click Delete Camera to remove a camera from the display screen of the display screen. **Note:** 

- 1. The camera list of delete camera menu shows as the one in the right column of monitor display panel.
- 2. The settings will apply to all divisions and also the right column of monitor display.

#### 1.3.9 Fix Aspect Ratio

For some special camera resolution, user can enable Fix Aspect Ratio to view original ratio video, or disable this option to stretch 3:4 to fit window.

#### 1.3.10 Instant Playback

#### \*This feature is not available under ST-NVREVS-PRO License.

To open the Instant Playback window of the camera, select the Instant Playback option and choose the period. Refer to 1.5 Instant Playback section for detail.

â	Camera Setting Enable Talk	
	Enable Digital PTZ Fisheye Lens Setting	•
¥	Connect	
Å	Disconnect	
_	Stream Profile	ŀ
	Show Camera	×
	Delete Camera	
	Fix Aspect Ratio	
	Instant Playback	►
	Snapshot	
	Manual Record	
	Toggle Fullscreen	

#### 1.3.11 Snapshot

Select the snapshot function to capture a specific video image frame immediately. You have the options to copy the image to clipboard or to save it. For further settings, select OSD option and metadata option to export the image with date/time, camera number/name and metadata text. If the digital PTZ function is enabled in display view, you can also decide Full Size or Selected Region as your snapshot region.

#### 1.3.12 Manual Record

Start recording video by selecting manual record.

#### 1.3.13 Toggle Full screen

Select to view a specific channel with full screen. Press "ESC" to go back to original window.

#### 1.3.14 Enable Move/Area Zoom

With cameras that support PT function, click the Enable Move function to adjust the current camera's view by clicking on the display screen. To cancel this function, right Click the screen and select Disable Move. With cameras that support Area Zoom function, click the Enable Move/Area Zoom function to adjust the current camera's view by dragging a rectangle on the display screen. To cancel this function, right Click the screen and select Disable Move/Area Zoom.

#### 1.3.15 ImmerVision Lens Setting

With cameras that support ImmerVision Lens. Right Click the display screen and select the mode of lens, original, PTZ mode, Quad mode and Perimeter mode. If the lens setting set as Quad, PTZ, or Perimeter mode, the Enable Digital PTZ option would become Enable ImmerVision digital PTZ.

#### 1.3.16 Duplicate Camera

Select the camera from the Duplicate Camera Menu to duplicate camera video to selected screen. **Note:** 

- 1. The duplicated camera would add to the camera list of duplicate camera menu shows as the one in the right column of monitor display panel.
- 2. The change of display list will apply to all divisions and also the right column of monitor display.

#### 1.3.17 Enable Digital PTZ

To enable the PTZ functions of the camera, select the Enable digital PTZ option. Use mouse wheel or Click the + and – signs to zoom in and zoom out on the camera, or drag a rectangle to enlarge the area. The square flashing on the video grid indicate the correspondent view ratio of the camera.

#### 1.3.18 TV-Out Pop-up

Note: This function only available with analog to digital card installed.





Select to have the pop-up cameras on the screen notify users of the current event.

#### 1.4 Live Display

Live display is flexible; you may change channels and screen divisions. Each screen division shares the same display list but has an independent display sequence.

For example, when using Show/Duplicate/Delete Camera functions to edit your camera list, the same list will be available to all different screen divisions.

**Note:** This camera list is also available at the monitor display tab from the General Setting/Setting window. Two monitors can have two independent lists.

Action	Current division	Other division
Show camera (add cam 1)	1	add to first free channel
Duplicate camera (duplicate cam 2)	1 2 2"	add to first free channel
Delete camera (delete cam 2'')	12	remove cam 2" and keep channel free

When using a mouse to drag and drop camera channels, the sequence change will only apply to the current division.

Original	Action	Current division	Other divisions
1 2 3 4	Drag cam 1 to cam 4	4 2 3 1	Note change of sequence

Right Click the camera screen for the on screen menu. Here you will be able to quickly adjust settings of your camera.

#### **1.5 Instant Playback**

#### \* Not available under ST-NVREVS-PRO licenses

Instant Playback function allows you to play the last few minutes of any live video channel. Simply right Click Live Channel and select Instant Playback to access the recorded video.

#### 1.5.1 Instant Playback window overview



Information Window: will show correct date and time of video.

Playback Period: indicates the available play period; three options are available: 30 sec, 1 min, 3 min, 5 min, 10 min, 15 min 30 min or customized of video.

Select Record: If the channel has dual recording, you can play Reocrd1 / Record2 in the dropdown menu. Export Period: indicates the period of video you desire to export. Default is set as available play period.

Adjust to original video resolution button: Press to adjust the video to original video resolution.

Tool:



нŤн

Audio button: Press to turn on / off the audio.

Metadata button: Press to enable / disable metadata transaction data overlay.

#### 1.5.2 The navigation of Instant Playback

The Instant Playback window allows you to browse recorded video, take snapshot images and export video with audio and metadata transaction data.

#### To browse recorded video:

Simply click the timeline to view the video, or use these navigation tools to control the player:



#### To take snapshots of a video clip:

Pause the video in image which you want to export and click the snapshot button . The snapshot is displayed and can be saved or copied to clipboard.

#### To export recorded video:

Select export period, click the export button 🛃 , and setup the options of exported video.

The default export video period is as playback period. To customize period, select start/end time and Click

Cue In/Out from the drop-down list of *b* button, the export period will be shown on the lower-left corner of the window.

Export Formats include:

- ASF Format with best efficiency. [Recommended]
- AVI (Microsoft Video1) Supports Windows Media Player with Vista & XP, the quality may be poorer than recorded video by transcode.
- AVI (Original Format) faster export process, better quality on the recorded video but the export file uses VLC Player to play. (For Windows Media Player, please install additional FFDShow codec).

#### Note:

- The restrictions of AVI format.
- a. The maximum size of an AVI file is limited to 1.8 GB.

- b. Variation of frame rate will cause the resulting video to play slower or faster.
- If the selected video sequence uses multiple image resolutions (CIF, 2CIF, 4CIF, etc.) or multiple video format (MPEG-4, M-JPEG, H.264), the exported video sequence will create separate export files every time the resolution changes.

# 2. Playback

	2014/07/07 STOP
$\odot$	

Watch the recorded video, view and/or search for unusual events and recorded system information.

#### 2.1 User Interface overview:



Minimize: Minimize the Playback console.

Exit: Shut down the Playback console.

Scroll bar: Indicates the status of the playing video; drag it to where you want to review.

Information Window: Display time and date, video status, cue in/ out time points and video playback speed.

Audio Volume Control: Adjust the audio volume.

Screen Division: Allocate the sub-screen display by clicking on the desired layout icon. To switch to single camera display, double Click a particular sub-screen. Double Click the screen again to go to previous screen division layout. To view in the full screen mode, right Click the screen for the Toggle Full Screen function.

#### **Control:**





#### **On Screen Menu:**

Toggle Fullscreen: Select to view cameras under full screen. Press "Esc" or right click to go back to original view.

Enable ImmerVision PTZ: Adjust PTZ in PTZ mode. (Depend on device) Enable Fisheye PTZ: Adjust PTZ in PTZ mode.

ImmerVision Lens Setting: Select the mode of lens, original, PTZ mode, Quad mode and Perimeter mode. (Depend on device)

Fisheye Lens Setting: Select the mode of original, PTZ mode, Quad mode and Perimeter mode.



#### 2.2 Browse Recordings / Date Time Search <u>Dialog</u>

Click the **Date Time Search Dialog** button to access the Date-Time Panel and withdraw the video record that you want to review.

#### 2.2.1 Date Time Panel (update)

Re DateTime Search Dialog [Local Mach	ine]			×
✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓		10:12:00 → 10:42:00 Set		10:12:08
29     13     14     15     16     17     18     19       30     20     21     22     32     24     25     26       31     27     28     29     30     31     1     2       32     3     4     5     6     7     8     9	Color Event Type General Motion Signal Lost General Motion(De			
Show Recording Schedule		2		
	3 4 5 6 7	8 9 10 11	12 13 14	15 16
PARKING LOT EAST DOCK ATOMIC CLOC LAB ENTRANC AARON'S OFFI				<u></u>
SUPPLY ROOM				
BRANDYWINE				-
				•
			🗸 ок	X Cancel

#### 2.2.2 Record Display Window

The record display window shows the information of the available video clips. It may show in calendar or list control view. For further details about how to modify the record display window view, see page 42.

 Remote Server Site: Open Remote Playback Site Management to access local machine or set up remote playback server. Select Folder option to directly access recorded data folder or use Recent List to access previously recorded folders.
Note: the Select Folder option requires password of Mainconsole.

🥙 Refresh: refresh display window 🔯 Log Viewer: Accesses Log

Viewer Tool 🔟 To access metadata Search Tool 💟 Previous Days: Show recording of previous date

Next Days: To show recorded of next recording date

#### 2.2.3 Date Time Period

Select the start and end time points that indicate the time period you would like to view.

#### 2.2.4 Video Preview

Check the enable preview option to view the selected video.



#### 2.2.5 Event Type

### Intelligent NVR Software

There are 6 event types; see Chapter 4 - Guard for details. You may set up different colors for different event types to help you select events.

Note: Some event types will not be available under ST-License.

#### 2.2.6 Time Table

- Utilize the icon to select all channels; also utilize the icon to deselect all channels. Finally, utilize the scale bar
- Video records are displayed as a thin line on the time table. Check **Show Recording Schedule** to show the defined period for scheduled recording. It is shown as a thick line in colors according to recording mode.



Selecting Show Event Log makes Time Table show the time of event detection like below:



#### 2.2.7 Withdraw the Record

Step 1: From the record display window, top left of the Date Time Panel, select the date you want to withdraw the record from. The red/purple/green/blue lines shown on the time table indicate available recorded video records.

**Note:** The record display window can be shown in (a) calendar view or (b) list control view. To modify the setting of the record display window, click the Setting button at the right of the Playback Console.

Step 2: Use color bars to differentiate event types from each other. This will help you select video clips.

- Step 3: Highlight the video clip you want to review by left-clicking and dragging the time period. You may also utilize the Start Time and End Time in Date Time Period Section. In addition, modify the scale of the time table with the + and signs on the bottom left.
- Step 4: Check the Enable Preview option to get the preview of the video you select.
- Step 5: Click the camera name to increase or decrease cameras you want to playback.
- Step 6: Click OK when setting is complete.

#### 2.3 Search Mode

Click the **Search Mode** icon **to obtain the Intelligent Search Tool panel**. \* This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

- Intelligent Search Tool Panel: Click the **Search Mode** icon to open the Intelligent Search Tool. Set up unusual events here to detect abnormality that occurred during the recorded period.
- <u>5 events:</u> General Motion, Foreign Object, Missing Object, Lose Focus, and Camera Occlusion.

#### 2.3.1 Unusual Event-General Motion

- General Motion: Detect all movements in the defined area.
- **Define Detection Zone:** Left click and drag to draw a detection zone. You may define more than one zone on the screen by repeating the process.
- **Sensitivity:** Modify the sensitivity setting with the slider. Sliding rightwards will increase the sensitivity level, meaning the slightest movement will trigger the alarm; in contrast, sliding leftwards will reduce the sensitivity for movement detection.
  - Note: General Setting an appropriate sensitivity level reduces the possibility of a false alarm. For instance, you can lower the sensitivity level to avoid the alarm being triggered by a swinging tree in the breeze.
- Interval: Move the slider control to the right to increase time interval so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the time interval.

General Motion					•
Sensitivity:		1	-7-	1	
Interval:	5	12	-}-	а. П	-
Define detection Define object siz					
		C	lea	ſ	

• Stop When Found: Check the option to have the video stop where motion was detected. Uncheck to have video continuously run to detect all events available. Results will show in a search result box. Click the listed event in the box to jump to the point in the video where motion was detected.

#### 2.3.2 Unusual Event-Foreign Object

- Foreign Object: Detect any additional object appearing in the defined area on the screen.
- **Define detection zone:** Left click and drag to draw a detection zone. The search tool will detect additional objects that appear in this zone.
- **Define object size:** Click and drag to draw and define the size of a foreign object.

- Sensitivity: Modify the sensitivity setting with the slider. Sliding rightwards will increase the sensitivity level, while sliding leftwards decreases it.
- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase time interval so that the alarm will only be triggered when the object has been removed from the area for longer. Move to the left to reduce the time interval.

Note: Setting up an appropriate Interval value will reduce the chance of false alarms. For example, you can lower the Interval to avoid the alarm being triggered by a pedestrian.

#### 2.3.3 Unusual Event-Missing Object

- Missing Object: Detection of selected objects removed from the defined area on the screen.
- **Define detection zone:** Left click and drag to draw a detection zone. The search tool will detect selected objects removed in this zone.
- Sensitivity: Modify the sensitivity setting with the slider. Sliding rightwards will increase the sensitivity level, while sliding leftwards decreases it.
- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase time interval so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the time interval.

#### 2.3.4 Unusual Event- Focus Lost / Camera Occlusion

- Focus Lost: Detection of cameras losing focus in recorded video.
- Camera Occlusion: Detection of cameras being blocked in recorded video.

#### 2.4 Enhancement / Post Processing Tool

Click Enhancement / Post Processing Tool 2.4.1 General Setting to General Setting settings.

Check the option and chose whether you want to apply the setting to all the channels or only to those currently shown on the screen.

#### 2.4.2 Filter Setting

- Visibility: adjust the gamma value of the image to enhance the image and make it cleaner.
- Sharpen: activate the function. Move the slider control to the right to sharpen the image, to the left to soften it.
- Brightness: activate the function. Move the slider control to the right to make the image brighter.
- **Contrast:** activate the function. Move the slider control to the right to increase contrast.
- Grey Scale: show the record in grey scale mode so the image displays in black and white.

#### 2.5 Save Video

Step 1: Click the display screen to choose the camera display that you want to save as a video clip.
Step 2: Set up the cue in and cue out points; the cue in and cue out time will show on the information window.


X

D°

•

÷

+

X Cancel



# Step 3: Click the Save Video button name and click SAVE.

Export Video/Audio

Export File Path:

Export Format

Use Profile:

Start Time:

End Time:

Export Audio

Export OSD

Export Metadata Transaction

Date Time Period

Windows Media Video 8 for Local Area Network (384 Kbps) 💌

1

OK

2013/11/08 - 18:04:45

2013/11/08 ÷ 18:10:41

ASF

**Step 4:** Set the Export Format (ASF recommend) and set the Use Profile.

- ASF more efficient than AVI format. [Recommended format]
- AVI (Microsoft Video 1) Supports Windows Media Player with Vista & XP, quality may be poorer than recorded video by transcode process.
- AVI (Original Format) Faster export process with high quality video, but the export files can only be viewed using VLC Player to play. (For Windows Media Player, please install additional FFDShow codec).

#### Note:

- The restrictions of AVI format:
  - a. The maximum size of an AVI file is limited to 4 GB.
  - b. Variation of frame rate will cause the resulting video to play slower or faster.
- If the selected video sequence uses multiple image resolutions (CIF, 2CIF, 4CIF, etc.) or multiple video format (MPEG-4, M-JPEG, H.264), the exported video sequence will create separate export files every time the resolution changes.
- Step 5: Select to export (i.e. save) the recorded video with Audio, OSD and metadata, or export video only.
- Step 6: Click OK to save the video.

## 2.6 Save Image

- Step 1: Click the display screen to choose the camera display from which you want to save pictures.
- Step 2: Click the Save Image button when the image you want is shown on the screen. You may click Pause to freeze the video, use Step Forward/ Step Backward function to find the picture(s) that you want to save.
- Step 3: Select OSD option and metadata option to export the image with date/time, camera number/name and metadata text. If the digital PTZ function is enabled in display view, you can also decide either Full size or Selected Region as your image region.
- Step 4: You have the options to copy the image to clipboard or to



save it. To save image just choose the folder and the format of image (BMP or JPEG) you prefer and then click save.

**Note:** You may skip step 3 by pre-setting a folder and format that you want to save the images (refer the section automatically save the image file at page 43.)

#### 2.7 Print



to print the current image of the

#### **Print Content:**

video you choose.

Print the image from the current selected channel or all the channels shown on the screen. Select to print original view or selected region on camera.

#### Page Setting:

Set to print the image with original size or fit to page. Set Align image to Top, Center, or Bottom.

#### 2.8 Backup

Compared to the Save Video function, Backup saves everything from the Playback panel, including video and log information.

You can start a full function Playback Console and load the backup files into it on any PC with Windows operating system. This means you may monitor the real time video and work on the backup files on separate computers simultaneously.

- Step 1: Press the Open Record to select data and press Backup
- Step 2: You can adjust the Start Time and End Time you want to backup.
- Step 3: You can adjust the Cameras you want to backup.
- Step 4: You can calculate the size of the backup data.
- Step 5: Select the directory you want to save the backup data including CDROM, DVD or Hard Disk.
- Step 6: Check the log you want to backup.

#### Step 7: Press Backup to start.

Step 8: After backup is complete, Click **playback.bat** to play the recordings.



🆕 Print Setup	×
Print Content	
Select channels :	
Print active channel image	
C Print all channels in the current view	
Select printed region of images	
🔿 Original	
Selected region	
Page Setting	
<ul> <li>Original size</li> </ul>	
Fit to page	
Align Image:	Тор
	Print X Cancel



### 2.9 Log Viewer

Click the **Log Viewer** button

to activate the Log Viewer dialog.

### 2.9.1 System Log



⁄

Select Log Type from the drop-down menu. There are in total 37 types of log types, including:

- ✓ Mainconsole Startup
- ✓ Mainconsole Shutdown
- ✓ User Login
- ✓ User Login Failed
- ✓ Start Schedule
- ✓ Stop Schedule
- ✓ Execute Recycle
- ✓ Enable Channel
- ✓ Disable Channel
- ✓ Start Smart Guard
- ✓ Stop Smart Guard
- ✓ Modify Smart Guard
- ✓ Modify Schedule
- ✓ Modify Configuration
- ✓ Start Live Streaming Server
- ✓ Stop Live Streaming Server
- ✓ Modify Live Streaming Server
- ✓ Start Remote Playback Server
- ✓ Stop Remote Playback Server

- Modify Remote Playback Server
- ✓ IP Camera Connection Lost
  - Restart Windows
  - Modify Metadata Setting
  - Metadata Connection Lost
  - Modify E-Map
  - Start Remote Desktop
  - Stop Remote Desktop
  - Modify Remote Desktop
  - Start Central Management
  - Stop Central Management
  - Modify Central Management
  - Start Counting Application
  - Stop Counting Application
- / IP Camera Connection Regained
- Sync. Microsoft Active Directory User
- ✓ IP Camera Parameter Changed
  - Update Metadata Plug-in
- **Note:** Some event types will not be available under ST-EVSPRO License.
- Step1: Choose the type of event you want to check or select "All" from the drop-down menu for all types of events.
- Step 2: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter specific date and time.

#### Step 3: Click Search.

Intelligent NVR Software

#### 2.9.2 Export and Backup Log

Intelligent NVR Software

View the Export and Backup Log history that had been operated by local or remote user.

Step1: Choose the type of event you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all types of events.

🔎 Log ¥iewer											_ 🗆 🔀
System Log Export an	d Backup Log 🛛	Jnusual Ever	nt Counting A	pplication 🛛 Counting App	lication (Diagram) 🗍 Metao	Jata Log					
Log Type:	All	•									
Date:	✓ 2010/01/25 ▼	*									Export to
Date <u>T</u> ime:	2010/01/25 18	:47 💌 🛋	to 20	10/01/25 18:47 💌 💌							Search
Event Time	Event Type	Success	Username	Start Time	End Time	Length	Camera Index	File Path	DB	Audio	
2010/01/25 18:35:05	Export Video	Yes	admin	2009/07/06 17:43:17	2009/07/06 17:43:28	Odays 00:00:11.000	3	C:\Documents and Set		No	
2010/01/25 18:35:46 2010/01/25 18:36:24	Backup Backup	Yes Yes	admin admin	2009/07/06 17:43:17 2009/07/06 17:43:17	2009/07/06 17:43:28 2009/07/06 17:43:28	Odays 00:00:11.000 Odays 00:00:11.000	2,5 2,3,4,5	D:\NUUO\sw\Dorcus26 C:\Documents and Set		N/A N/A	

Step 2: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular data: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date. For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

#### Step 3: Click Search

#### 2.9.3 Unusual Event

View the unusual event history that had been detected by the Smart Guard System.



Step1: Choose the type of events you wish to view or select "All" from the drop-down menu to view all types of events. The types of Unusual Event include General Motion, Foreign Object, Missing Object, Focus Lost, Camera Occlusion, Signal Lost, Disk Space Exhausted, System Health Unusual, Digital Input Triggered and General Motion (device).

*Note:* Some event types will not be available under ST-EVSPRO License.

- Step 2: Choose the camera channel you wish to view or select All for all channels available.
- Step 3: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and enter the specific date and time.

#### Step 4: Click Search.

Note: When working with a video record,

- 1. Log Viewer will search for Unusual Event in the video record in Date & Time mode, starting from the beginning to the end of the record, which is the default setting of the system.
- 2. A link (<sup>(C)</sup>) will appear next to each event time where video is available. By clicking on the link, the video will jump to the point where the unusual event takes place.

2.9.4 Counting Application

Display the history of Counting Application during a given time period. \* This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

Log Viewer           Unusual Event         System L	_og Counting Application Co	ounting Applicati	on (Diagrarr	Metadata Log	X	
Channel: All Date: 2007/09 Date&Time: 2007/09		9/26 13:31 💌 羮			Export to Search	
Event Time	Channel	In	Out			Step 4
2007/07/25 19:00:00	Camera 3	14	13			
2007/07/25 19:30:00	Camera 3	0	4			
2007/07/25 19:32:42	Camera 3	0	0			
2007/07/27 11:30:00	Camera 3	4	2			
2007/07/27 12:00:00	Camera 3	5	6			
2007/07/27 12:30:00	Camera 3	4	4			
2007/07/27 12:32:15	Camera 3	0	0			
2007/09/26 13:29:49	Camera 1	0	0			

Step1: Select the channel you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all channels.

Step 2: Select search period. View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

#### Step 3: Click Search.

- Step 4: Press the button Export to.
- Step 5: Type the file name and choose the file format (.xls or .txt).

#### 2.9.5 Counting Application (Diagram)

Display the Counting Application data in diagram format. \* This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

		-	Counter:	Counter 0	-		
Channel:	[01] 1	-		N/A	-		
Period:	One Day	•		N/A	•	Export to	
Date:	2012/08/28 💌 🚔					Search	Ster
816 714 612 510 408 306 204 102 0 1	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	9 1	0 11 12 13	4 15 16 17 18 19 ;	20 21	22.23.24	

Step 1: Select the channel you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all channels.

- Step 2: From the drop-down menu, set up how you would like the diagram to be displayed. You have the options of one day, one month, or one year.
- **Step 3:** Select a specific date to make it the start point of the diagram.

Step 4: Click Search.

Step 5: Press the button Export to.

Step 6: Type the file name and the file will save as BMP files.

#### 2.9.6 Metadata Log

View Metadata Log history detected by the Smart Guard System.

\* This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.



- Step1: Choose the type of events you wish to view or select All from the drop-down menu to view all types of events. The types of Unusual Event include Transaction Start, Transaction End, Open Cash Register, Connection Lost, and Special User Defined Event. Please refer to the User manual of Metadata Plugins for detail.
- Step 2: Choose the camera channel you wish to view or select All for all the channels available.
- Step 3: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter a specific date and time.

- **Step 4:** Click **Search**. A link (<sup>CD</sup>) will appear next to each event time where video is available. By clicking on the link, the video will jump to the point where the unusual event takes place.
- Step 5: Press the button Export to.
- Step 6: Type the file name and choose the file format (.xls or .txt).

#### 2.9.7 Export and Backup Log

View the Export and Backup Log history that had been operated by local or remote user.

🔑 Log Viewer											_ 🗆 🗙
Unusual Event System	Log Counting	Application	Counting Appl	ication (Diagram)   POS I	.og Export and Backup L	og					
Log Type:	All	•									
Date:	✓ 2010/01/25 ▼	*								E	export to
Date <u>T</u> ime: [	2010/01/25 18	47 💌 📩	to 201	0/01/25 18:47 💌 📥							Search
Event Time	Event Type	Success	Username	Start Time	End Time	Length	Camera Index	File Path	DB A	udio	
2010/01/25 18:35:05 2010/01/25 18:35:46 2010/01/25 18:36:24	Export Video Backup Backup	Yes Yes Yes	admin admin admin	2009/07/06 17:43:17 2009/07/06 17:43:17 2009/07/06 17:43:17	2009/07/06 17:43:28 2009/07/06 17:43:28 2009/07/06 17:43:28	Odays 00:00:11.000 Odays 00:00:11.000 Odays 00:00:11.000	3 2,5 2,3,4,5	C:\Documents and Set D:\NUUO\sw\Dorcus26 C:\Documents and Set	2 N	0 /A /A	

- Step1: Choose the type of event you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all types of events.
- Step 2: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular data: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date. For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time. Step 3: Click Search and get the results.

You may export the file to .xls or .txt file

#### 2.9.8 Export

#### System Log | Export and Backup Log | Unusual Event | Counting Application | Counting Application (Diagram) | Met AII -Log Type ✓ 2013/01/28 • ÷ Export to ... Date Step 1 Date Time: 2013/01/28 15:59:25 \* + 2013/01/28 15:59:25 \* Search to Event Time Event Type Camera Description 2013/01/28 15:38:19 Main Console Startup 2013/01/28 15:38:40 Main Console Shutdown 2013/01/28 15:39:58 2013/01/28 15:40:00 Main Console Startup admin User Login 2013/01/28 15:40:54 Enable Channel 1 CAM1 CAM2 2013/01/28 15:40:54 Enable Channel 2 3 2013/01/28 15:40:54 Enable Channel CAM3 2013/01/28 15:40:59 2013/01/28 15:44:03 Modify Configuration Start Schedule 2013/01/28 15:49:07 Stop Schedule

#### Step1: Select Export to.

Step2: Type the file name and choose the file format, .xls or .txt.

	D1					l li				
	A	В	C	D	Е					Console Startup,
1	EventTime	EventType	Description	l						Login, admin
2	2007/09/12 00:45:41	Main Console Startup					2007/09/12	01:11:10,	Main	Console Shutdown,
3	2007/09/12 00:45:44	User Login	admin				2007/09/12	01:27:04,	Main	Console Startup,
4	2007/09/12 01:11:10	Main Console Shutdown					2007/09/12	01:27:05	User	Login, admin
5	2007/09/12 01:27:04	Main Console Startup								Console Shutdown,
6	2007/09/12 01:27:05	User Login	admin							Console Startup,
7	2007/09/12 01:28:27	Main Console Shutdown								Login, admin
8	2007/09/12 15:06:51	Main Console Startup								
9	2007/09/12 15:06:52	User Login	admin							Console Shutdown,
10	2007/09/12 15:07:04	Main Console Shutdown								Console Startup,
	2007/09/12 15:08:28	Main Console Startup								Console Shutdown,
12		Main Console Shutdown					2007/09/12	15:08:54,	Main	Console Startup,
	2007/09/12 15:08:54	Main Console Startup					2007/09/12	15:09:01,	Main	Console Shutdown,
	2007/09/12 15:09:01	Main Console Shutdown					2007/09/12	15:14:11.	Main	Console Startup,
	2007/09/12 15:14:11	Main Console Startup								Console Shutdown,
	2007/09/12 15:14:12	Main Console Shutdown								Console Startup,
17		Main Console Startup								Console Shutdown,
	2007/09/12 15:15:20	Main Console Shutdown								
	2007/09/12 19:44:15	Main Console Startup								Console Startup,
	2007/09/12 19:44:58	Main Console Shutdown								Console Shutdown,
21	2007/09/12 22:51:57	Main Console Startup								Console Startup,
22	2007/09/12 22:51:59	Main Console Shutdown					2007/09/12	22:51:59,	Main	Console Shutdown,
23	2007/09/12 22:52:14	Main Console Startup				_ 1	2007/09/12	22:52:14.	Main	Console Startup,
24	2007/09/12 22:52:18	User Login	admin							Login, admin
	2007/09/12 22:52:24	Main Console Shutdown								Console Shutdown
26	2007/09/12 22:53:19	Main Console Startup								Console Startup,
14	SystemLog						2007/09/12	22.53.19,	natn	consule scarcup,
		.xls						.txt		

Click the **General Setting** button and go to Setting for system General Settings.

## **Record Display setting:**

2.10 Setting

- Calendar View: Choose to display records under calendar view.
- List Control: Choose to display records under checklist.



#### **Play setting:**

- Play when open: Check the option and set the system to start playing the video clip every time a record is withdrawn.
- Auto skip when record motion only mode: Check the option to

Record Display	
Calendar View	C List Control
Play	
🔲 Play when open	
Auto skip when record m	otion only mode
Next interval:	1 : min
Previous interval:	1 imin
<ul> <li>Save in clipboard</li> <li>Manually save the image</li> <li>Automatically save the image</li> </ul>	
Preferred Image format:	bmp 💌
liscellaneous	
Synchronize video frame:	5

set up the system to automatically skip to the points where there were motions recorded.

- Next interval: Set the interval with which the video goes forward when you Click the "Next" icon on the control panel.
- Previous interval: Set the interval with which the video goes backward when you Click the "Previous" icon on the control panel.

Capture Image setting: Sets how you want to save the image.

- Save in clipboard: The image will be saved in the clipboard; image will be available to paste elsewhere.
- Manually save the image file: You can manually select where you want to save the image. Name the saved file, and choose the file format you want to save as.
- Automatically save the image file: By pre-setting a path/URL and the image format, the system will automatically save the image accordingly when you click the Save button in the control panel.

#### Miscellaneous

• Synchronize video frames: Select this option to avoid display problems that may occur under high CPU loading.

#### **Server Setting**

Remote Playback Site Management. Please refer to page 52 for details.

#### **OSD Setting**

Enable Camera OSD to display video information on recorded video. Information includes camera name, camera number, date and time. User can also set up OSD font; include the font, size, font color and any font effects desired.

#### Metadata Overlay Setting \* This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

Enable metadata overlay to adjust Font, Size, Color, Bold, Edge in "Foreground" section, color and General Server OSD Metadata General Server OSD Metadata Enable camera OSD 🔽 Enable Metadata overlav Foreground Foreground • Font: **ቱ** Tahoma Font: **₽** Tahoma Ŧ Size 9 • 10 • Size: Color: ~ ~ Color 🔽 Bold 🔽 Edge Background 🔽 Bold 🔽 Edge Color: ¥ Background 40 Transparency: -Color: Info Transparency: 40 🔽 Camera Name Display on Video Preview 🔽 Camera Number Always Display 2011/04/19 Date • Last for seconds 下午07:22:04 🔻 ✓ Time

transparency in "Background" section, and then adjust display settings in "Display on Video Preview".

#### 2.1 Remote Server

### 2.11.1 Add Remote Playback Site

Press the Remote Server Icon or go to setting – server to General Setting remote playback site management to add and setup remote playback sites.

- Step 1: Enter the IP address or DNS, Port, Username, and Password.
- Step 2: Click Add to add the server.
- Step 3: Click OK to exit the "Settings" panel.

Server Name:		🔚 site (192168.4.10)
Address:		
Port:	5160	
User Name:		
Password:		
	Save Password	
	Test Server	
Add	Delete Update	

#### 2.11.2 Access Remote Playback Site

Playback Site

Go to Date Time Panel and Click the signature icon on the top of the display window to access the Remote

🚮 - 🧬 🗔 🛒 🔾 🜔
Local Machine
Recent List 🕨 🕨
Select Folder
Remote PC 1 (192.168.1.100)
Remote PC 2 (192.168.1.101)
Remote PC 3 (192.168.1.103)
Remota PC 4 (192.168.1.103)

#### 2.12 Switch Recordings

With dual recording support, user can switch between Record 1 and Record 2 on right click screen menu as below.



🖢 Load   🌆 Copy to  📩 📩								Always	Event	Motion	Boos	sting
Default	🛅 Defaul	lt o	1 2	3 4 5 6		9 10 1	11 12	13 14		18 19 20 2		24
— 2 01 IVS_Shopping M — 2 02 Fish eye		hoppi 🚪										
- 🔤 03 Lobby	📘 Fish eye	e 🚦										
🔄 04 IVS_Roof 🔄 05 Park1	Lobby											
	IVS_Ro	of										
	Park1											
	<b>≿</b> Delete	Config		Stream Drofile	EDC	Quality	Par					
	₩ Delete Start	Config End 23:59	uure Mode Alway	Stream Profile Main/Normal		Quality 500/	Re: 19:					
	₩ Delete Start	End	Mode									
	₩ Delete Start	End	Mode									
	₩ Delete Start	End	Mode									
efault Custom	₩ Delete Start	End	Mode									

## 3. Schedule

Click the Schedule icon on the Mainconsole and set up the time duration for video recording on the schedule General Setting panel.

#### 3.1 Day / week Mode

Level 1		🔗 Schedule Configuration							Ah	wavs	Event	Motion	Boosting	
Load		Default	🛅 Defa	ult	0 1 2	2 4 5 6	7 0	9 10 11	12 13				22 23 24	
		- 01 IVS_Shopping M	TVS_				/ °	5 10 11	12 13			13 20 21	22 23 24 m	
		02 Fish eve	Fish e											
Camera		O4 IVS_Roof	Lobby											
Channel														
			Park1											
Day / Week													-	
Mode	$\setminus$		📩 Delete	🛃 Conf	igure				_					
			Start 00:00	End 23:59	Mode Alway		FPS 10/2	Quality 500/	Res L9:					
		< □ □ → □ → □ → □ → □ → □ → □ → □ → □ →												
		Day Mode Ueek Mode												
											<ul> <li></li> </ul>	ОК	X Cancel	]
				Sch	edule	e Detail	S							

Day Mode: Schedule the cameras to turn the recorder on and off at the same time every day according to your setting.

Week Mode: Allows you to schedule each camera for a different day of the week, additionally, you may assign extra holidays in the "Week" mode

Schedule Details: An outline of start time, end time, Record mode, frame rate, quality and resolution. Please note these values refer to General settings. Actual performance may vary according to camera and hardware settings.

To setup the time schedule for each camera, you may

- 1. "Load" the preset modes or
- 2. "Insert" a new schedule manually or
- 3. "Copy to" other cameras after manual setup.

#### 3.1.1 Load Preset Modes

The system provides six modes to quickly setup recording schedule. Simply Click the 🛅 Load for the drop-down menu.

Refer to the below tables for the definitions of each mode in each series.

#### IP+ series (IP camera)

Mode	Format	Time	Record	key frame	Adjust video	Profile
			Mode	only	frame	
Poqular	M-JPEG	00:00-24:00	Always		uncheck	Main
Regular	MPEG4/H.264	00.00-24.00	Always	uncheck		
Office	M-JPEG	08:00-20:00	Aburence		uncheck	Main
Onice	MPEG4/H.264	06.00-20.00	Always	uncheck		
Shan	M-JPEG	10:00-22:00	Aburence		uncheck	Main
Shop	MPEG4/H.264	10.00-22.00	Always	uncheck		
Lighty Secure	M-JPEG	00:00-24:00	Aburence		uncheck	Main
Highly Secure	MPEG4/H.264	00.00-24.00	Always	uncheck		
Diale Convince	M-JPEG	00.00 04.00	Mation		10 fps	Main
Disk Saving	MPEG4/H.264	00:00-24:00	Motion	checked		
Minor	M-JPEG	00:00-24:00	Motion		5 fps	Main
	MPEG4/H.264	00.00-24:00	MOTION	checked		

The Max indicates settings are same as camera settings in the General Setting>setting>camera>camera

Mode	Format	Time	Record Mode	Profile
Regular	H.264	00:00-24:00	Always	Main
Office	H.264	08:00-20:00	Always	Main
Shop	H.264	10:00-22:00	Always	Main
Highly Secure	H.264	00:00-24:00	Always	Main
Disk Saving	H.264	00:00-24:00	Motion	Main
Minor	H.264	00:00-24:00	Motion	Sub

#### parameter panel. Capture Card settings (Analog camera)

## 3.1.2 Insert a New Schedule Manually

Step 1: Left-click and draw the bar you want add to the time table. The scheduled time will show as a grey bar.



Step 2: Change the setting by clicking on the **General Setting** icon (See page 49 for detail) or double click the **Schedule Information**.

Step 3: Click OK.

### 3.1.3 Copy Schedule

You may set up the schedule for each channel/camera by repeating the process above, or by simply applying the setting of a single camera to all the others by clicking the **Copy To** icon at the top of the display window.

### 3.1.4 Holiday and Custom setting

Allows you to schedule each camera for a different day of the week, additionally, you may assign extra holidays in the "Week" mode.

Load 🛍 Copy to 🎦 📩													Alwa			Event		Moti			Boost
Custom Custom	18		0 1	2	3	4 5	6	7 8	9	10	11	12	13	14 1	5 16	17	18	19 20	21	22	23
	Me Delete	End	ifigure Mo	de	Str	eam P	ofile	FPS	ç	(uality	/ R	Res									
fault Holiday Custom																					
Day Mode Week Mode																					
Weekwoue	•				m							Þ				-					Ca
																		OK			

Holiday Custom

Holiday: You may assign holidays where the system will work according to the setting for Sunday.

Custom: You can assign a particular date(s) on which the system will work according to a special schedule(s) different from the others.

### 3.2 Adjust the Scheduled Setting:

You can manually change the setting at any time after you insert or load a schedule.

- Option 1: Move the cursor to the "Time Bar" and change the length or move the bar sideways to change the start and end points.
- **Option 2:** Click the **Configuration** icon or double Click "Schedule Information" from the list to obtain the "Encoding Option" panel (next page) and select the desired setting.



#### 3.3 Encoding Option



#### 3.3.1 Pre-record/ Post-record Time

The pre-record/ post-record function saves the recording data accordingly. For instance, to set up a 5 second pre-record time means the system will start saving the recording data 5 seconds before the event happens.

Note: The maximum of pre-record/post record period is 60 seconds.

#### 3.3.2 Record Mode

There are 4 recording modes and 5 video profiles to choose from. Choose the one that suits your scenario best.

#### Always Record:

Select this option to record the video continuously.

#### Boosting Record on Event:

This option enables you to record at lower frame rate at regular times, and at higher frame rate under Smart Guard triggered events.

\*This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License

Select this option to obtain the "Select Event" panel. Choose from the list any Smart Guard or digital input events or video analytics from the device. The chosen event(s) will trigger the recorded action. Click **OK**. General Setting desired frame rates of normal and boosting recording in the **Video Encoder** box.



**Note:** Please note it is required to enable "Smart Guard" from the Mainconsole panel before General Setting "boosting record on event" to trigger recording.

#### Record on Event:

Select this option to start recording at any predefined event, including Smart Guard events, metadata events, digital input events and video analytics from devices. \* Some options are not available under ST-EVSPRO License

Select this option to obtain the "Select Event" panel. From the Smart Guard list, check the camera events or digital inputs to trigger the recorded action. Click **OK**.

Note: Please note it is required to enable "Smart Guard" from the Mainconsole panel before General Setting "record on event" to trigger recording.

#### Record on Motion:

Select this option to start recording when motion is detected. Adjust sensitivity, the frame interval and zone to setup motion detection. To setup a single detection zone, left-click and drag the mouse to draw a rectangle. To setup more than one detection zone, simply repeat the same process or click "All" to select the entire screen.

*Note:* The maximum number of rectangle detection zones is 10.

Note: For DVR cards, Record on Motion Mode can be only assigned on Record 1.

#### 3.3.3 Option

This option sets up the frame rate an audio of the recorded video. The "Video Preview" window is the preview of the recorded video corresponding with the option.





Click the **Guard** button on the Mainconsole to start the "Event and Action General Setting" panel. You will need to specify an event to be detected as well as set the appropriate action for the system when the event occurs.



There are 5 sources of events: Camera (video image), IVS (Intelligent Video Surveillance), Metadata, Digital Input/Output and System. You can assign multiple events by following the instructions below. Note: Some event types will not be available under ST-EVSPRO License.

#### 4.1.1 Camera Event - Assign a Camera Event

Step 1: Select a camera and click "Insert Event" icon.

elect Event		Step 2
Event Type	Description	
🐏 Signal Lost	Detect video signal connection	
🔕 General Motion 1	Detection of any movement	
🔕 General Motion 2	Detection of any movement	
🔕 General Motion 3	Detection of any movement	
👌 General Motion 4	Detection of any movement	
🔕 General Motion 5	Detection of any movement	Step 3
🔕 General Motion(Device)	Video motion detection alarm of the device	siep o
🛄 Foreign Object	Detect foreign object in defined area(s)	
🔁 Missing Object	Missing/being moved of defined object(s)	
🔤 Focus Lost	Camera focus lost detector	
Samera Occlusion	Camera blocked or damaged	
	V OK X Cancel	

Step 2: There are 6 types of events: Signal Lost, General Motion, Foreign Object, Missing Object, Focus Lost, and Camera Occlusion. Select the event you want on the Event Type list, and then click OK. Note: Only General Motion and Signal Lost are supported under ST-EVSPRO License.

Step 3: General Setting the Event Type. See the following instructions.

#### 4.1.2 Camera Event – Basic Setting

[Signal Lost, General Motion, Foreign Object, Missing Object, Focus Lost, and Camera Occlusion]

Enable Event: Check the box to activate the event.

**Retrigger after status change:** check the box to retrigger after status change [Focus lost, Camera Occlusion, Connection lost and Digital Input/Output

Event and Action Configuration	And a state of the local division of the loc		×
arm Event Configuration	-		×
Basic Advanced			
Camera 1 - General Motion 1		- C	
Enable Event			
🥅 Retrigger after status change			
Life Cycle			
• Automatic cancel event when ever	nt disappear		
C Manual cancel event or event last	triggered		
C Cancel event after	10 seconds		
Activated Period		_	
Always activated			
C As Day Mode Schedule	Day Schedule		
C As Week Mode Schedule	Week Schedule		
		🗸 ОК	X Cancel
			-

#### Life Cycle:

- Automatic cancel event when event disappears: The alarm/action will be cancelled once the event is fixed or ended.
- Manually cancel event or event last triggered: The alarm/action will remain until being cancelled from Mainconsole. Choose this option to avoiding missing any alarms.

#### Note: To cancel the event:

Method 1: Start > Open Event Report > Cancel All Events Method 2 : Click the red crystal ball to obtain the Smart Guard Event event(s).

ays activated	
ay Mode Schedule	Day Schedule
Veek Mode Schedule	Week Schedule

Cancel event after <u>seconds</u>: Enable checkbox and set a timer for canceling the event after a specific time.

#### Activated Period:

- Always activated: Allow alarm to be activated at all times.
- As Day Mode Schedule: Customize a specific time range for the alarm to be activated. The alarm will be available daily according to your settings. Click Day Schedule to General Setting the schedule. Choose Add Time Period and drag on the coverage bar to define an activated schedule. Choose Remove Time Period and drag on the coverage bar to subtract from existing schedules.

Click Clear All to remove all settings.

	C Add Time Period	Remove Time Period	Clear All
Coverage (	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10		20 21 22 23 24

• As Week Mode Schedule: Customize a weekly based time range for the alarm to be activated. Click **Week Schedule** to General Setting the schedule.

Choose **Add Time Period** and drag on the coverage bar to define an activated schedule. Choose **Remove Time Period** and drag on the coverage bar to subtract from existing schedules. Click **Clear All** to remove all settings.



#### 4.1.3 Camera Event - Signal Lost

Detect the loss of video signal from camera.

#### 4.1.4 Camera Event - General Motion

- Detect any movement in the defined detection zone.

For each video channel you may define up to 5 motion detection profiles (General Motion 1-5). This will allow you to set different sensitivity levels for different regions in the same video.



Event Name: Customize your event name here.

#### Alarm Event Option:

- Sensitivity: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase sensitivity so that minimal movement will trigger the alarm. Move the bar to the left to reduce the sensitivity. Setting up an appropriate sensitivity value will minimize false alarms. For example, you can lower the sensitivity to avoid the alarm being triggered by a swinging tree in the breeze.
- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase interval time so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the interval

#### **Region Definition:**

• Define detection zone: To detect General Motion, you have to define a detection zone. Left-click and drag the mouse to draw a detection zone. You may define more than one zone on the screen by repeating the same process. User can also Click "All" button to select the entire detection zone.

Start Simulation: Click the Start Simulation button and test the function on the preview screen.

## 4.1.5 Camera Event - General Motion (Device)

- Detect movement with motion detectors of devices (IP cameras or video servers).

**Note:** This function is only available on devices with built-in motion detection.

Please refer to the user manual of your device to set up motion detection.

- Start Simulation Click to test if motion detection is set up correctly.
- Go to Web Interface Click to go directly to device web page for General Settings.



#### 4.1.6 Camera Event - Foreign Object

Alarm will be set off when an object appears in the defined area on the screen.



#### Alarm Event Option:

- Sensitivity: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase sensitivity so that minimal movement will trigger the alarm. Move the bar to the left to reduce the sensitivity of movement detected. Setting up an appropriate sensitivity value will minimize false alarms. For example, you can lower the sensitivity to avoid the alarm being triggered by a swinging tree in the breeze.
- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase interval time so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the interval.

#### **Region Definition:**

- Define detection zone: To detect Foreign Object, you have to define a detection zone. Left-click and drag the mouse to draw a detection zone. You may define more than one zone on the screen by repeating the same process. User can also Click "All" button to select the entire detection zone.
- Define Object size: After defining the detection zone, select Define Object Size and then left-click and drag the mouse to indicate the size of the object you want to detect.
   Note: For instance, if you want to prevent somebody from leaving a briefcase in a hallway, place a briefcase in the hallway in view of the camera. On the screen, draw an area that fits the size of the briefcase and define it as the object size. Remove the briefcase and then activate the Smart Guard function on the Mainconsole. The system will consider everything on the screen normal when you click Start to activate the monitor function.

Start Simulation: Click the Start Simulation button and test the function on the preview screen.

#### 4.1.7 Camera Event - Missing Object

Alarm triggers when an object disappears in the defined area on the screen.



#### Alarm Event Option:

- Sensitivity: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase sensitivity so that minimal movement will trigger the alarm. Move the bar to the left to reduce the sensitivity of movement. Setting up the appropriate sensitivity value will reduce the chance of false alarms. For example, you can lower the sensitivity to avoid the alarm being triggered by a swinging tree in the breeze.
- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase interval time so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the interval.

#### **Region Definition:**

Define detection zone: To detect Missing Object, you have to define a detection zone. Left-click and drag the mouse to draw a detection zone. You may define more than one zone on the screen by repeating the same process. User can also Click "All" button to select the entire detection zone.
 Note: For instance, if you want to prevent somebody from removing the computer monitor on the desk, draw an area that fits the size of the monitor on the screen.



Start Simulation: Click the Start Simulation button and test the function on the preview screen.

#### 4.1.8 Camera Event – Focus Lost

This function alarms you when any of the cameras is losing focus and has blur image.

	Alarm Event Configuration	
Sensitivity Interval Ignore Lighting Start Simulation	Basic       Advanced         Event Name:       General Motion 1         Alarm Event Option       General Motion 1         Sensitivity:	Video Preview-
		V OK Cancel

#### Alarm Event Option:

• Sensitivity: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase sensitivity so that a relatively small movement will trigger the alarm. Move the bar to the left to reduce the sensitivity of movement detection. Set up an appropriate Sensitivity value will reduce the chance of false alarm. For example, you can lower the Sensitivity to avoid the alarm being triggered by a swinging tree in the breeze.

- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase interval time so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the interval time.
- Ignore Lighting: Check the box to avoid alarm being set off by light changing.

#### **Region Definition:**

• Define detection zone: To detect Lose Focus, you have to define a detection zone. Left-click and drag the mouse to draw a detection zone. You may define more than one zone on the screen by repeating the same process. User can also Click "All" button to select the entire detection zone.

Start Simulation: Click the Start Simulation button and test the function on the preview screen.

#### 4.1.9 Camera Event - Camera Occlusion

This function alarms you when any of the cameras are blocked.



#### Alarm Event Option:

- Sensitivity: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase sensitivity so that a relatively small movement will trigger the alarm. Move the bar to the left to reduce the sensitivity of movement detection. Set up an appropriate Sensitivity value will reduce the chance of false alarm. For example, you can lower the Sensitivity to avoid the alarm being triggered by a swinging tree in the breeze.
- Interval: Click and move the slider control to the right to increase interval time so that the alarm will only be triggered when the movement lasts longer. Move to the left to reduce the interval time.
- Ignore Lighting: Check the box to avoid alarm being set off by light changing.

Start Simulation: Click the Start Simulation button and test the function on the preview screen.

#### 4.1.10 Metadata Event - Assign a Metadata Event

- Step 1: Select a metadata device from the list and click is to insert event.
  Note: Please insert the metadata device in General Setting Metadata Application first. Then set the alarm based on it.
- Step 2: There are five types of events: Transaction Start, Transaction End, Open Cash Register, Connection Lost and User Defined. Select the event you want on the Event Type list, and then click OK. Note that the Open Cash Register event is available on POS metadata devices only.
  - 📜 Transaction Start Detect the beginning of any transaction.
  - **Iransaction End** Detect the end of any transaction.
  - S Open Cash Drawer Detect the opening of any cash drawer.

Connection Lost - Detect the connection problems between metadata devices and Mainconsole. User Defined - Detect any condition defined by user.

Event Type	Description	•
Transaction Start	A transaction starts	
Transaction End	A transaction ends	
\$ Open Cash Drawer	Cash Drawer is opened	
Connection Lost	Connection Lost	
User Defined 1	User defined event rule 1	-
User Defined 2	User defined event rule 2	
User Defined 3	User defined event rule 3	
User Defined 4	User defined event rule 4	
User Defined 5	User defined event rule 5	
User Defined 6	User defined event rule 6	
User Defined 7	User defined event rule 7	
User Defined 8	User defined event rule 8	
Ilser Defined 9	Liser defined event rule 9	

**Step 3:** Go to General Setting for the Event Type setting. For details please refer to the user manual of metadata plugins.

## 4.1.11 Digital Input/Output Event - Digital Input/Output Event



**Step 1:** Click and highlight Digital Input on the event type list, and then click the **Step 2:** Select the device that is connected to your system.

#### 4.1.12 System Event - Assign a System Event

#### Intelligent NVR Software Event and Action Configuration Event Action CAM01 Park1 Action Options (d) General Motion 1 CAM02 Road1 Select Event X CAN Step 1 CAN Event Type Disk Space Exhausted Description IVS Intel Disk space is exhausted 塘 High CPU temperature or low fan speed CPU or memory is depleted Network bandwidth is overloading System Health Unusual Resource Depleted Network Congestion NG - **\$** POS - 5 Step 2 🗄 🛨 Dig 1 Sy V OK X Cancel Advanced V OK X Cancel

**Step 1:** Click and highlight System on the event type list, and click the **Step 2:** There are four events, select the event you want to detect.

#### 4.1.13 System Event - Disk Space Exhausted

This function alarms you when disk space is exhausted.

#### 4.1.14 System Event - System Health Unusual

This function alarms you when CPU is under high temperature or fan speeds are running low. Current Status: Displays current CPU temperature, Motherboard Temperature, Fan Speed and Power fan speed.

Options: Check the Temperature Format for Celsius or Fahrenheit; fix maximum motherboard temperature for High Temperature Alarm and minimum RPM for Power Fan Speed Alarm.

#### 4.1.15 System Event – Resource Depleted

This function alarms you when CPU or memory is depleted. Current Status: Shows you the current Total CPU Loading and Total Memory Usage. Options: Fix maximum percentage for High CPU Loading Alarm and High Memory Usage Alar

#### 4.1.16 System Event – Network Congestion

This function alarms you when network bandwidth is overloaded. Current Status: Shows you the current Total Upload/Download bit rates. Options: Fix maximum bit rate (Kbps) for High Upload/Download Bit rate Alarms.

System Health	n Unusual	Resource De	pleted	Network Co	ongestion
Alarm Event Configuration	×	Alarm Event Configuration	×	Alarm Event Configuration	×
Basic Advanced		Basic Advanced		Basic Advanced	
Current Status CPU Temperature: Motherboard Temperature:	0C 0C	Current Status		Current Status	
Fan Speed:	0 RPM	Total CPU Loading	81 %	Total Upload Bitrate	0 Kbps
Power Fan Speed:	0 RPM	Total Memory Usage	64 %	Total Download Bitrate	0 Kbps
Temperature Format:	<ul> <li>Celsius</li> <li>Fahrenheit</li> </ul>	Options		_ Options	
High temperature alarm at : High Motherboard Temperature A	▲ 70C	High CPU Loading Alarm at :	<u>★</u> 70 %	High Upload Bitrate Alarm at:	▲ 100 Kbps
Low Fan Speed Alarm at	1000 RPM	High Memory Usage Alarm at:	★ 70 %	High Download Bitrate Alarm at:	★ 100 Kbps
Low Power Fan Speed Alarm at	* 1000 RPM				
<u> </u>	OK 🗶 Cancel	<b>✓</b>	OK X Cancel	✓	OK X Cancel

#### 4.1.17 System Event – TV-Out

\* Note: This function is not available without a compatible AV out card installed.

#### Pop-up video to TV-Out monitor on event.



#### 4.2 Action

#### 4.2.1 Action - Assign an action type

	L Event and Action Configuration	22
Step 1	Event	Action Action Options On Screen Display
Step 2		Description Pay warning sound Send E-mail to contactors Dala a phone call to contactor Trigger PTZ camera to present p Popup DI/O panel or trigger ofgl Send SMS to contactors Send snapshot to FTP Popup E-Map on Event Notice on Mobile Clent
	System	VOK X Cancel

#### To insert a new action:

Step 1: Choose an event and click the insert action icon

Step 2: There are 11 types of actions, select the actions you want and then click OK.

- 1. On Screen Display
- 2. Play Sound
- 3. Send E-mail
- 4. Phone Call
- 5. PTZ Preset Go

- 6. DI/DO
- 7. Send a SMS Message
- 8. Send to Central Server
- 9. Send snapshot to FTP
- 10. Popup E-Map on event.
- 11. Push Notification

\* Note: Some actions will not be available under ST-EVSPRO License.

Step 3: General Setting the setting of the Action Type if needed.

#### 4.2.2 Action Type - On Screen display

A red warning will be flashing on the screen of Mainconsole, indicating which type of unusual event is detected.

**Step 1:** Select the "On Screen display" action and then click OK.

Step 2: The responding window will popup to Selected Camera. Click the "On Screen display" indicator to modify the setting.

> Camera: Display the camera applied to this action. Auto popup: Click the Auto popup column and select the expected monitor for popping up the event.

> Displayed text: You can follow the default setting to show the event type, or enable "Customized Text" to define the text as your preference.

Color edge: Select the color edge for popping up the event.

Camera	Auto popup	
CAM01 Park1	N/A	
	N/A	
	Monitor #1	
Display text		
General I	lotion 1	
Customiz	ea lêxt	 
Z Color edge		

#### 4.2.3 Action Type - Play Sound

Sound alarm – the system will play the sound as alarm when an unusual event is detected.

Step 1: Select the "Play Sound" action and then click OK.

Step 2: The responding window will popup to choose a Wave file (.wav). Click the "Play Sound" indicator to modify the setting.

#### 4.2.4 Action Type - Send E-mail

The system will send an E-mail immediately to given accounts indicating the type of event, the time, and attaching a picture taken while the event is detected.

- Step 1: Select the "Send E-mail" action and then click OK.
- Step 2: The responding window will popup to Select Contact, type the message to append. (You can choose more than one contact).

Edit Address Book: Insert the contact information here. Note:

- To give the system the E-mail accounts, go to General Setting > Setup > Hotline. See General Settings on page 80 for details.
- 2. For Digital Input Events, this warning action will send the snapshot of the associated camera. Please refer to I/O settings for details.

#### 4.2.5 Action Type - Phone Call

The system will call a given phone number when an unusual event is detected. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

- Step 1: Select the Phone Call action and then click OK.
- Step 2: The responding window will popup to Select Contactor and key-in the message which want to append on SMS content. (You can choose one more contact at once).
   Note: To setup the phone number and make an audio record for the phone call, go to General Setting Setup Hotline. See General Setting on page 80I.

Select Contactor					
Contactor:		Edit Address Book			
Name	E-Mail Address				
User 1 User 2 User 3	user1@mail.com user2@mail.com user3@mail.com				
Customized message content: Motioh deteaction alarm of camera A, please do the below SOP.					
	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	OK X Cancel			

## 4.2.6 Action Type - PTZ Preset Go

The PTZ (pan/tilt/zoom) camera will go to a preset point or auto patrol when an unusual event is detected.

- \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.
- Step 1: Select the "PTZ Preset Go" action and then click OK.
- Step 2: The responding window will pop up to PTZ Camera Preset Go. Click the "PTZ Preset Go" indicator to modify the setting.
- Step 3: Set the action of cameras which you want to trigger by events.
- For example: Please follow below steps to setup this function.
  - Set the action of camera 1:
    - 1. Choose camera 1.
    - 2. Set the start, end preset points.
  - 3. Select the Life Cycle.
    - 4. Click Add.
  - Set the action of camera 2:
    - 5. Choose camera 2.
    - 6. Set the start patrol and end patrol.
    - 7. Select the Life cycle
    - 8. Click Add.
    - 9. Finally Click Ok to save all setting of cameras.

Note: General Setting your PTZ camera before using this function. See General Setting on page 78 for PTZ camera General Setting.

## 4.2.7 Action Type – DI/DO

To trigger Digital input/output devices connected to the system, such as alarm lights and sirens.

DI/DO				
Digital output to signal:			🧃 I/O Devices	
I/O Module   Pin   Name	Life Cycle   🔼		🔽 Show name	
Testboard 0 Light	Event di 🔫		- DI	D0
Testboard 1 Output 1	Event disappear			
Testboard 2 Output 2	10 sec.			
Testboard 3 Output 3	30 sec. 60 sec.		Switch	Light
	Manual cancel			
			Input 1	Output 1
			0	0
	~		Input 2	Output 2
🔽 Automatically popup I/O control pane	I	<b></b>	0	
✓ ок	🗶 Cancel		Input 3	Output 3

- Step 1: Select the "DI/DO" action and then click OK.
- Step 2: Select devices to be triggered by event.
- Step 3: Click the Life Cycle box of each device to General Setting the life cycle of each triggered alarm. The alarm may terminate when the event disappears, 10/30/60 seconds after trigger, or require a manual cancel. Note that you may also customize a timer by simply inserting a number in the box.
- Step 4: You can enable the Automatically Popup I/O Control Panel check box to obtain the correspondent panel to monitor the I/O status.

#### Intelligent NVR Software PTZ Camera Preset Go Camera: CAM14 (camera 3) IP Camera • Start-Preset O Patrol Ŧ Life Cycle Stop PTZ action when event disappear Keep PTZ action second End-

C Patrol

1 0K

second

End Preset Go

🗶 Cancel

•

Clear

Camera Start Life Cycle End

The end preset go will take 10

1

Preset

Add

2

**Note:** You should adjust the setting of I/O device in General Setting>Setting>I/O Device first, the I/O control panel will display the device status based on it. You can also adjust the size of the panel by dragging a mouse or click the **LOX** on the right top of the display window.

#### 4.2.8 Action Type –Send an SMS message

The system will send an SMS message immediately to given accounts indicating the type and time of event.

- \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.
- Step 1: Select the "Send a SMS message" action and then click OK.
- Step 2: The responding windows will popup to Select Contactor (You can choose one or more contacts). Click the "Send an SMS message" indicator to modify the setting. Note: To General Setting a GSM modem for the system, go to General Setting - Setup - Hotline. See General Setting at page 80.

### 4.2.9 Action Type – Send to Central Server

This action will send an event and snapshot to a Central Management Server (separate software package, not included).

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

Step 1: Select the "Send to Central Server" action and then click OK. Note: Please refer to the CMS user manual for details on using the Central Management System.

#### 4.2.10 Action Type – Send snapshot to FTP

The system will upload a snapshot immediately to FTP site. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

**Step 1:** Select the "Send snapshot to FTP" action and then click OK.

#### Step 2: General Setting options.

- Life Cycle: General Setting the system to stop sending snapshots after \_\_\_\_\_ seconds, or when the event is terminated.
  - Frame Interval: Define the frequency of snapshots.
    - Minimum is 1/60 fps (1 snapshot per 60 seconds)
    - Maximum is 30fps (30 snapshots per second).
- Resolution: Choose to keep snapshot in original resolution or compress to lower resolution.

#### Note:

- 1. For Digital Input Events, this warning action will send the snapshot of the associated camera. Please refer to I/O settings for details.
- 2. To define an FTP server, go to General Setting > Setup > Hotline. See General Setting at page 80 for detail.

#### 4.2.11 Action Type – Popup E-Map on Event

The system will auto popup E-Map window and show the assigned map and indicator. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

Step 1: Select the "Popup E-Map on Event" action and then click OK.

**Step 2:** The responding window will popup to Popup e-map on event. Click the "Popup E-Map on Event" indicator to modify the setting.

	Edit Ad	ldress Book
>ontactor:		
Name	Phone Number	
🗹 👕 User 1	111-1111-1111	
🗹 👕 User 2	222-2222-2222	
🗹 👕 User 3	333-3333-3333	
customized messa;	ge content:	
Customized messag	-	
Customized messages of the customized messages o	-	
	-	
	-	

Send Snapshot to FTP
Options
Life Cycle:
Stop sending snapshot after: 1 sec.
C Stop sending snapshot when event disappear
Frame Interval: 1/2 💌 fps
Resolution:
C Original
Customized CIF
OK X Cancel

Popup e-map on eve	nt			×
Map Layer: Indicator:				•
		ОК	<b>X</b> 0	ancel

Description

X

Step 3: Select the Map Layer and Indicator, and then click OK. Note: To edit E-Map, see General Setting at page 100.

#### 4.2.12 Action Type – Push Notification

The system will send instant message to registered STEVS mobile device as a notification.

Step 1: Select the "Notice on Mobile Client" action and then click OK.

#### Step 2: General Setting options.

- Frequency—Rearm interval: the minimum interval of notifications as the event occurs. (default:10, max:300)
- User List: All user accounts in this unit. Click "select all" to select all user accounts; click "deselect all" to remove all user accounts.
- Receiver List (overview/remove): go to General setting>Network Service>Push Notification for user account overview. Click "Kill" for selected user account delete and "Kill All" for all user

accounts delete.

- 1. User name: user account
- 2. ID: user account display name
- 3. Least time: indicate user did not login period
- 4. Login Username: the user account display name when login
- Send test: click to send test push notification to selected list. Note:
  - 1. Please sign into "STEVS" first.
  - 2. If the user password is changed, please sign in "STEVS" with the new password to start the service again.
  - If users do not want to receive notifications anymore, users can turn off this feature on "STEVS". There is one possibility of de-registering failed: users have ever logged in to "STEVS" by typing both LAN IP and WAN IP of Main Console, but only do de-registering on one side.
  - 4. If users do not want to send notifications to certain user account, users can de-select the user account on Notification General Network Service -
    - Setting>>Network Service.
  - 5. If user does not login till 30 days, user account on push notification user list will delete automatically.
  - Push notification test is depending on iOS/Andriod receive the message or not.



Select Notification Action

Action Type

### 4.2.13 Action Type – TV-Out

Pop-up video to TV-Out monitor on event.



#### 4.3 Advanced Settings

Click the **Advanced** button on the bottom of the Event and Action General Setting dialog for advanced settings.

Condition of startup - Smart Guard can be started under the follow modes:

- 1. Manually start/stop from Start menu or as Mainconsole startup setting (default)
- 2. Started by defined D/I trigger. Select D/I from dropdown list and click OK.



# 5. General Setting



Click the General Setting icon, select from the drop-down menu and open the General Setting panel. Modify the setting and access License Manager, Video Analytics, Metadata application, Metadata Search, Log viewer, Backup, or Network Services. Select Save/Load General Setting to save/load all the settings.

\* Video Analytics and Metadata Application not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

\* Video Source function available only with MPEG-4 software compression capture devices.

#### 5.1 System Setting – General

		Storage	Status Display
Startup 🗸	🖕 Setting General Camera   1/0 Device   PTZ Config   Ho	tline Address Book Monitor Display	
Miscellaneous	Startup         Imain Console         Imain Constreaction <td< td=""><td>Storage Location D:\ Carbon Constraints and the space is Loss than Constraints and the space is Loss than Log Recycling Audio Preview Default Channel ((Not Used)</td><td>Status Display Current Date Current Time Login User Free Disk Space IP Camera Bitrate User Defined Text 1 EVS_PRO Vuser Defined Text 2 Advanced Setting Auto Reboot Enable Auto Reboot</td></td<>	Storage Location D:\ Carbon Constraints and the space is Loss than Constraints and the space is Loss than Log Recycling Audio Preview Default Channel ((Not Used)	Status Display Current Date Current Time Login User Free Disk Space IP Camera Bitrate User Defined Text 1 EVS_PRO Vuser Defined Text 2 Advanced Setting Auto Reboot Enable Auto Reboot
	Minimize to system tray     Synchronize video frames     DDNS Service	Volume	Every Day
	, Audio P	review Auto Rel	boot

#### 5.1.1 Startup

Check the Mainconsole box to execute Mainconsole system when windows startup.

Check the following 3 main functions and 5 network services to auto activate functions when Mainconsole system is execute, including Schedule Recording System, Smart Guard System, Counting Application, Live Streaming Server, Remote Desktop Server, 3GPP Server, Remote Desktop Server and Central Management Service. Checking other options can setup the startup status as Full screen, auto lock system by startup or allow system to auto login with the preset account.

**Setup Auto login:** Enable "Auto login" and click the Setup button to obtain the Auto Login Setup panel, insert the User Account and Password to login automatically when the system starts. Enable the Minimize after login to minimize the Mainconsole window after login.

User Account:	
Password:	
Password Confirm:	
*Fill in second password w	nile Dual Password Validation is set.
	nile Dual Password Validation is set.
*Fill in second password w Second Password: Password Confirm:	nile Dual Password Validation is set.

#### 5.1.2 Storage

Location: Assign the default folder (you can setup several directories for storage) for the system to store all data files. Recommend not to save in system HD (C :\) to avoid PC efficiency drop when free storage is low.

If you have more than one drive available for recording, you may check "Enable Disk Load Balance (Recommend Same Volume Disk)" to evenly distribute recording to multiple drives. This will increase efficiency of the system. Please refer design tool for evaluation.

#### Video Recycling:

This setup allow user configure different recycle criteria for different cameras and for different Record video of

the same camera.

General setting: Set the standard limit to let the system recycle automatically. The system will start to recycle if the disk space is less than the indicated percentage (default is 10%, minimum is 5%).

Option setting: Set different recycle days for Record 1 / Record 2 so can keep different length of recordings.

eo Recycle Settir	ngs					
General setting: Always keep	5	% disk space.				
Optional setting:	keep define	d recording days —				
🔽 Only keep	365	day(s) for Reco	ird 1.			
Only keep	365	day(s) for Reco	rd 2.			
Allow except	ion					_
Select camera i	to customize	9	Exceptional recycle duration		Edit	
Camera			Camera	Record1	Record2	
B 03 Lobby 04 IVS_Roc 05 Park1	f	¢				
otice: "-" indicate	s the chann	el follows the Gener	ral Setting setup (% of disk space.		ок 🛛 🗶 Са	ince

Allow exception: Drag and drop the camera(s) to the right panel and will pops up a setup window as below to input the special recycle criteria. In below, the 2 recordings of the first camera were configured with different recycle criteria: Record 1: 7 days; Record 2: 30 days.

Camera:	VS_Shopping	Mall
Exceptional re	cycle dration:	
🔽 Keep	7	day(s) for Record 1.
✓ Keep	30	day(s) for Record 2.

If you expect a recording utilize the space in maximum, you can leave black in the keep x days. By setting this, the symbol would become "-", ad the length of Record 2 will depend on the remaining space of available space. This also means this recoding has lowest priority, so it would be recycled first when disk space is insufficient in order to meet or recording settings.

cle Excep	tion	×	Camera	Record1	Record2
			📇 08 Camera 08	10 day(s)	-
Camera:	Camera 08				
exceptiona	I recycle duration:		2		
🔽 Keep	7	day(s) for Record 1.			
Г Кеер		day(s) for Record 2.			

#### Note:

- 1. The system will detect the storage space of default location firstly, if the default storage space is exhausted, the video will be stored to the next directory.
- 2. If all the status of locations exceeds the storage rule, the system will start recycling in an hour progress.
- 3. Recycle priority: keep % of dis space > keep x days > keep days.
- 4. Recycle example:

#### Example 1: Set "keep 10% of disk space"; Current available space is still more than 10%, ex:15%.

- a. For the recordings set as "keep x days": Mainconsole will start to delete the oldest recording when it's data length reach x days.
- b. For the recordings set as "keep days": Mainconsole continue record and will start delete the oldest recoding when available disk space reach 10%.

#### Example 2: Set "keep 10% of disk space"; Current available space is10%.

- a. For the recordings set as "keep days": Mainconsole will start to delete the oldest recording. The new space after delete will be used to store the recording which set as "Keep x days".
- b. For the recordings set as "keep x days": Mainconsole will start to delete the oldest recording when it's data length reach x days.
- c. Mainconsole continue delete the oldest recordings of "keep days" until it remains only 1 day Then, Mainconsole will start to delete the oldest recordings of "keep x days" in order to follow the rule: keep 10% of disk space.

Log Recycling: Click the button to obtain the Advanced Recycle Setting panel. Set the days that you want to keep the event or Keep all event logs within interval of video files.

Event Log: Delete the event log data that is older than the number of days set.

System Log: Delete the system log data that is older than the number of days set.

Counting: Delete the counting application data that is older than the number of days set.

Metadata Transaction: Delete the metadata transaction data that is older than the number of days set.

Resource Report: Delete the Resource report data that is older than the number of days set.

Advanced Recycle Setting		
- Event Log		
C Keep event log within interval of video files		
Keep event log for	7	days
System Log		
C Keep system log within interval of video files		
Keep system log for	14	days
Counting		
C Keep counting log within interval of video files		
Keep counting log for	90	days
Metadata Transaction		
C Keep Metadata transaction within interval of vide	eo files	
Keep Metadata transactioin for	90	days
Resource Report		
C Keep resource report within interval of video file	s	
Keep resource report for	90	days
Export and Backup Log		
C Keep export and backup log within interval of vio	ieo files	
Keep export and backup log for	14	days
C Keep export and backup log forever		
	-	
	/ ок	X Cancel

#### 5.1.3 Status Display

Check the boxes of the information that you wish to see in the information display window in the Mainconsole.



• Status Display: Select the information such as Current Date, Current Time, Login User, Free Disk Space, IP Camera Bit rate and User Defined Text.

Advanced Setting
_ Temperature
CPU Temperature
Celsius Degree
C Fahrenheit Degree
✓ Motherboard Temperature
Celsius Degree
C Fahrenheit Degree
Fan Speed
🗖 CPU Fan Speed
🖵 Power Fan Speed
System Resource
Total CPU Loading
Total Memory Usage
Network Utilization
🗖 Total Upload Bitrate
Total Download Bitrate
Miscellaneous
☐ System uptime
V OK X Cancel

Enable DDNS

Provider

User name Password

Host name

Update period

🖌 ОК

DtDNS

-

16 minutes

X Cancel

Advanced Setting: Click the button to obtain the Advanced Setting
 Panel to select Temperature, Fan Speed, System Resource, Network Utilization information and System
 Uptime info you wish to display.

#### 5.1.4 Miscellaneous

Automatically Popup Event Report: Event report dialog to automatically popup when events are detected. Make sure to stop Smart Guard System before you modify the setting, otherwise the modification will not take effect.

Minimize to system tray: Enable the Option to minimize the Mainconsole to be an icon in notification area of windows task bar when pressing the minimize button.



**Note:** Insert the username and password of Mainconsole again when clicking the minimized MainConsole icon in notification area of windows task bar to start monitoring.

Synchronize video frames: Select to avoid image tearing problems that may occur while CPU loading is increased.

• DDNS Service: Dynamic Domain Name Server (DDNS) function allows you to use Live View or Web View to connect to the Mainconsole through Internet event if you have a dynamic IP address.

Click the DDNS button to obtain the Dynamic DNS Setup panel. Set up the DDNS function by selecting the provider type, filling with user name, password and hostname, and adjust the update period.

#### 5.1.5 Audio Preview

**Default Channel:** Select the audio channel that you wish to hear from in "Default Channel".
**Enable Audio on Active Channel:** Select the "Enable Audio on Active Channel" option to hear the audio from the selected video channel (selected by mouse) on each video grid of Mainconsole. The default channel will play if no specific video channel is selected.

Volume: Adjust the volume with the "volume bar."



System plays the audio of "default channel"



System plays the audio of the upper-left "selected channel"

## 5.1.6 Auto Reboot

Check the option of "Enable Auto Reboot" so that you can reboot the system on the time you select.

Step 1: Check the option of "Enable Auto Reboot."

Step 2: Select the time you want to reboot.

**Note:** Enable "Mainconsole", "Auto Login", "Setup login account" and check other status in Startup section so when PC reboots the system will run normally.

	Remote Playback Serv	ver
Auto Reboot	GPP Server	
🔲 Enable Auto Reboot	🔲 Remote Desktop Serv	er
	Central Management	Service
Every Day 💌	Full Screen	
at 12:00 AM	F Auto Lock System	
	Auto Login	Setup

Startup Main Console

Schedule Recording System
 Smart Guard System
 Counting Application

Live Streaming Server

F Auto Adv Intelligent Video Surveillance

-				Intelligent N	IVR Software
	🖕 Setting			×	
Search —	General Camera I/O Device PTZ Confi	ig   Hotline   Address Book   Monitor Display   Joystic	sk		
Insert	P       Image: CAM01 Arecont AV10005         Image: CAM02 IVS_Shopping Mall         Image: CAM03 Fish eye         Image: CAM04 Lobby         Image: CAM05 IVS_Roof         Image: CAM06 AV2125         Image: CAM07 Park1	GAM7 Parts			
Delete '		Camera Settings	Show Video Infos		
		Park1	Date	2013/08/15	
		Camera Settings	Time	PM05:48:00	
		Stream Profile	Camera Numbe	er	
		Go to Web Interface	Camera Name		
		Lens Setting	Bitrate		
		Video Parameter	Apply All	Font	
	-	. 19 <b>L</b>		OK X Cancel	

# 5.2.1 Add Camera

Four function buttons will be included in the Setting/Camera panel if you have our Hybrid Surveillance System license for IP camera.

**Search:** Click the Search icon for the Search IP Camera panel. The system will start scanning automatically; Click the Stop Scan button to stop scanning any time.

evice Found:			Stop Sc	an
P	Vendor	Model	MAC	1
192.168.1.131	LevelOne	FCS-5011	00-40-25-00-00-06	
192.168.1.43	Panasonic	BL-C10	00-80-f0-56-d6-ad	
192.168.1.130	LevelOne	FCS-4000	00-40-25-00-00-13	
192.168.1.97	LevelOne	WCS-2010	00-11-6B-80-44-F1	
192.168.1.90	LevelOne	FCS-1010	00-11-6B-80-44-BD	
192.168.1.60	AXIS	207	00-40-8C-72-47-B5	
192.168.1.93	LevelOne	FCS-3000	00-11-6B-80-3A-05	
192.168.1.98	LevelOne	FCS-1040	00-11-6B-80-47-01	
192.168.1.92	LevelOne	WCS-2030	00-11-6B-80-32-2B	
192.168.1.94	LevelOne	FCS-1030	00-11-6B-80-36-FD	
	· 10			0
P Camera Option –				
Camera Name:	LevelOne FCS-	5011 (192.168.1.	131)	_
User Name:	1			
Password:	[			

Fill in the user name and password for each IP camera found and click OK to add it to the camera list. Insert: Click the Insert icon for the IP/Video Server Setting panel and add IP cameras to the list. See following part (IP Camera/Video Server Setting panel) for detail.

Delete: Click the Delete button to remove the selected IP camera(s) from the system. Click OK to finalize the modification.

Configure Click the Camera Settings button for the IP/Video Server Setting panel. You can modify the IP camera settings with the Setting panel. See following part (IP Camera / Video Server Setting panel) for detail.

5.2.2 IP Camera / Video Server Setting panel

	IP Camera / Video Server S	Setting X
Network ——	Network	
	Name:	
	IP Address:	🗆 🗖 DNS
	Port:	80
	User Name:	
	Password:	
	Protocol:	CTCP CUDP CHTTP
Device ——	Device	
	Vendor:	Auto Detect
	Camera Model:	
	Video Channel:	<b>☞ 1 □</b> 2 <b>□</b> 3 <b>□</b> 4
		□5 □6 □7 □8
Description	Description	
i i	Video Codec: Audio Codec: Camera:1, DI:4, DO:3	
		✓ OK X Cancel

- Network: Fill in required info of the Network field (including Name, IP Address, Port, User Name, Password and Protocol) referring to the instruction provided by the camera manufacturer. Check "Use DNS" to use domain name instead of IP address.
- **Device:** Choose the IP camera manufacturer from the drop-down menu. Alternatively Click "Auto Detect" and the detected vendor /model name will show in the box.

**Description:** Shows information for the IP camera.

## 5.2.3 Camera Settings

amera List	📩 Search 😁 Insert 🔭 Delete 📑 Config	CAM1 PARKIN	g liot
	☑ IS CAM01 PARKING LOT         ☑ IS CAM02 EAST DOCK         ☑ IS CAM03 ATOMIC CLOCK         ☑ IS CAM04 LAB ENTRANCE         ☑ IS CAM05 AARON'S OFFICE         ☑ IS CAM05 AARON'S OFFICE         ☑ IS CAM05 LOBBY         ☑ IS CAM08 BRANDYWINE	Setting PARKING LOT	Miscellaneo
		Go to Web Interface	Camer
		Camera Settings	Camer
		Video Parameter	2.25
			🔽 Came

Camera List: The camera(s) connected to the system will show on the panel, click the name of the camera to adjust the setting.

# Camera Name: Name the camera.

Camera Settings: Set the camera parameter such as resolution and frame rate offered by camera vendor. If the camera supports Multi-stream, you can enable the function by check "Enable Multi-Stream".

	quality	
Enable Multi-Stre	am	
Camera : AV2125		
Stream 1 (Main) —		
Video Format:	H.264	•
Resolution:	FULL	-
Frame Rate:	10	•
Quality:	Normal(10)	•
Image Adjustment		
Enable Flip		
Lighting:	60Hz	•
Audio		

**Note:** Multi-stream function allows Mainconsole receive 3 different video streams and configure each streaming parameters ex: fps, video format, resolution. Please check Mainconsole device pack support list for supported feature.

**Note:** Not every camera model support Multi-stream configuration, please refer latest camera support list for detail description.

Stream 1 (Main) -	-		Stream 2			Stream 3		
Video Format	H.264	-	Video Format	H.264	-	Video Format:	H.264	-
Resolution:	FULL	-	Resolution:	HALF	-	Resolution:	HALF	153
	THOLE	<u> </u>		INALE			INALE	-
Frame Rate:	10	•	Frame Rate:	20	•	Frame Rate:	1	-
Quality:	Normal(10)	•	Quality:	Normal(10)	•	Quality:	Normal(10)	Ţ
	1	_		1			1	
s recommended	to config Stream 1 with hig	heet recolution	and frame rate since	tream 1 would be binded t	to "Main Profile"	ac default		
mage Adjustmen		neotreooluuon		Arcum I would be billiou i		uo ucium.		
Enable Flip	u							
It Enable i lip								
Lighting:	60Hz	<b>•</b>						

Now you can configure the parameters for the 3 different streams.

For DVR card, "Main" and "Sub" is offered, and the parameter can be set as below:

Stream Profile: Stream profiles are pre-defined to preferred settings which will respond from the query of the remote live view function. Each profile has different Format, Frame, Resolution, Quality and Bit rate (Kbps) settings, you are able to config them individually.

For the camera support Multi-stream function, the 3 different source streams could be connected to Mainconsole and automatically maps to different stream profiles. Click stream profile to select the source stream you would like to change.

	Stream Profile				-			
	► Camera: AV Select to Set stre							(Multi-stream : On)
Oliala Chas and Dasfile	Stream Profile	Source Stream	Format	Frame Rate	Resolution	Quality	Bitrate (Kbps)	
Click Stream Profile	Main	Stream 1	H.264	10	full	10		
for configuration	High	Stream 1	H.264	10	full	10		
	Normal	Stream 2	H.264	20	half	10	175	
	Low	Stream 2	H.264	Key frame	half	10	0.20	
	Minimum	Stream 2	H.264	20	half	10		
		s (Change parameter	for profile		Video Prev	iew		
	Main		_				and the second s	territoria de la Constante de la Const
	Source Stream:	Stream 1	Can	nera Settings	- 10			
	☐ Keep key fra	me only						
	Advanced Profile	Setting					×_	
Set Profile for	Local display p	ofile: Main	Set L	ayout Profile			DYV -	A.3.3.7
Local Display						1.1		
Local Display -	Profile for analy	sis:	Main	•	100	1013		
	(For Transcode	Record/ Motion Reco	rd/ IVS/ Sm	art Guard/				
Set Profile for	Counting Analys					2 5		
Set Frome for	Notice: Profile of	uality should be high	er than CIF	. 15 fps.		<u>)</u> צו		
Video Analysis								
Fideo Analysis							View	n Real Size
	Copy to						🗸 ок	X Cancel

## • Advance Profile Setting

Local display profile: It shows which stream profile of this channel being used currently for local display. Click the button "Set Layout Profile" to configure which stream profile expected to be used under different layout. For example, choose "Main" profile for layout 1x1 and choose "Minimum" profile for layout 5x5, so the video quality will be different on the two different layouts. By adjusting the setting, the CPU decode loading can be saved efficiently.

Layout Setting			X	
Camera: IVS Shopping N For this camera, please choo		m profile for differen	nt grid size.	
Layout Profile Settings Layout type: Stream Profile: Video format Frame rate: Resolution: Quality: Bitrate:	(4:3) 1x1 Main H264 10 fps 1920x1080 Normal			Change Stream profile manually
Default			Apply to All Layout	Apply setting to other layout

A set of default stream profile was chosen as below, but user can change the setting manually.

Grid Profile	Profile 1 (IP cam)	Profile 2 (IP cam)	Profile1 (DVR card)	Profile 2 (DVR card)
(16:9)1+3	Main	Normal	Main	Sub
(16:9)2+4	Main	Normal	Main	Sub
(16:9)1+8	Main	Normal Main		Sub
(16:9)4×3	Normal		Sub	
(4:3)1×1	Main		Main	
(4:3)2×2	Main		Main	
(4:3)3×3	Normal		Sub	
(4:3)4×4	Normal		Sub	
(4:3)1+5	Main	Normal	Main	Sub
(4:3)2+8	Main	Normal	Main	Sub
(4:3)1+12	Main	Normal	Main	Sub
(4:3)N×N	Minimum		Minimum	

				ingern reek oone
(HotSpot)1+12	Main	Normal	Main	Sub
(HotSpot)1+17	Main	Minimum	Main	Minimum

- Profile for analysis: In order to conduct video analysis such as event detection and advanced IVS, user need to assign a steam profile for this task. To make sure the video analysis accuracy, the minimum resolution and fps would be: CIF/15 fps.
- Copy to: Allow user to copy the stream profile of this camera to all the other cameras Settings will be copied includes:
  - 1. The mapping relation between source stream and stream profile
  - 2. Keep key frame only setting.
  - 3. The selected stream profile for analysis.

\*Cameras with Multi-stream enabled can only be copied to other cameras with Multi-stream on while cameras with Multi-stream disabled can only be copied to other cameras with Multi-stream off.

Go to Web Interface: Go to vendor's website interface to General Setting the camera setting Lens Setting: ImmerVision Lens and Generic dewarp are supported. Click to enable lens or setup General Settings, such as camera position.

Video Parameter: Adjusts the video's brightness, contrast, saturation, and color hue values. Show video Infos: Select the information that you wish to see in the on-screen display, or the sub-screen of the camera. Click the Font button to setup the font style.

# Note:

The types of stream profiles and options will differ among stream sources.

- IP cameras on ST-EVSPRO+ License:
- 5 profiles include Main (not General Setting), High, Normal, Low and Minimum (for Smart Phone Clients). IP cameras on ST-EVSPRO License:
  - 3 fixed, not General Setting profiles including Main, Low and Minimum (for Smart Phone Clients).

Digital Input Monitor .		3		0		V OK	Cancel	_ Digital Output Simulation
	Device: I IP Address: F	Fish eye IP Camera FakeVideo/test.dat 80		DO0 DO1 DO2	Output 0 Output 1 Output 2 out Simulation	N/O N/O N/O		
List of devices —	Image: Park1         Image: Park2         Image: Park2	IP Camera IP Camera IP Camera IP Camera IP Camera IP Camera		Pin           ✓ DI0           ✓ DI1           ✓ DI2           ✓ DI3	Ad Camera: Name Input 0 Input 1 Input 2 Input 3	Fish eye           Signal Type           N/O           N/O           N/O           N/O           N/O		
I/O Device Setting —	Module	Device IP Camera		Name: Type:	t/output pins of sele	Input 0		- Device Setting
I/O Device Setting —	Setting General Camera I/O D	evice PTZ Config	Hotline   Address Book   Moni			cted I/O module		

# 5.3 Setting - I/O Device

I/O Device Setting:

Click

# Intelligent NVR Software

- Module Setting: Name the module device and ID that has been connected to the digital input/output device(s) to your system.
- Device: This column displays the device(s) already installed to the system.
- IP address: key in the IP address for I/O device via TCP/IP connection
- Port(for TCP/IP connection)/COM Port(for USB connection): key in port or COM port
- ID: Select the number of the I/O port to which you plug the ribbon cable.

for test connectio	n,

for add, **a** for delete and

d 🛄 for modify.

Digital Input Monitor: The device(s) is turned on if the dot is red. By triggering the digital input device, the related icon will light up. This is used to check that the device is correctly connected.

**Digital Output Simulation:** The device(s) is turned on if the dot is red. By clicking on the icon, you may trigger the digital device connected to the system. This can be used to test if the output device is correctly connected.

# **Device Setting**

- Name: Insert the name of the device (input and output).
- Type: Select the device type from the drop-down menu.
  - 1. N/O: Normal Open.
  - 2. N/C: Normal Close.
- Associated Camera: You may assign one camera to each digital input device. Smart Guard will collect snapshots from these cameras upon certain triggered events. For details please refer to 4.2 Action. DI's included with IP cameras will keep its own camera as default associated camera.

# 5.4 Setting - PTZ General Setting



Install PTZ cameras and follow the instructions of the camera manufacturer. A PTZ camera is usually connected to the PC with RS-485/RS-422.

Check the box on the camera list to activate the PTZ control function of a PTZ camera.

Basic Setting: Select the camera model, com port, baud rate, and address according to your PTZ camera.

**Note:** If the camera model is an IP PTZ camera, you can work PTZ function directly without the com port, baud rate, and address settings.

Advanced Setting: You may setup the pan speed, tilt speed, zoom speed and auto pan speed. Adjust the settings by dragging the bars.

#### Miscellaneous:

- Patrol Group: You can setup the Patrol Group, please see page 23 for detail.
- Default PTZ Preset: By enabling this function, the PTZ camera will automatically go back to a default preset point when no PTZ commands are under action. To enable this option, check "Back to PTZ preset after idle" and define idle periods and a default preset point.

Pre	nfiguration eset Name: eset Number	Γ			
Preset Number: Preset Type:			Set Pres Go to Pr		
	Add	Delete		Updat	e
ID	Name		Preset	Туре	
1 2 3 4	point 17 function 1 function 2 function 3		80 99 95 65	Set Set Go Go	
		✓	OK	Xc	ancel

			(
30	Sec.		
PTZ home	•		
$\checkmark$	0K	🗶 Ca	ancel
		PTZ home	PTZ home

• User-Defined Preset: User-Defined Preset for the analog speed dome can trigger the extra-function of the speed dome itself, for example auto-tracking, login menu of camera...etc. You can refer to the detailed description of each analog speed dome on its user manual.

Step1: Type the Preset Name.

Step 2: Type the Preset Number.

Step 3: Select the Preset Type.

Step 4: Press the buttons to Add, Delete, or Update preset setup.

5.5 Setting – Hotline

# Intelligent NVR Software

				Telephone		
*SMTP Server:		*Port	25	Modem:		
*E-Mail Sender:				Wave File:		
E-Mail Subject	<no subject=""></no>			Automatic hang	pup after	30 sec
Body Content:			*	Make test phon	e call to:	
SMTP server needs a	uthentication	г	T SSL		Dial	Hang Up
UserAccount		1		-		
Password:		Send Te	st Mail	GSM modem		
				Port	None	<u>•</u>
TP				Baud Rate:	115200	*
*Server:		*Port	21	PIN Code:		
*Login ID:				Interval:	1	minutes
*Password:				Send a test me	ssage to:	
Upload directory:	1				-	
		Upload Tes	t File			Test

General Setting the settings of various contacts or devices, including E-mail, FTP, GSM modem and Telephone calls which will be triggered upon event detection.

E-mail: Input the following information: Server, Port, and Sender's E-mail address, E-mail's subject title, Body content and SSL option for encrypted transmission. Click the Send Test Mail button to test the settings. Note: \* indicates mandatory fields

FTP: Input the following information: server, Port, Login ID, Password, and Upload directory, according to your FTP type to enable/disable Passive mode. You may Click the Upload Test File button to test the settings. Note: \* indicates mandatory fields

**Telephone:** Select the modem that the system is going to dial the info call with, and then insert the phone number you want to dial to. (A modem is required for voice transition.)

Note: 1. You must use a modem with voice capability.

2. You may select a Wave format file; it will be played in the phone to alarm the person who picks up the phone call.

GSM modem: Set the Port and Baud Rate of the GSM modem device, and then enter PIN code. You can setup the interval of send SMS message. You may Click Test to send a test SMS message.

Note: The interval is set to fix a minimum time period between two SMS messages. If set as 60 min, the SMS between 60 min would be deleted and not sent to user.

## 5.6 Setting - Address Book

Manage the address book from which you may send out a phone call or an E-mail when an unusual event is detected.

	e and contact information				
User Name:					
Phone:					
E-Mail:					
Description:					
Contact persons		Add	Clear	Modify	Remove
User name	Phone	E-Mail	Description		
👕 Michael	5551123125	mke@hotline.com			

#### 5.7 Setting – Monitor Display

Cam	eras List	
Setting          General       Camera       I/O Device       PTZ Config       Hotline       Address Book       Monitor Display       Joysti         Primary       Secondary       Selected Channel       Selected Channel       B01 IVS_Shopping Mall       B02 Fish eye_1       B02 Fish eye_1       B02 Fish eye_1       B02 Fish eye_1       B03 Lobby 1       B04 IVS_Roof_1       B05 Park1       B05 Park1_1       B05 P	Auto Scan Primary Channel (Not Used) • Secondary Channel (Not Used) • Auto-scan Interval 30 sec. Layout NxN Type: 5x5 •	—— Auto Scan —— Layout
Software Display on Monitor         Run Mainconsole System on Monitor         Run Mainconsole Secondary screen on Monitor         Run Playback System on Monitor	✓ OK X Cancel	

# Software Display Option

**Software Display Option:** Execute Mainconsole and Playback System on the assigned monitor by checking the box. Make sure to adjust the display setting of your computer in advance to avoid system error. **Cameras List:** The left side displays a list of all cameras; modify the cameras shown on primary/ secondary

monitor in the right window.

Auto Scan: Activate auto scan to rotate the channels/ cameras on the display screen.

For instance, you may select to show only 4 sub-screens on the Mainconsole while having 16 channels connected to the system. With auto scan function, you will be able to see all 16 channels by turns. You can set up a primary channel that will always be on the screen and a secondary channel that has secondary priority.

Layout: Choose the number of divisions for NxN division on the Mainconsole screen.

#### 5.8 Setting – Joystick

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

		<b>Function</b>	/ Parameter
Setting			×
	mera   1/0 Device   PTZ Config ystick:   CH PRODUCTS IP DES	Hotline User Account Address Book Mo	nitor Display Joystick
Button	Function	Parameter	
Button 1	Goto Preset Point	1	
Button 2 Button 3 Button 4 Button 5 Button 5 Button 6 Button 7 Button 9 Button 10 Button 11 Button 12		2 3 4	
	Import	Export Default	OK Cancel

Function: You can choose the function from the drop-down menu for the button of the joystick.

🤤 Setting		
General Ca	mera 🛛 I/O Device 🗍 PTZ Config 🗍 Hotline 🗍 Use	r Account 🛛 Address Book
Active Joy		OLLER 💌
Button	Function	Parameter
Button 1 Button 2 Button 3 Button 4 Button 5 Button 6 Button 7 Button 8 Button 9 Button 10 Button 11 Button 12	Goto Preset Point  N/A  Goto Preset Point  Goto Camera  Goto Camera  Goto Next Camera Switch Screen Layout  Toggle Single Camera View  Toggle Full Screen  Start/Stop Auto Scan  PTZ Speed Up  PTZ Speed Up  PTZ Speed Down  Zoom Wide  Zoom Tele Start/Stop Patrol Switch Active Monitor	• 1 2 3 4
	Import Ex	port Default

Note: Following is a complete list of all functions:

- 1. N/A
- 2. Goto Preset Point (including Home)
- 3. Goto Camera
- 4. Goto Previous Camera
- 5. Goto Next Camera
- 6. Switch Screen Layout
- 7. Toggle Single Camera View
- 8. Toggle Full Screen
- Parameter: You can choose the parameter of the function from the drop-down menu.

Default: You can set the default setting for the joystick.

Export: You can export the setting of the joystick.

Import: You can import the setting of the joystick.

# 5.9 User Account Setting

General Setting all user accounts under this settings page. Note that this page is only accessible by the default admin account.

## User

Add new users and modify or remove existing users.

You may choose to add **Basic Users** directly in the system or import users from MS Active Directory (MSAD) as **Windows Users**.

\*Note: Please remember to add your Windows login and user account to the local PC's administrator's user group. Mainconsole can be launched by administrators only.

- 9. Start/Stop Auto Scan
- 10. PTZ Speed Up
- PTZ Speed Down
   Zoom Wide
- 13. Zoom Tele
- 14. Start/Stop Patrol
- 15. Switch Active Monitor

- 82 -

		x	Intelligent NVR Software
User Account Setting User Privilege User name Group Description Login Username admin Admin Administrator admin ad User Basic User ad  Delete Basic User	User Account User Account Type: User Name: Group: Description: Password: Password Confirm: IP Enable dual password validat Second password: Password Confirm: IP Disable User Account IP Confirm: IP Disable User Account IP Keep remote login for IP Access Video Period for	Basic User ad User Basic User ****	User account Settings
		c Synchronize User Setting	
		V OK X Cancel	

Add Basic User

Add/Remove/Synchronize Windows User

# **Basic Users**

Click 🚨 to add a new Basic User. Click 퉓 to delete an existing Basic User.

Create and modify the content of each user account under User Account Setting:

- User name: Insert the user name.
- Group: Assign the group for each user.
- There are 3 default privilege profiles of account groups:

Admin: Have privileges of all system functions and devices, except adding/deleting/modifying privileges of other users.

Power User: Have limited privileges of system functions and complete privileges of assigned devices. User: All the privileges of system functions are forbidden. Users can only manage assigned devices.

- Description: Insert the description related to each user.
- Login Username: the user account display name when login.
- Password: Insert the password assigned to each user.
- Password confirm: Insert again to confirm the password.
- Enable dual password validation: Insert the second password assigned to each user. If this function enabled, the second password will be required for certain operation depends on the setting of "Privilege" page.
- Disable User Account: By checking this option, the account's access to the system will be blocked.
   Disabled accounts will be marked with a cross on the icon<sup>2</sup>.
- Note: Only the default admin account cannot be disabled.
- Keep remote login for \_\_\_\_ minutes: Insert the duration to auto kick out account after logging in from Remote Live Viewer or Remote Playback server.
- Access Video Period for \_\_\_\_ day(s): Insert the duration for the account to access video period.

# Windows Users

Click 👹 to add/remove/synchronize Windows Users.

## Select User

Check users or folders under **Select Active Directory user(s)** and click **OK** to add Windows Users.

#### Select User $\mathbf{x}$ EricChen Active Directory Domain: Select Active Directory user(s): 🖃 🗹 🗁 Administrators (Administrators 可以完全不受限制地存取 🔺 🗹 🕵 Administrator 🗹 🕵 Demonstration 🗹 🕵 USER (Eric Chen) 由一□ 1 HelpServicesGroup (武明及支援中心群組) -----□ 1 Petwork Configuration Operators (在這個群組中的成員回 \_\_\_\_\_ □ \_\_\_ Remote Desktop Users (在這個群組中的成員被授權進行 □ Carlicator (支援網域中的檔案複寫) > < Select All Deselect All Group mapping: MSAD Group Main Console Group 🗅 Administrators Admin 🗸 OK 🗶 Cancel

# Intelligent NVR Software

Click **Select All** to check all available users and folders, or click **Deselect All** to uncheck all users.

# Group Mapping:

Selected Windows users will be grouped according to default mapping:

MSAD Group	Mainconsole Group
Administrator	Admin
Guest	User
Other	PowerUser

You may modify group setting for each user later under the User Account page.

Click **OK** when you are done adding Windows users.

Synchronization results will be displayed for confirmation.

<b>tive Directory Sync T</b> Conflicts:	ool		Please refer to the default solution for all conflicts:
User Name	Description 管理電腦/網域的內建帳戶 這是個說明及支援服務的廠商帳戶 提供速端協助的帳戶	Solution Add to MainConsole Add to MainConsole Add to MainConsole Add to MainConsole Add to MainConsole	<ul> <li>New accounts added from AD domain: Add to Mainconsole</li> <li>Accounts from AD domain removed: Delete from Mainconsole</li> <li>Account description modified: Update description</li> <li>Encountered admin account: Skip admin account</li> <li>Newly added account from AD domain conflicts with existing basic user account: Replace basic user account</li> </ul>

Uncheck items to skip applying solution to Mainconsole user account settings. For example, if you uncheck an "Add to Mainconsole" solution, the new account will not be added to Mainconsole's user account list.

## Automatic Synchronize Windows User Setting

Instead of manually adding and updating Windows users, you may also config the system to automatically synchronize all Windows users at a specific period. Click *b* to do this.

etting 🛛 🔀
setting
ze Windows users
1 Day(s)
10:00

# Eye View Smart

# Intelligent NVR Software

- Automatically synchronize Windows users: Check to enable automatic synchronization.
- Synchronized period: Config the synchronization to start every <u>days</u>.
  Synchronized time:
- Define at what time the synchronization should start.

Note: Auto synchronization will apply all default solutions to conflicts.

Privilege: Define detailed privilege of functions and devices for each user account.



# Copy Privilege to

- Function: General Setting settings, operation related, system General Setting, and privilege of remote access.\*
- **Device:** General Setting device privileges of camera, digital output and metadata sources in Mainconsole and client applications.
- Copy Privilege to...: Click this button to copy privilege settings of any account to another.

**Note:** The privilege of default admin account cannot be configured. "Setup TV-Out function" is not available if there is no Video out card installed.

## 5.10 Auto Backup Setting

General Setting your system to automatically backup video data on a daily or weekly basis. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

Auto Backup Config: General Setting auto backup settings on this page.

- Enable Schedule Backup: Check to enable backup process.
- Select Camera(s) to Backup: Choose all channels to backup.
- Option

Location: Define backup route.

Backup Playback System: Check to backup the playback application with each process. Send Mail when Backup Failed: Check to receive an email notification when backup fails. Click **Setup** for email General Setting. Select one or more contacts from the address book and General Setting customized message content.

Recurrence: Choose start time and Recurrence: Daily or Weekly modes.

To Auto Backup Setting		🔱 Select Contactor	$\overline{\mathbf{X}}$
Auto Backup Config Auto Backup Statistic C Enable Schedule Backup Select Camera(s) to Backup: C B CAM01 IVS_Shopping Mall C CAM02 Fish eye C B CAM03 Lobby C B CAM04 IVS_Roof C CAM05 Park1	Option Location: C:\ Backup file: Record 1 ▼ Backup Playback System ✓ Send Mail when Backup Failed Select Contactor Recurrence Start Time: 01:00 ★ Recurrence: Daily ▼ Every 7 Day(s)	Ayu ayumi@	@email.com vavex.co.jp isony.com
	OK X Cancel		

Auto Backup Statistic: Shows statistics on current or latest backup status. Click Refresh to update.

Auto Backup Config       Auto Backup Statistic         Current Backup Status:       Idle         Next Backup Stat Time:       N/A         Next Retried Process Time:       N/A         Last Backup       N/A         Last Backup Start:       N/A         Backup Stop:       N/A         Backup Video Period:       0 min 0 sec	💩 Auto Backup Settin,	£			X
Next Backup Start Time: N/A Next Retried Process Time: N/A Last Backup Last Backup Start: N/A Last Backup Stop: N/A	Auto Backup Config	Auto Backup Statistic	c	Refresh	
Next Retried Process Time: N/A Last Backup Last Backup Start: N/A Last Backup Stop: N/A	Current Backup	Status: Id	ile	1	
Next Retried Process Time: N/A Last Backup Last Backup Start: N/A Last Backup Stop: N/A	Next Backup St	art Time: N	I/A		
Last Backup Stop: N/A Last Backup Stop: N/A	Next Retried Pr	ocess Time: N	l/A	Refresh	
Last Backup Stop: N/A	Last Backup —				
	Last Backup St	art: N/	l/A		
Backup Video Period: 0 min 0 sec	Last Backup St	op: NJ	l/A		
	Backup Video F	'eriod: 0 r	min O sec		
Backup Size: 0.00 GB	Backup Size:	0.	.00 GB		
Backup Result. Complete	Backup Result	C	Complete		

## • Current Backup Status:

Idle: not active or awaiting next backup process Backup...: Backup under process Retry...: Previous backup failed, awaiting retry

- Next Backup Start Time: Scheduled time for next backup process
- Next Retried Process Time: Scheduled time for next backup retry process. N/A when status is Idle or under Backup.
- Last Backup

Last Backup Start: Time and date last backup started. Last Backup Stop: Time and date last backup was completed or had failed. Backup Video Period: Total time spent on last backup process. Backup Size: Total file size of last backup. Backup Result: Completed: Last backup succeeded. Failed: Last backup failed, under retry process. Timeout: Last backup failed, retry process timed out.

# 5.11 Counting Report Setting

Configure system to automatically send out the people counting report via E-mail or FTP periodically. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

## **General setting:**

# Intelligent NVR Software

- Mode: Select counting source you would like to backup.
- Frequency: Define the report frequency.
- Resend if first transmitting fails: Setup retry internal and times.
- Report through: Select report method.

# Format Setting:

- Report format: Select report format (Diagram / .CSV) and file name prefix.
- Advance setting: Customized column name for .CSV format.

### E-mail Setting:

• Synchronize with Hotline E-Mail setting: Click this option to synchronize the setting so no need to input information again. Skip the option to input all necessary information of an SMTP server.

#### FTP Setting:

• Synchronize with Hotline FTP setting: Click this option to synchronize the setting so no need to input information again. Skip the option to input all necessary information of an FTP server.

unting Report Sett	ing load Counting Report			×
General Setting	Format Setting E-mail	I Setting   FTP Setting	g	
Basic				
Mode:	Basic Counting	C Adv. IVS	3 Counting	
Frequency:	Hourly	<ul> <li>Send every</li> </ul>	y 1 • Hour(s)	
Start from	01:05	То	01:05	
Resend if first tra	nsmiting fails:			
Retry interval:	1	Min(s)		
Retry times:	10			
Report through:				-
🖂 E-Mail				
FTP				
			V OK X Cance	-
				d

## 5.12 License Manager

The license of the software should be registered first before operating the former version of Intelligent Surveillance System.

Execute the License Management Tool in General Setting >License Manager to activate the license from dongle or serial number allocated with the software package, or de-activate the license then bring it to another PC to activate it again.

**Note:** Please refer to page 126 for the detail setting of License Management tool.



## 5.13 Save/ Load General Setting

The Save/Load General Setting function allows system users to save any specific setting as a CFG (General Setting) file. You may save several different CFG files at a time.

**Save General Setting:** To save a specific setting, go to General Setting - Save/Load General Setting - Save. In the popup window, type in the file name and then save it as a CFG file.

Load General Setting: To load a specific setting, go to General Setting - Save/ Load General Setting - Load. In the popup window, go to the directory that you saved the CFG files at, select any one of them and then click OK to load the file.

**Note:** Mainconsole will be automatically shut down after loading a new General Setting. Restart Mainconsole manually.



5.14 TV-out Setting

# Intelligent NVR Software

\* Note: This function is not available if there is no Analog Capture card ie:SCB-7108/7116 card installed. After installing a SCB-7108/7116 card, a new feature will be added in Mainconsole automatically, Click General Setting 1 and select TV-Out Setting 1.



# $\ensuremath{\,^{\sc r}}$ TV-Out Setting $\ensuremath{\,^{\sc r}}$ window appears.

TV-Out Monitor	Camera	Monitor Display
IV-Out Setting		
TV-Out Monitor         Image: Card 1 (Cam01~Cam16)         Image: V 1         Image: V 2         Image: V 3         Image: Card 2 (Cam17~Cam24)         Image: Card 3 (Cam25~Cam28)         Image: Card 4 (Cam29~Cam32)	-Auto Scan Layout: Primary channel: Secondary channel:	Monitor Display The constraint of the constrai
	Auto-scan interval: Miscellaneous I Enable OSD display: I Enable manual TV-Out pop-up	1 sec. Default 十月 13 2010 15:08:00
		✓ OK X Cancel
Auto Scan	TV Adj	ustment Miscellaneous

TV-Out Monitor: Display all SCB-6000S/7000S/7100 series cards installed in this computer, choosing SCB-7100 series one to Click for TV-out function then users can start to edit the right parts.
 Camera: Displays a list of all cameras.
 Monitor Display: Modify the cameras shown on Monitor Display in the right window. Show the video cameras

which are playing in sequence. Choose the cameras in **Camera** (Multiple choice), then click, the system will have the selected cameras show below **Monitor Display**. If user wants to remove the cameras, select the

cameras then click 🖄, the system will remove from the list.

Auto Scan: Set "Layout", "Primary channel", the form of "Secondary channel" and the interval time of "Auto-scan interval".

TV Adjustment: Users can adjust the position of TV-out screen by this function. Click Default to apply all the settings back to default value.

Miscellaneous: "Enable OSD display" and "Enable manual TV-Out pop-up" settings.

## 5.15 Video Analytics - C Intelligent Video Surveillance

Please refer "IVS Manual" for detailed explanation and configuration.



## 5.16 Video Analytics - Counting Application

Count objects, people or vehicles passing through pre-defined detection zones.

To access this page, login with admin account or user account with privilege to config main system. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.



Camera List: Select which camera would enable counting application. Operation:

Define detection zones: Defined the detection zone.

Define object size: Defined the size of the object to count.

Options: 1Way Counting will take objects going from Region 1 to Region 2 as one count. In **2 Way Counting** mode, it counts either going from Region 1 to Region 2 or from Region 2 to Region 1.

Runtime: Check the boxes to show the counting result on the screen and/ or show object bounding box, which draws the shape of the object that the system detects in red squares. You can choose from the

drop-down menu of how long you want to **reset** the counting number.

Start Simulation: Click to test the setting.

#### 5.17 Video Analytics – Privacy Mask

Mask your video with dark areas to protect your privacy.

To access this page, login with admin account or user account with privilege of Config main system. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

Privacy mask settings will apply to local and remote live view, web live view, local playback, remote playback and web playback.



Camera List: Check cameras to enable privacy mask.

Regional Definition: Click and drag to define privacy masked areas.

Rectangle Count: Maximum 10 rectangles can be drawn to define privacy masked areas. Clear: Click to clear all rectangles.

## 5.18 Metadata Application

## \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

The Metadata application now supports three different data types, including POS, LPR and access control. This tool can be used to General Setting these devices. Note that you will need additional licenses to use these features. Instructions on license activation can be found on page 126. Refer to the Metadata User Manual for more details.

nsert 📩 Delete 🚽 Configure	Settings
el ⊈ Pos u∰ Pos	Display on Video Preview     Aways Display     Lastfor     10     seconds
	Tag Filter
	POS
	New Edit Delete Import Export
	Associated Cameras
	CAM01 Park1 CAM02 Root1 CAM05 Roke_Video CAM05 Cisco
	Display Region Definition
	Default     O User Define

# 5.19 Network Service

# Intelligent NVR Software

There are 5 types of network services:

Live streaming server, Remote playback server, 3GPP service, Remote Desktop, and Central Management Service. From the Mainconsole, go to General Setting - Network Service to obtain the Network Service panel.

An icon shows for each network service in the information window of Mainconsole when started. See 1.1 User Interface Overview for details.

	LiveView	Playback	3GPP	Desktop	CMS
Start	e	D)		<b>\$</b>	
Stop	e	Þ		*	



# 5.19.1 Live Streaming Server

When starting the live streaming function of computer, the system allows remote users to log in to the specific computer and view cameras that are connected to it. As system administrator, user could be able to monitor these accounts in order to maintain the system efficiency.

# Main

On Live Streaming Server panel, administrator can see all the clients who are currently logging in to the computer and watching the live video from the remote side.

Live Streaming	Client Count	0	Kill	Kill All		
	State IP	Camera	Bitrate (	Kbps)		
Remote Playback					L CI	ient l
3GPP Service	Service Server Status: Stopped		Start	Stop	Se Se	ervice
Remote Desktop	Options Port: Maximum Connections: IV Use Default Web Serv	ver	5150 128	Default		
Central Management Push	Port. I♥ Save Log I♥ Enable Audio	LiveSe	80 erver.log	<b>.</b>	• •	ption

## **Client list:**

- Client Count: Show the amount of channels that are connecting to system.
- Kill: Highlight an IP address and Click the "Kill Client" button to block the client from your client list.
- Kill All: Click this button and all clients are blocked from logging into your system.

#### Service:

• Server Status: Click Start/Stop to turn on/off this option.

**Options:** Adjust the setting only when the server is stopped.

- Port: Assign a port for the clients to connect to your system via Remote Live Viewer. Default port is 5150.
- Maximum Connections: Number of connections that are allowed to connect to the system. Default and maximum is 128, one camera video counts as one connection.
- Use Default Web Server: Activate the Web server by checking the box; clients will be able to watch live video via Internet Explorer. The port for live streaming server is set to 80 by default.
   Note: This must be checked in order to access system via IE\*.
- Save Log: Save the log information at appointed folder.
- Enable Audio: Select this option to enable the audio transmission along with video stream.

# Black / White List

<b>P</b>	Main Black / White List Performance	Enable list
Live Streaming	Enable Black List	IP address
C	192 . 168 . 2 . 50 to 192 . 168 . 2 . 80	
Remote Playback	Add to White List Delete	
	Add to Black List	Plack / Mbi
3GPP Service	ID IP Range Access	Black/ Whit
Remote	0 192.168.4.39 - 192.168.4.40 Accept 1 192.168.4.50 - 192.169.4.55 Accept 2 192.168.1.80 - 192.168.1.90 Deny	F 1151
Desktop		
Central Management		Apply to al
Push Notification	Apply to All Network Servers	

- White List: Check the "Enable White List" box to activate the white list filter. Only IP from the white list is allowed to log in.
- Black List: Check the "Enable Black List" box to activate the black list filter. IP from the black list will be blocked.
- IP Address: Enter an IP address into the IP address field on the left. To add an IP address range to the system, enter 2 sets of IP address to indicate a series of IP(s).
- Add/Delete: Add the IP(s) onto the list or remove it from the list.
- Apply to All Network Servers: Apply the settings to both the live streaming server and the remote playback server.



Live Streaming Server log information

# 5.19.2 Remote Playback Server

When starting the remote playback function, the system allows remote users to log in to the specific computer and withdraw data files that are stored on it. As system administrator, user could be able to monitor the accounts logging in to maintain the system efficiency.

# Main

On Remote Playback Server panel, administrator can see all the clients who are currently logging in to the computer and watching the playback video from the remote side.

Networ	k Service	-		Mar -	1000		×]	
	Ţ	Main Black / V	White List   P	erformance				
	Live	User	Count	0	Kill	Kill All		
		IP	Use	r	Bitrate (Kbps)			
Re Pla	mote yback							Client list
	GPP						H	
Se	ervice	Service						
	4	Server Statu	us: Stopped		Start	Stop		Service
Re	mote sktop	Options						
	=	Port:			5160	Default		
Ce	entral	Maximum U			64			Ontions
Mana	igement	Construction of the second second	fault Web Sen	ver				- Options
		Port:			80			
	Push fication	Save Lo	g	IRE	motePlayback.log			
					🗸 ок	X Cance		

#### Client list:

- User Count: Show the number of users that are connecting to system.
- Kill: Highlight an IP address and Click the "Kill Client" button to block the client from your client list.
- Kill All: Click this button and then block all the clients logging to your system.

## Service:

• Server Status: Click Start/Stop to turn on/off this option.

**Options:** Adjust the setting only when the server is stopped.

- Port: Assign a port for the clients to connect to your system via Remote playback server. Default port is 5160.
- Maximum Users: Number of connections that are allowed to connect to the system. Default and maximum is 64.
- Note: One user counts as one account that is logging in to the server.
- Use Default Web Server: Activate the Web server by checking the box; clients will be able to watch live video via Internet Explorer. The port for live streaming server is set to 80 by default.
   Note: Must check this item for system access via IE\*.
- Save Log: Save the log information at appointed folder.

Black / White List and Performance - Please refer to Live Streaming Server section

# 5.19.3 3GPP Service

When starting the 3GPP service function of your computer, the system allows remote users to log in and view cameras that are connecting to it with 3GPP supported mobile phone. See Appendix A for more details about 3GPP Service.

Network Service	
Main   Live   Streaming   Image: Streaming   Image: Streaming   State   Image: Streaming   State   Image: Streaming   State   Image: Streaming   Service   Image: Streaming   Central   Management   Image: Streaming   Push   Notification	User Agent Client list Start Stop Default Options

#### Client list:

• Client Count: Show the number of channels that are connected to system.

- Service:
- Server Status: Click Start/Stop to turn on/off this option.

**Options:** Adjust the setting only when the server is stopped.

- Port: Assign a port for the clients to connect to your system via 3GPP Service. Default port is 554.
- Enable User Authentication: User need to insert the username and password to login to the 3GPP server and view the video stream.

## 5.19.4 Remote Desktop

When starting the Remote Desktop, the system allows remote users to use Remote Desktop Tool to login and config the system. See Appendix B to install and use this tool.

Network Service		
Live Streaming Ew Remote Playback Im JGPP Service With Remote Desktop Remote Desktop Im Central Management Im Notification	Main Options Port: 5140 Default Disconnect idle client after (300-3600 sec.): 300 Authentication Enable User Authentication (Use admin password) Service Server Status: Stopped Start Stop Vok X Cancel	Option Authentication Server Status
L		

#### **Options:**

- Port: Assign a port for Desktop tool to login and General Setting system.
- Disconnect idle client after (300~3600 sec): Auto disconnect the on-line user who idled more than set period.

#### Authentication:

Enabling this option would only allow admin account to use Desktop tool to login system.

#### Service:

• Server Status: Click Start/Stop to turn on/off this option.

# 5.19.5 Central Management Service

# \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

This service only supports Central Management System (NCS). Having started the Central Management Service, Mainconsole sends event information to NCS and allows the NCS system to control I/O devices from a remote site.

## Note:

- 1. To enable this action, go Guard >Action and select "Send to Central Server" to enable the action triggered by preference event.
- 2. Please refer to the user manual of Central Management System for detailed information.

Network Service		Ţ
<b>E</b>	Main	
Live Streaming	Client Count 0 Kill Kill All	
Remote	State IP	Client
Playback		
3GPP Service		
Remote Desktop	Service Server Status: Stopped Start Stop	Service
Central	Port. 5170 Default	
Management Push Notification	Maximum Connections: 8	- Options
	✓ OK X Cancel	

## Client list:

- Client Count: Show the amount of NCS Servers that are connected to system.
- Kill: Highlight an IP address and Click the "Kill Client" button to block the client from your client list.
- Kill All: Click this button and then block all the clients logged in to your system.

#### Service:

• Server Status: Click Start/Stop to turn on/off this option.

**Options:** Adjust the setting only when the server is stopped.

- Port: Assign a port for NCS System to connect Mainconsole system. Default port is 5170.
- Number of connections from NCS Servers that are allowed to connect to the system. The default is 8 NCS Servers and maximum is 16.

### 5.19.6 Push Notification

# Intelligent NVR Software

When starting the Push Notification service function of your computer, the system allows users to view and delete mobile device.

Network Service -			200	a final s		×
<u></u>	Main					
Live Streaming	Device Receiv	e Count	0	Kill	Kill A	
Remote Playback	User name	ID		Lease time	Login Usernam	Ne.
Remote Desktop						
Central Management						
Push Notification						
				<ul> <li></li> </ul>	ж	Cancel

#### Device list:

- Device Receive Count: Show the amount of user with mobile device that are connected to system.
- Kill: Click the "Kill" button to delete the user from your device list.
- Kill All: Click this button and then delete all the devices logged in to your system.

#### 5.20 Help

Click Help to connect to FAQ of website.

### 5.21 About Mainconsole

Go to About Mainconsole for detailed system and license information.

	Setting License Manager	<b>b</b>	EVS_PRO 1.0.0.2 2004-2013 SecuritytronixAll rights reserved.	🗸 ок
_	Save/Load Configuration	*	http://www.securitytronix.com	
<b>國 4 回 田</b>	Video Analytics Metadata Application Metadata Search Log Viewer Backup	•	Product Information Model Type: IPS-IP+ Device Pack Version: 2.13.0 Camera IP Camera License Number: 1 Metadata	
	Network Service		POS License Number: 0 LPR License Number: 0	
	Help		Access Control License Number: 0	
	About Main Console		Video Analytics License Number: 0	

#### 5.22 Video Source

Note: Not supported under ST-EVSPRO / ST-EVSPRO+ license

Step 1: Go to Video Source to adjust the Video Standard to NTSC or PAL.

- Step 2: Adjust the maximum Video Resolution for all analog cameras. (MPEG4 only)
- Step 3: For MPEG4, click "Sync all video signal level" after pressing OK to synchronize video signal level to the optimized display (Auto-gain control).

For HD, click "Sync all video signal level" to auto detect video resolution (1080P/720P)



For SCB-7000 series, you will have:

X
PAL
NTSC
PAL
V OK X Cancel

For SCB-8000 series, you will have:





With E-Map, users can easily track the actual location of an occurring event, at the moment it happens.

The arrow and lightning icons on E-Map represent cameras and I/O devices. These icons will turn red once they are triggered by alarms.

To launch the E-Map application, simply Click Start and select Open E-Map from the start menu for the E-Map window.

There are 2 modes available in the E-Map application:

**Edit mode**: Allows users to add/edit maps and indicators of devices. In Edit mode, the function buttons on the bottom of the window will be available. Please complete General Settings before running E-map function for the first time.

Operate mode: All settings will be activated in this mode.

# 6.1 Edit Mode

# Intelligent NVR Software

All E-map modifications must be General Setting in Edit Mode.



# 6.1.1 Add/Edit/Delete Map

## Add E-Map:

- Step 1: Click the switch button to switch to Edit mode. Make sure all devices are connected and setup properly.
- Step 2: Right Click the Map 📓 icon in device and map list to obtain the option menu to add map, or just click "Add Map" button to obtain the "Map General Setting" dialog.

	111010	0 0110101	
Map Config			×
Map Image File:			<u></u>
Map Name:			
	ОК	🗶 Cancel	]

- Step 3: Select the map file and insert the map name. Click OK, and then the map you added appears in the tree structure of device and map list.
- Step 4: The map indicator appears on the left-up corner of parent map. Drag it to the position you want on appointed map.

# Edit E-Map:

- Step 1: Make sure you are in Edit mode and all devices are connected and inserted.
- **Step 2:** Right Click the "Map **S**" icon to obtain the option menu to edit map, or just click the "Edit Map" button to obtain the "Map General Setting" dialog.
- **Step 3:** Modify the required details, and then click OK to save General Setting.

#### Delete E-Map:

- Step 1: Make sure you are in Edit mode and all devices are connected and inserted.
- Step 2: Right Click the "Map of "icon to obtain the option menu to delete map, or just click the Delete button to remove appointed map from list.
  - Note: The root map cannot be deleted.

# 6.1.2 Add/Rotate/Delete Device Indicator

#### Add Indicator:

Step 1: Make sure you are in Edit mode and all devices are connected and inserted.

- Step 2: Click the "Map" icon to go to the desired map layer.
- Step 3: Please make sure the map you want is displayed. Select device from the list and drag a device directly to the desired location on the map.

Note: Different devices are symbolized by different indicators.



🛨 - Camera indicator, ጆ - Digital Input indicator, 🦞 - Digital Output indicator

📭 - Access Control indicator, 🔹 -POS indicator, 👊 - LPR indicator

#### **Rotate Indicator:**

Step 1: Click an existing camera indicator on your map under Edit mode. This camera indicator will be

marked with a green ring 💙.

Step 2: Each Click the Rotate button rotates the indicator 45 degrees clockwise.

Note: Only camera indicators are allowed to be rotated.

#### **Delete Indicator:**

Step 1: Click an existing camera indicator on your map under Edit mode. This camera indicator will be

marked with a green ring

Step 2: Click the Delete button and the indicator will be gone.

# 6.2 Operate Mode

After General Setting under Edit mode, switch to Operate mode to commit settings.



# Operate mode/ Edit mode Switch button

#### 6.2.1 Device and Map Tree list This window will list all devices and map hierarchies; click device or map indicator to show related information on E-Map windows.

🌃 Map – Select the map you want to show on E-Map Window.

🖉 Camera – A preview of the selected camera will show in the preview window. The indicator, if previously created, will be highlighted on the map.

**Digital Input/Output** – Select to highlight the device with a green ring on the map and show status on Information window. If the Digital Input/Output is from an IP camera, the preview window will display live video of the camera.

n 💀 💀 Access Control/POS/LPR – Select to highlight the Access Control / POS / LPR device with a green ring on the map, and display live video of the first associated camera on the preview window.

## 6.2.2 E-Map picture

This window will show the map layer and indicators. **Device Indicator:** 

Select device indicators from the Device and Map Tree list for related information and to preview video. Map indicator:

Selecting a map indicator will bring you to that map layer. To return to an upper layer, right Click the map and select **UP** or click  $\overline{100}$  on the map layer.

## 6.2.3 Information and Preview windows

This window will show the related information of each indicator.

🌃 Map Info – Shows map name.

Camera – Shows camera name and connection status.

Z Provide Anticipation of the second status (0 or 1).

R have a sociated and connection status.

# Triangular 6.3 Layout Adjustment indicator 🐊 E-Map 😹 Map NACEPA Device I OT-Input 0 LOT-Output 0 LOT (Camera) 2 🗖 Add Map Edit Map Delete Rotate 1 Save

## Shrink the window:

Click " ▶ ◀ Triangular indicators" to hide the "Device and Map" or "Preview" and "Information" windows on the right and left sides. Click again to go back to the default layout.

## Full screen display:

For systems with dual monitor, users can view Mainconsole on the primary monitor, and view a full-sized E-Map on the secondary monitor.

- Step 1: Click " ▶ ◀ Triangular indicators" to hide the "Device and Map" or "Preview" and "Information" windows on the right and left sides.
- **Step 2:** Click "**I**" on the upper-right corner of the window for the full screen mode of E-Map.



# 7. Log Viewer

System Log Export and	Backup Log Unusual Event Cour	nting Application Counting	Application (Diagram)
Log Type:	· •		
Date:	2013/12/23 🔻 🜲		Export to
Date Time:	2013/12/23 18:50:03 × 📩 to	2013/12/23 18:50:03	▼ ▲ Search
Event Time	Event Type	Camera	Description
2013/12/23 01:30:07	Stop Central Management Main Console Shutdown		=
2013/12/23 01:30:10 2013/12/23 14:03:03	Main Console Startup		
2013/12/23 14:03:04	User Login		admin
2013/12/23 14:03:05	Start Live Streaming Server		Julia
2013/12/23 14:03:05	Start Remote Playback Server		
2013/12/23 14:03:05	Start Remote Desktop		
2013/12/23 14:03:05	Start Central Management		
2013/12/23 14:03:45	User Login		admin
2013/12/23 14:22:07	Stop Central Management		
2013/12/23 14:22:28	Main Console Shutdown		
2013/12/23 14:38:55	Main Console Startup		
2013/12/23 14:38:58	User Login		admin
2013/12/23 14:38:58	Start Live Streaming Server		
2013/12/23 14:38:58	Start Remote Playback Server		
2013/12/23 14:38:58	Start Remote Desktop		
2013/12/23 14:38:58	Start Central Management		
2013/12/23 14:45:08	Stop Live Streaming Server		
2013/12/23 14:45:08	Stop Remote Playback Server		
2013/12/23 14:45:08	Stop Central Management		
2013/12/23 14:47:30	Start Live Streaming Server		
2013/12/23 14:47:30	Start Remote Plavback Server		

View the history and export reports of unusual events detected by the Smart Guard System.

To launch Log Viewer, simply Click **General Setting** and select **Log Viewer** from the menu.



Step1: Choose the type of event you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all types of events. Select Log Type form the drop-down menu. There are in total 37 types of log types, including:

√

 $\checkmark$ 

~

✓

√

✓

✓

✓

- ✓ Mainconsole Startup
- Mainconsole Shutdown
- ✓ User Login
- ✓ User Login Failed
- ✓ Start Schedule
- ✓ Stop Schedule
- ✓ Execute Recycle
- ✓ Enable Channel
- ✓ Disable Channel
- ✓ Start Smart Guard
- ✓ Stop Smart Guard
- ✓ Modify Smart Guard
- ✓ Modify Schedule
- Modify Configuration
- ✓ Start Live Streaming Server
- ✓ Stop Live Streaming Server
- ✓ Modify Live Streaming Server
- ✓ Start Remote Playback Server
- ✓ Stop Remote Playback Server

- Modify Remote Playback Server
- **IP** Camera Connection Lost
- **Restart Windows**
- √ Modify Metadata Setting
  - Metadata Connection Lost
  - Modify E-Map
- √ Start Remote Desktop
  - Stop Remote Desktop
  - Modify Remote Desktop
- ✓ Start Central Management
  - Stop Central Management
- ✓ Modify Central Management
  - Start Counting Application
  - Stop Counting Application
- √ √ **IP** Camera Connection Regained
- ~ Sync. Microsoft Active Directory User
- √ IP Camera Parameter Changed
  - Update Metadata Plug-in

## \*Note: Detection of some system logs is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

Step 2: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

# Step 3: Click Search.

## 7.2 Export and Backup Log

View the Export and Backup Log history that had been operated by local or remote user.

- Step1: Choose the type of event you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all types of events.
- Step 2: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular data: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

#### Step 3: Click Search

🔎 Log ¥iewer											_ 🗆 🖂
System Log Export and	d Backup Log 🛛	Jnusual Ever	nt Counting A	pplication Counting App	lication (Diagram) 🗍 Metao	iata Log					
Log Type: A	11	•									
Date:	2010/01/25 -	*									Export to
Date <u>T</u> ime:	2010/01/25 18	47 💌 🔺	to 🗌 201	0/01/25 18:47 💌 🔺							Search
Event Time	Event Type	Success	Username	Start Time	End Time	Length	Camera Index	File Path	DB	Audio	
2010/01/25 18:35:05	Export Video	Yes	admin	2009/07/06 17:43:17	2009/07/06 17:43:28	Odays 00:00:11.000	3	C:\Documents and Set		No	
2010/01/25 18:35:46	Backup	Yes	admin	2009/07/06 17:43:17	2009/07/06 17:43:28	Odays 00:00:11.000	2,5	D:\NUUO\sw\Dorcus26		N/A	
2010/01/25 18:36:24	Backup	Yes	admin	2009/07/06 17:43:17	2009/07/06 17:43:28	Odays 00:00:11.000	2,3,4,5	C:\Documents and Set	2	N/A	

# 7.3 Unusual Event



- Step1: Choose the type of events you wish to view or select All from the drop-down menu to view all. The types of Unusual Events include General Motion, Foreign Object, Missing Object, Focus Lost, Camera Occlusion, Signal Lost, Disk Space Exhausted, System Health Unusual, Digital Input Triggered and General Motion (Device).
- \* Note: Detection of some events is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.
- Step 2: Choose the camera channel you wish to view or select All for all channels available.
- Step 3: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by defining a search period.

For a particular date: check and specify date in the **Date** box.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

## Step 4: Click Search.

**Note:** When working with a video record, as default, Log Viewer will search for Unusual Events in the video record in Date & Time mode, starting from the beginning to the end of the record. A link () will appear next to each event time where video is available.

By clicking on the link, an instant playback window will pop up to show recorded video.

**Note:** Instant playback is available under the following Smart Guard events: General Motion, Foreign Object, Missing Object, Focus Lost and Camera Occlusion.

## 7.4 Counting Application

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

Display the history of Counting Application during a given time period.

Step1: Select the channel you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all channels.

Step 2: Select search period. View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

🔎 Log ¥iewer				_ 🗆 🛛
Unusual Event System L	og Counting Application Cou	nting Applicatio	n (Diagram)	
Channel: All				
Date: 🔲 2007/09/	26 * 🔺			Export to
Date&Time: 2007/09/	26 13:31 💌 🚔 to 🔲 2007/09/	26 13:31 💌 🚔		Search
Event Time	Channel	In	Out	
2007/07/25 19:00:00	Camera 3	14	13	
2007/07/25 19:30:00	Camera 3	0	4	
2007/07/25 19:32:42	Camera 3	0	0	
2007/07/27 11:30:00	Camera 3	4	2	
2007/07/27 12:00:00	Camera 3	5	6	
2007/07/27 12:30:00	Camera 3	4	4	
2007/07/27 12:32:15	Camera 3	0	0	
2007/09/26 13:29:49	Camera 1	0	0	
1				

Step 3: Click Search.

#### Step 4: Press the button Export to.

Step 5: Type the file name and choose the file format (.xls or .txt).

#### 7.5 Counting Application (Diagram)

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

Display the Counting Application data in diagram format.

Mode:	Basic Counting	•			
Channel:	[01] 123	•			
Period:	One Day	•		Export to	
Date:	2012/09/05 • 🛟			Search	Ster
104 91 78					
65					
52 39 26					

Step1: Select the channel you want to check or select All from the drop-down menu for all channels.

Step 2: From the drop-down menu, set up how you would like the diagram to be displayed. You have the options of one day, one month, or one year.

- **Step 3**: Select a specific date to make it the start point of the diagram.
- Step 4: Click Search.

Step 5: Press the button Export to.

Step 6: Type the file name and the file will save as BMP files.

#### 7.6 Metadata Log

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license. View the Metadata Log history detected by the Smart Guard System.

- Step1: Choose the type of events you wish to view or select All from the drop-down menu to view all types of events. The types of Unusual Event include Transaction Start, Transaction End, Open Cash Register, Connection Lost, and special User defined event. Please refer to the User manual of Metadata plugins for details.
- Step 2: Choose the camera channel you wish to view or select All for all the channels available.
- Step 3: View the events that happened on a particular date or during a given time period by selecting search
period.

For a particular date: check the **Date** box right and indicate the date.

For a period: check the **Date Time** and then enter the date and time.

- Step 4: Click Search. A link () will appear next to each event time where video is available. By clicking on the link, an instant playback window will pop up to show recorded video
- Step 5: Press the button Export to.

Step 6: Type the file name and choose the file format (.xls or .txt).

🔎 Log ¥iewer		X	
Export and Backup Lo	g   Unusual Event   Counting Application   Counting Application (Diagram)	Metadata Log 🛛 🔺 🕨	
Log Type: Metadata:	Open Cash Drawer  All Transaction Start		
Date:	Transaction End Open Cash Drawer Connection Lost	Export to	
Date Time:	User Defined Event Rule 1 User Defined Event Rule 2	Search	Cham E
Event Time	User Defined Event Rule 3 User Defined Event Rule 4 User Defined Event Rule 5 User Defined Event Rule 7		Step 5

# 7.7 Export

After each log search, export needed info to .xls or .txt files.

🔑 Log Viewer	
System Log Export and Backup Log Unusual Event Counting Application Counting Application (Di	agram) 🛛 Metadata Log
Log Type: All	
Date: 🔽 2011/03/29 🗸 🌲	Export to
Date Time: 2011/03/29 17:13:11 * 🗮 to 2011/03/29 17:13:11 *	Search
Event Time Event Type Camera Description	
2011/03/29 16:02:23         Main Console Startup           2011/03/29 16:02:23         User Login         admin           2011/03/29 16:02:28         Start Live Streaming Server         2011/03/29 16:02:28           2011/03/29 16:02:28         Start Remote Playback S         2011/03/29 16:02:28	
2011/03/29 16:02:28 Start Reinote Desktop 2011/03/29 16:02:28 Start Central Management	

### Step1: Press the button Export to.

Step2: Type the file name and choose the file format (.xls or .txt).

	D1	▼ fx				
	A	В	C	D	Е	2007/09/12 00:45:41, Main Console Startup,
1	EventTime	EventType	Description			2007/09/12 00:45:44, User Loqin, admin
2	2007/09/12 00:45:41	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 01:11:10, Main Console Shutdown,
3	2007/09/12 00:45:44	User Login	admin			2007/09/12 01:27:04, Main Console Startup,
4	2007/09/12 01:11:10	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 01:27:05, User Login, admin
5	2007/09/12 01:27:04	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 01:28:27, Main Console Shutdown,
6	2007/09/12 01:27:05	User Login	admin			
7	2007/09/12 01:28:27	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 15:06:51, Main Console Startup,
8	2007/09/12 15:06:51	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 15:06:52, User Login, admin
9	2007/09/12 15:06:52	User Login	admin			2007/09/12 15:07:04, Main Console Shutdown,
10	2007/09/12 15:07:04	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 15:08:28, Main Console Startup,
11	2007/09/12 15:08:28	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 15:08:40, Main Console Shutdown,
12	2007/09/12 15:08:40	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 15:08:54, Main Console Startup,
13	2007/09/12 15:08:54	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 15:09:01, Main Console Shutdown,
14	2007/09/12 15:09:01	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 15:14:11, Main Console Startup,
15	2007/09/12 15:14:11	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 15:14:12, Main Console Shutdown,
16	2007/09/12 15:14:12	Main Console Shutdown				
17	2007/09/12 15:14:31	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 15:14:31, Main Console Startup,
18	2007/09/12 15:15:20	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 15:15:20, Main Console Shutdown,
19	2007/09/12 19:44:15	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 19:44:15, Main Console Startup,
20	2007/09/12 19:44:58	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 19:44:58, Main Console Shutdown,
21	2007/09/12 22:51:57	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 22:51:57, Main Console Startup,
22	2007/09/12 22:51:59	Main Console Shutdown				2007/09/12 22:51:59, Main Console Shutdown,
23	2007/09/12 22:52:14	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 22:52:14, Main Console Startup,
	2007/09/12 22:52:18	User Login	admin			2007/09/12 22:52:14, Main Consule Startup, 2007/09/12 22:52:18, User Login, admin
25	2007/09/12 22:52:24	Main Console Shutdown				
	2007/09/12 22:53:19	Main Console Startup				2007/09/12 22:52:24, Main Console Shutdown,
H.	+ > > SystemLog	····				2007/09/12 22:53:19, Main Console Startup,
		.xls				.txt

# 8. Backup



The backup function saves recorded video and other log information. Backup files may be reloaded on any PC with the Playback System installed. Follow the instructions below for more information on obtaining backup files.

### 8.1 Backup Recorded files

	🛃 Backup System [Localho	st]			
	Backup Help				
	🔬 - 🖶 New Period	📟 Remove Period 📃 B	ackup 🎇 Delete	e	
Step 1	Start Date Time	End Date Time	Camera	Record File	Size
Step 2	2013/12/23下午 05:35	2013/12/23 下午 05:36:00	Camera 6	Record 1	about 5,643KB
Step 2 Step 3	ſ				
Step 3 🔨					

Step 1: Add (Remote) Backup Site: Press the "Remote

Server " button to go to remote backup site management to add and setup the backup site.

- Enter the IP address or DNS, Port, Username, and Password.
- Click **Add** to add the server.
- Click **OK** to exit the Setting panel.
- Step 2: Access (Remote) Backup Site: Click the icon and insert the username/password of the remote server to access the backup Site.
- Step 3: Click New Period to obtain the Select Date/Time Period panel.
- Step 4: Select the data you want to backup by highlighting the time period. Besides the time-table, you may also set up start time and end time in the Date Time Period section



server		
Server Name:		
Address:		
Port	5160	
User Name:		
Password:		
	Save Password	
	Test Server	
Add	Delete Update	

Step 5: Click the camera number icon to add camera(s) or click I cond/delete all the channels.

**Step 6:** Check the box of Enable Preview to get the preview of the video you select.

Step 7: Click OK when the settings are complete and go back to the Backup System panel.

Step 8: If there is any data period not wanted, click Remove Period to remove the data period on the backup list.

	Step 8	Step 9			
·					
🛃 Backup System [Localh	lost]				X
Backup Help					
🏠 🗸 🖶 New Period	📟 Remove Period 📃 B	Backup 🎇 Delet	e		
Start Date Time	End Date Time	Camera	Record File	Size	
2013/12/23下午 05:35	2013/12/23 下午 05:36:00	Camera 6	Record 1	about 5,643KB	

Step 9: Click the Backup icon to obtain Backup panel.



- Step 10: Summary: Check the summary section to see the size of the file(s).
- Step 11: Media: Choose the path you want to save the file or burn the file into a CD (direct CD burning for Windows XP only), DVD or on Hard Disk.
- Step 12: Option: Select the log information you would like to backup (Event Log, System Log, Counter Log and Metadata Transaction), and then click OK.

### 8.2 Delete Recorded files

**Step 1**: Click "New Period" to obtain the Select Date Time Period panel.



Step 2: Follow steps 3-7 above from the backup section to select data period which you want to delete.
Step 3: Click the Delete icon and delete all the data in the backup list from the database.
Note: Deleted video cannot be recovered.



# 9. Remote Live Viewer

With the Remote Live Viewer console, remote users may watch up to 128 channels real-time video from remote live streaming servers.

\* Note: Maximum 32 channels under ST-EVSPRO license.

### 9.1 Setting

Click General Setting to obtain setting dialog.

0	General Setting

## 9.1.1 General Setting

😰 LiveView Setting	<b>X</b>
General Server Group Camera OSD Metadata Monitor Display Notificat Audio preview T Enable audio on active channel	ion   Joystick
Miscellaneous	
Run Remote Live Viewer On Monitor	
Startup	
	V OK X Cancel

### Audio preview:

• Enable audio on active channel: Select to enable audio streaming on active channel.

### Miscellaneous:

• Synchronize video frames: Select to avoid image tearing problems that may occur while CPU loading is increased.

## Run Remote Live Viewer on Monitor:

• Select monitor to display Remote Live Viewer.

Startup:

Full screen: Users can view the window as the full screen mode.

### 9.1.2 Server setting

EnveView Setting     General Server Group Camera OSD Metadata Monitor Display Notification	
Server Setting  Server Name:  Address:  Port 5150  User Name:  Password:  Save Password:  Auto Login:  Test Server	Server List
Add Delete Update	

## Intelligent NVR Software

**Step 1:** Enter the Server Name.

Step 2: Enter the Address, Port, User Name, and Password to log in the server.

Step 3: Enable "Save Password" to login without entering the password again.

Step 4: Enable "Auto Login" to login automatically when starting Remote Live Viewer.

**Step 5:** Click Test Server to check if the server is available.

Step 6: Click Add to insert the setting to server list.

Note:

To change the setting, select a server on server list and click "Update" after modify setting. To remove the server, select a server on server list and then click "Delete".

### 9.1.3 Group Setting

Allocate different cameras into each appointed group.

\* Note: Cameras under ST-EVSPRO license cannot be included in a group with other servers.



**Step 1:** Log in to all the servers that contain the camera(s) you would like to put into the group(s). **Step 2:** Click Insert to create a new group; name the group for future reference.

- Step 2. Click insen to create a new group, name the group to future reference
- Step 3: From the window at the right, highlight the camera(s) that you would like to add to a group and then Click the " <-- " button. Repeat the process until satisfied with the group setting.
- **Step 4:** Click the Delete and Rename button to remove or rename a specific group.
- **Step 5**: Repeat Steps 2 to 4 to adjust the group setting until satisfied.

Step 6: Click OK.

### 9.1.4 Camera Setting

Select the preferred stream type of each camera as default live view profile. \* Note: Some stream profiles are not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

# Eye View Smart

		Intellig	gent NV	R Software
E LiveView Setting			Ĵ	
General Server Group Camera	OSD Metadata Monito	r Display   Notification () Original () H264 - - - Copy to		
		OK Cancel		

**Stream profile**: Select a layout type and choose which stream profile you would like to apply on this layout. For some layout with large and small grid, you are able to assign different stream profile.

Record 1: The system will follow the stream profile set in Mainconsole >Schedule > Encoding Options. Record 2: The system will follow the stream profile set in Mainconsole >Schedule > Encoding Options. Main / High / Normal / Low/ Minimum / H.264: The system will follow the stream profile set in Mainconsole - Setting - Camera - Stream Profile.

Apply to All Layout: Apply the stream profile setting of current layout to the other layouts.

Copy to: Select in order to copy the preferred stream profile of a channel to all of the listed channels.

## 9.1.5 OSD Setting

Adjust font style of Camera OSD on this panel.

LiveView Setting	Orange Operation	Hatadata   Hasilas Diselau	Netification Levelist	
Enable camera C		Metadata Monitor Display	Notification   Joystick	1
Foreground Font:	Tr Tahoma	T		
Size: Color:	9 🔽			
Bold Background	₩ Edge			
Color: Transparency:	<b></b>	40		
□Info ↓ Camera Nam	e			
Date	2013/12/24 <u>マ</u> 上午12:17:38 <del>マ</del>			
E Bitrate				
		Default	Apply	
			🗸 ок	X Cancel

### 9.1.6 Metadata Setting

Adjust font style of Metadata overlay on panel.

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

F LiveView Setting					<b>x</b>
General Server	Group Camera OSD	Metadata Monito	or Display   Notificatio	n Joystick	
Foreground	overlay				
Font:	™ Tahoma	•			
Size:	10 👻				
Color:	<b>-</b>				
✓ Bold	Edge				
Background					
Color:					
Transparency:		40			
		Default	Apply		
				🗸 ок	× Canaal
					X Cancel

### 9.1.7 Monitor Display Setting

Activate auto scan to rotate the channels/ cameras on screen.

### Note:

- For instance, you may select to show only 4 sub-screens on the live viewer while having 16 channels connected to the system. With auto scan function, you will be able to see all 16 channels by turns.
- Each monitor supports up to an 8x8 layout with auto scan function to show 128 channels.

	🗄 Live¥iew Setting
Step 1	General Server Group Camera OSD Metadata Monitor Display Notification ()         Monitor Resolution         #1       1280 x 800         Auto scan       Auto scan         Auto scan group:       All Camera         Primary channel:       QA Room         Secondary channel:       Desktop         Auto scan interval:       2         Layout       Sx5
	✓ OK X Cancel

- **Step 1:** Select the Monitor connected to the system.
- Step 2: Auto scan group: Select appointed server group to activate auto scan settings.
- Step 3: Primary channel: Select appointed channel that will always be on the screen when auto scan is activated.
- Step 4: Secondary channel: Select appointed channel with secondary priority behind primary channel when auto scan is activated.
- Step 5: Layout: Select the screen division of "NxN type" in Remote live viewer panel.

### 9.1.8 Notification Setting

Pa LiveView Setting
General Server Group Camera OSD Metadata Monitor Display Notification Joystick
┌ Status display
Show recording status
✓ Show event message on screen
Switch live view layout to 1x1
Show counting result
Play Sound alert
Enable playing sound on event
Sound File
O Default
C User defined wave file
Life Cycle
Automatic cancel sound alert when event disappear
C Stop sound alert after 10 sec.
- Miscellaneous
Popup system event
V OK X Cancel

### Status display:

- Show recording status: Check to show the crystal ball with recording status on monitor display.
- Show event message on screen: Check to show the smart guard detected event appointed in Mainconsole on each channel.
   Note: To execute this function, please General Setting "on screen display" as an action of Smart (
- *Note:* To execute this function, please General Setting "on screen display" as an action of Smart Guard instant response.
- Switch live view layout to 1x1: Check to switch the display layout to 1x1 when smart guard detected event appointed in Mainconsole on each channel.
- Show counting result: Check to show the counting result appointed in Mainconsole on each channel.
   \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

### Play sound alert:

- Enable playing sound on event: Check to enable sound alerts on events.
- Sound File: Choose a sound file to play. You may use the default file or define another.
- Life Cycle: Choose to allow the sound alert to close when events disappear, or define a timer to close the sound alert automatically after a specific period of time.
   Note: To execute this function, please General Setting "play sound" as an action of Smart Guard instant response.

### Miscellaneous:

• Popup system event: Check to allow system events appointed in Mainconsole to pop up messages as warning.

# 9.1.9 Joystick Setting

Settings are same to Mainconsole joystick settings. For details please refer to page 89. \* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

Live¥iew Se	tting			×
Group Car	nera   OSD   Metadata   Monitor I	Display   N	lotification Joys	stick
Active Joystic	k: USB Gamepad			•
Button	Function		Parameter	
Button 1	Goto Preset Point		1	
Button 2	Goto Preset Point		2	
Button 3	Goto Preset Point		3	
Button 4	Goto Preset Point		4	
Button 5	Goto Previous Camera			
Button 6	Goto Next Camera			
Button 7	Toggle Single Camera View			
Button 8	Toggle Full Screen			
Button 9	Switch Screen Layout			
Button 10	N/A			
1				
	Import	Expo	ort Defa	ault
			🗸 ок	X Cancel

### 9.2 Server/Group/Camera

Display a complete list of the server(s), group(s) and camera(s) that are added to the system. Server View: Cameras are listed according to recording server.

Group View: Cameras are listed according to customized grouping.





9.2.1 login/logout server

Option1: Select a server on the list and Click LOG IN/ LOG OUT to access/ logout the server.

Option2: On the server list, right click to obtain menu options.



### 9.2.2 Connect/Disconnect camera

Option1: On the server/camera list, double Click a camera to connect.

**Option2:** On the server/ camera list, right Click a camera to obtain the menu options to connect/ disconnect.



SECURITY.

Connect Disconnect

Logout Server Connect All

Disconnect Al

Connect/Disconnect Camera

Option3: Select a camera from the list, then drag it to where you want it to be displayed.



Option4: Play / Stop/ Drop: Select a camera/ video and Click this button to play/stop/disconnect a particular channel.



### 9.2.3 Multiple Views:

- Step1: On the server/camera list, select a camera and right Click it to obtain the menu options.
- Step2: Select Duplicate Camera and the duplicate camera with green indicator will display below on camera list.
- **Step3**: Double Click the duplicated camera to connect and display on screen.



## 9.3 PTZ Control

Control the movement of PTZ cameras. With cameras that support PTZ control, you can move, zoom, patrol, adjust the focus, and set preset points of the cameras.

### 9.3.1 Preset/ Go

Adjust the camera view until satisfied. Click the Set icon to define the current view as preset point 01. Adjust the camera view again to setup preset point 02. Repeat the process until you finish setting up all preset points. Customize preset point names by defining names. Click the Go icon and view the result of your setting.

**Note:** For the speed settings of PTZ camera, please General Setting from Mainconsole – General Setting – Setting - PTZ General Setting.

### 9.3.2 Zoom

Click the + and - signs to zoom in and zoom out the view.

### 9.3.3 Focus

You can select to have the camera focused near or far. To focus near means objects that are closer will be clearer than the objects that are further away. On contrast, to focus far means objects that are further will be clearer than the objects that are closer. Click the Focus icon and select auto focus if you want the system to decide the focus point for you.

### 9.3.4 Patrol

To control PTZ camera to patrol around pre-defined path of preset points, Click Go to Preset Point – Start Patrol / Stop Patrol.

Note: To setup patrol path, please setup on Mainconsole – Set Preset Point – Set Patrol.

### 9.4 On Screen Menu

Right Click the camera screen for the On Screen Menu, from which you can quickly adjust the setting of camera.

### 9.4.1 Enable Move / Area Zoom

With cameras that support PT function, click the Enable Move function to adjust the current camera's view by clicking on the display screen. To cancel this function, right Click the screen and select Disable Move. With cameras that support Area Zoom function, click the Enable Move/Area Zoom function to adjust the current camera's view by dragging a rectangle on the display screen. To cancel this function, right Click the screen and select Disable Enable Move Enable Talk Enable Audio Enable Digital PTZ Fix Aspect Ratio Stream Profile Instant Playback Snapshot Toggle Fullscreen

### 9.4.2 Enable Talk

Move/Area Zoom.

\*This feature is not available under ST-EVSPRO License.

With cameras that support two-way audio, select enable talk to utilize the function.

#### 9.4.3 Enable Audio

With cameras that support audio function, click the Enable Audio function to listen to the current camera's audio by clicking on the display screen. To cancel this function, right Click the screen and de-select Enable Audio.

### 9.4.4 Enable Digital PTZ

To enable the PTZ functions of the camera, select the Enable digital PTZ option. Use mouse wheel or Click the + and – signs to zoom in and zoom out on the camera, or drag a rectangle to enlarge the area. The square flashing on the video grid indicate the correspondent view of the camera.

#### 9.4.5 ImmerVision Lens Setting

With cameras that support ImmerVision Lens. Right Click the display screen and select the mode of lens, original, PTZ mode, Quad mode and Perimeter mode. If the lens setting set as Quad, PTZ, or Perimeter mode,

the Enable Digital PTZ option would become Enable ImmerVision digital PTZ.

### 9.4.6 Generic Dewarp Setting

With cameras that supports fisheye feature. Right Click the display screen and select the mode of lens, original, PTZ mode, Quad mode and Perimeter mode. If the lens setting set as Quad, PTZ, or Perimeter mode, the Enable Digital PTZ option would become Enable Fisheye PTZ.

### 9.4.7 Fix Aspect Ratio

For some special camera resolution, user can enable Fix Aspect Ratio to view original ratio video, or disable this option to stretch 3:4 to fit window.

### 9.4.8 Stream Profile

Select different level Stream Profiles to downgrade video quality for bandwidth concerns. \* Note: Some stream profiles are not available under ST-EVSPRO license.



### 9.4.9 Instant Playback

To open the Instant Playback window of the camera, select the Instant Playback option and choose the period. The instant playback window allows the user to browse recorded video, take snapshot images and export video with audio and metadata transaction data.

\* Note: This function is not available under ST-EVSPRO license.

### 9.4.10 Duplicate Camera

Right Click any empty channel. You may duplicate cameras from any available servers here.

### To browse recorded video

By simply clicking on the timeline you can view the video. Use the navigation tools below for advanced control.



- Play / Pause / Stop

- Speed up/Speed down

Fast Forward/reverse frame by frame

Play Previous / Next minute video

### To keep a snapshot of the video clip

Pause the video at desired time point and click snapshot button The snapshot is displayed and can be saved or copied to clipboard.

### To export recorded video

Select desired export period and click export button

Additional options are available when exporting.

Adjust to original video resolution button is the tool to adjust the video to original video resolution.

Audio button with turns the audio on / off.

Metadata button

is to enable / disable metadata transaction data overlay.

# 9.4.11 Snapshot

The snapshot function copies and captures a specific video image to the clipboard or to save as a bmp file. The snapshot can be customized with/without OSD, metadata information and selectable range after digital zoom in.

## 9.4.12 Toggle Full screen

Switch to view video with full screen display. To disable the function, right Click screen and de-select option or simply press "ESC" to go back to original window.

Start Monitor -

# 9.5 Start Monitor

## 9.5.1 Multiple Monitor

Select Open Monitor to append monitor to view more live videos on multiple monitors. Each appended monitor has the same list and view control buttons as the Main monitor, with the exception of the Start, Playback, and Setting buttons.

### 9.5.2 E-Map

Select Open E-Map to obtain the E-Map window. The GUI map helps to locate devices easily and the information window helps to show the status of each device.



Map Info – Show map name.

Camera – Show camera name and connecting status.

Digital Input/Output – Shows Digital Input / Output name and status (0 or 1).

R have a sociated and connection status.

### 9.5.3 I/O Control

Select to obtain the I/O control panel. Use the panel to view DI status and control DO devices remotely.

**Note:** Adjust the setting of I/O device in Mainconsole – General Setting – Setting - I/O Device first, the I/O control panel will display the device status based on these settings.

# 9.6 Playback

Select to obtain the Playback panel and view video remotely.

# 9.6.1 Add Remote Playback Site

Press the Remote Sever<sup>1</sup> icon to go to remote playback site management to add and setup a remote playback connection.

- Step 1: Enter the IP address or DNS, Port, Username, and Password.
- Step 2: Click Add to add the server.
- Step 3: Click OK to exit the Setting panel.

# 9.6.2 Access Remote Playback Site

Go to Date/Time Panel and Click the icon on the top of the display window to access the Remote Playback Site.

🧃 IO Devices	
Servers: localhost	▼ Show name
Input 0 Input 0	
DO	
o o	
Output 0 Output 0	

🐖 Remote Playback Site Man	agement	X
Server Setting		
Server Name:		
Address:		
Port:	5160	
User Name:		
Password:		
Save Password:		
	Test Server	
Add Delete	Update	
		✓ OK 🗶 Cancel



# Note: Make sure the Live Stream Server is enabled. Check 5.14 Network Service for more detail.

# 10.1 Server IP

Start Internet Explorer browser and enter the IP address or DDNS name of the server followed by the connecting port.

Example: http://192.168.1.16:8080/

Note: 192.168.1.16 is the IP address of the server.

8080 is the port specified in Use Default Web Server in Network Service.

To connect directly to Remote Live Viewer without additional login, you may input username and password in the URL.

Example: <u>http://192.168.1.16:8080/liveview-html/LiveView.html?user=admin&password=12345</u> (Username: admin, password:12345 in this example)

### **10.2 Remote Live Viewer**

Press this icon to use Remote Live Viewer which functions are the same as Remote Live Viewer. See page 113 for details.

### 10.3 Remote Playback

Press this icon to use Remote Playback which functions are the same as Playback except remote server and backup functions. See page 28 for details.

# 11. Utilities

## 11.1 Verification Tool

The Verification Tool verifies whether the data created by the system has been tampered with. It is the process by which a digital watermark (a digital signature) is added to each recorded video frame to ensure its authenticity.

There are 3 types of data that can be verified by the Verification Tool:

- 1. File in (.DAT) (.264) format will be displayed as
- 2. File in (.AVI) (.ASF) format will be displayed as
- 3. File in (.BMP) (.JPG) format will be displayed as<sup>5</sup>

## 11.1.1Execute Verification Tool

Step 1: Execute Verification Tool from program files.



Step 2: Insert the Administrator Password to log in.Step 3: The Verification Tool appears after login.

### 11.1.2 Verification Tool Overview

Add File	Add I	older	Rem	ove File	Select	All	Vide	o Prev	/iew
🕹 Nuuo Verificatio	on Tool	/				/			_ 🗆 ×
						_ Video	Preview		
File Name	Watermark	Start Time	End Time	Carn Name	Path				
€COOOO1		2009/05/	2009/05/.	TRENDne	C:\Documents and Se				
🔎 0604_sa		2009/06/	2009/06/.	Sanyo VD	C:\Documents and Se				
📬 0604_S		2009/06/	2009/06/.		C:\Documents and Se				
C00002		2009/05/	2009/05/.	D-Link DC	C:\Documents and Se				
I									
•					<u> </u>				
Status :			Ver	rify :					
		0 61		· ·					
Number of	file Verified :	0 files		ime elapsed :	00:00:000		$1 $ $^{\circ}$		
Number of	file Passed :	0 files	;    т	ime left :	00:00:000				
						1			
					Plav	Ver	ifv Pa	use	Stor



Add File: Click to insert the single file to list for verification.

Add Folder: Click to choose the folder with multiple files to list for verification.

Remove File: Click to remove indicated file(s) from list.

Select All: Click to select all files in list for verification.

- Note:
- 1. Choose the file type first before selecting files. Only (.dat) (.264) (.avi) (.asf) (.bmp) (.jpg) are supported.
- 2. User can also drag files directly into the list for verification.

Video Preview: Check this column to preview video of selected file. Click the buttons below the window to play, Pause and Stop the file.

Note: Preview of (.bmp) (.jpg) format is not allowed.

# 11.1.3 Verify Image/Video

- Step 1: Select single or multiple files for verification.
- Step 2: Click "verify "to start verification.
- Step 3: The verification result will show on the watermark column.
  - If a file was tampered with, it will show **8**.
    - If a file passes verification, it will show 🥙.

## Watermark

d 🖬 🔒 🖌					D	Video Preview
File Name 🛛 Watermark	Start Time	End 1	Fime	Carn Name	Path 🔺	
€ COOOO2	2009/05/	2009	/05/	D-Link DC	C:\Documents and	
🕽 0604_S 🔶	2009/06/	2009	/06/	Sanyo VC	C:\Documents and	
🎮 0604_sa 💛	2009/06/	2009	/06/	Sanyo VD	C:\Documents and	
🖗 COOOO1 🗇	2009/05/	2009,	/05/	TRENDne	C:\Documents and	
€COOOO1 💖	2009/05/	2009	/05/	TRENDne	C:\Documents and	
🔊 COOOO1 💓	2009/05/	2009	/05/	TRENDne	C:\Documents and	
🕡 COOOO2	2009/05/	2009,	/05/	D-Link DC	C:\Documents and	
🕡 COOOO2				D-Link DC	C:\Documents and	
1	0000/05/		/05/	DUI DE	j`	
Status :			Verify	:		▶ & [[ ]]
Number of file Verified :	7 files		Time	e elapsed :	00:08:266	
Number of file Passed :	7 files		Tim	e left :	01:49:380	

Step 4: The verification report will indicate the information related to the verification.

### 11.2 License Management Tool

The license of the software should be registered before you start using EVS.

Additional to essential camera licenses, you may also purchase licenses for the metadata application, including those for POS, LPR and access control.

Execute the License Management Tool to activate the license from dongle or serial number included with the software package, or de-activate the license then bring it to another PC to activate it again.

Please note different level licenses cannot coexist under one license server. Upgrade licenses will replace lower level licenses into higher level ones.

Both "Online" and "Offline" status of PC environments are available on executing the tool to "activate" or "transfer" the license. The following is a total of 4 types of license management process:

- To activate the license with PC connected to network, follow the Activation Online process.
- To **activate** the license with PC not connected to network, follow the Activation Offline process.
- To **de-activate/transfer** the license with PC connected to network, follow the Transfer Online process.
- To de-activate/transfer the license with PC not connected to network, follow the Transfer Offline process.

### 11.2.1 Execute License Management Tool

**Step 1:** Execute License Manager Tool in General Setting menu, installation folders or execute Activate Tool from program files.



Step 2: The "License Management Tool" will appear. Please refer below for the tool overview.



# 11.2.2 License Management Tool Overview

## 11.2.3 Activate License

## Activation Online

- Step 1: Open License Manager Tool.
- Step 2: Select On line as Activate type.

Step 3: Input the SN (Serial number) or Import SN file, and then Click Activate button.



Step 4: Restart Mainconsole if activation is successful.

# Activation Offline

- Step 1: Open License Manager Tool.
- Step 2: Select Offline as Activate type.
- Step 3: Click Export offline pack. Please note this license will bind with hardware General Settings and it is not recommended to register with removable network devices.

A Manual key in CM on Offling To.	
Manual key-in SN on Offline To	01
C Activate from dongle	
	Export offline pack
Step 2 : Use "Offline Tool" to activate li file.	icense and get offline license
Step 3 : Import offline license file:	
	Import

Step 4: Save Request file, and then take it to another PC that is connected to the Internet.

🗅 Request File	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites	Tools Help 🥂
Address 🗁 C:\Documents and Se	ettings\April\Desktop\Request File 🛛 🖌 Go
libexpat.dll	LicenseTool.dll 1.0.0.1 LicenseTool Dynamic Link Library
offline.req REQ File 1 KB	OffLineTool.exe OffLineActivation MFC Applica

Step 5: Execute OffLineTool.exe in the other PC. Input the SN (Serial number) or Import SN file, and then Click Activate button.

nformation:	
Activate new SN.	4
Please input SN:	
	8
Input type	
SN:	
SN file:	
	Activate

Step 6: Save License file, and then take it to original NVR system.

Step 7: Open License Manager Tool again, select Import offline license, then click Import button to activate.

File path:	C:\Documents and Set

Step 8: Restart Mainconsole if activation is successful.

### 11.2.4 Transfer License

## Transfer Online

Step 1: Open License Manager Tool.

Step 2: Select Transfer Tab, and then check Online as Transfer type.

Step 3: Select SN and Click Transfer button.



Step 4: Restart Mainconsole if transfer is successful.

## Transfer Offline

Step 1: Open License Manager Tool.

Step 2: Select Transfer Tab, and then check Offline as Transfer type.

Step 3: Select SN, and then click Transfer button to transfer SN.

	Transfer		Ť.	
DIN Norbolist	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	Channer 1	IP+	Activated

Step 4: Save Request file. Restart Mainconsole if transfer is successful..



- Step 5: Copy request file to another PC connected to internet.
- Step 6: Execute OffLineTool.exe in another PC, check Transfer SN and click Transfer to send request file to license server.

🕑 Off Line Tool		×
Information:		
Transfer activate	d SN.	<u>~</u>
Transfer SN:		
SARGEGESCORE	62622	
		<b>~</b>
	Transfer	Exit

Note: User needs to

to license server, otherwise the SN can't be re-activated again!!

Z	Off Line Tool	X
	Information:	
	Complete! Transfer has finished.	^
	Transfer activated SN.	≡
	Transfer SN:	
	5610-00303-095103322	~
	Transfer	

copy request file to another PC and send it

### 11.3 Resource Management Tool

The Resource Management Tool detects whether the system is operational.



### 11.3.3 System Resource

**System Health:** This item shows the system information, including "CPU Temperature", "Motherboard Temperature", "CPU Fan Speed" and "Power Fan Speed". Note: User needs to install the "SpeedFan" first to gather the CPU and Motherboard temperature information.

CPU Loading: This item shows the percentage of CPU usage.

Memory Usage: This item shows the memory usage of system. "Memory Used" and "Memory Available" are included.

Logical Disk Free: This item shows the percentage of available disk space for storage. Note: The disk directory will be the same as the one in Mainconsole – General Setting – Setting – Storage - Location.

Network Utilization: This item shows the total bit-rate utilization for the upload and download of the computer.

### 11.3.4 Instant Diagram

Click each item in the list to obtain the instant system diagram. The "system resource" will be displayed as

each variable in Vertical Axis; the unit of Horizontal Axis will be displayed as "Per Second".



### 11.3.5 Advanced Resource Report

Click the Advanced button to search and export system logs in "Search" tab and obtain the history diagram of a specified period in "Diagram" tab.

### Search

L	Advanced Resource Report						×	tep 4
	- Туре: СРС	J Loading	▼ >= 50.00	%				1
ep 1	Date: •	2009/06/08 🕶 ≑	_ ,			Export to	S	tep 3
ep 1 ep 2	Date <u>T</u> ime: O	2009/06/08 15:51 💌 🔺	to 2009/06/0	8 15:51 🝸 🔹	I 🗌	Search		
· · · ·	Start Time	End Time	Log Type	Avg.	Min.	Max.		
	2009/06/08 15:54:55	2009/06/08 15:55:10	CPU loading	60.56%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:56:00	2009/06/08 15:56:05	CPU loading	60.51%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:56:15	2009/06/08 15:56:20	CPU loading	60.49%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:56:40	2009/06/08 15:57:10	CPU loading	60.25%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:57:15	2009/06/08 15:57:20	CPU loading	60.19%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:57:35	2009/06/08 15:57:40	CPU loading	60.19%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:57:45	2009/06/08 15:57:50	CPU loading	60.32%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:57:55	2009/06/08 15:58:00	CPU loading	60.27%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:58:35	2009/06/08 15:58:55	CPU loading	60.11%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:59:25	2009/06/08 15:59:35	CPU loading	60.11%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:59:40	2009/06/08 15:59:50	CPU loading	60.04%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 15:59:55	2009/06/08 15:59:55	CPU loading	60.04%	50.00%	100.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:00:00	2009/06/08 16:00:15	CPU loading	51.67%	51.00%	53.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:00:25	2009/06/08 16:00:50	CPU loading	52.75%	50.00%	57.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:00:55	2009/06/08 16:01:00	CPU loading	53.78%	50.00%	62.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:01:05	2009/06/08 16:01:10	CPU loading	54.00%	50.00%	62.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:01:40	2009/06/08 16:01:55	CPU loading	54.54%	50.00%	62.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:02:10	2009/06/08 16:02:15	CPU loading	55.71%	50.00%	71.00%		
	2009/06/08 16:02:35	2009/06/08 16:02:45	CPU loading	56.13%	50.00%	71.00%		Step
	<u>1.1</u>							
							ок 📘	

Step 1: Choose the system event type, and then select the standard percentage to search system log.

Step 2: Select the Date/Time duration to search system log.

**Step 3**: Click Search to start searching, the system logs will be listed below.

- Step 4: Click Export to to save the system log in (\*.xls) or (\*.txt) format.
- **Step 5:** Click OK to close the report window.

4	A	В	C	D	Е	F
1	StartTime	EndTime	LogType	Avg	Max	Min
2	2009/06/08 12:20:23	2009/06/08 12:20:28	CPU loading	54	54	54
3	2009/06/08 12:20:53	2009/06/08 12:20:58	CPU loading	65.5	54	77
4	2009/06/08 12:21:13	2009/06/08 12:21:18	CPU loading	61.67	54	77
5	2009/06/08 12:21:23	2009/06/08 12:21:28	CPU loading	65.5	54	77
6	2009/06/08 12:21:53	2009/06/08 12:21:58	CPU loading	64.2	54	77
7	2009/06/08 12:22:53	2009/06/08 12:22:58	CPU loading	62.33	53	77
8	2009/06/08 12:23:48	2009/06/08 12:23:53	CPU loading	61.86	53	77
9	2009/06/08 12:24:48	2009/06/08 12:24:58	CPU loading	59.44	51	77



- Step 1: Choose the system event type.
- Step 2: Select the Date/Time to draft history diagram.
- Step 3: Setup the start time and duration for charting. User can choose "One Day", "One Hour" or "One Minute" as the duration.
- **Step 4:** Click "**Display**" to start charting, the diagram will be displayed at below column.
- Step 5: Click "Save" to save the diagram in (\*.bmp) format.
- Step 6: Click "OK" to close the report window.



### 11.4 Stream Usage Panel

The stream usage panel shows the current stream status including connection status, record status, local display stream, decoding stream/reason, download bitrate and HDD throughputs. That information is helpful for system optimization and troubleshooting. **Note:** 

Idle status: Means the stream is connected with Mainconsole but Mainconsole do not use for decode or recording, video analysis or recording. It will show a gray ball.

Not support status: Means the channel do not support Multi-stream function. It will show a black ball.

### Stream Usage Panel

Indicators in differ color shows different connection status with stream bit rate (Mbps) and frame rates (fps).

"Decoded" column indicates the decoding stream which requires CPU loading. Changing the decoding stream is helpful to reduce CPU loading.

Decoded

1

 $\checkmark$ 

2 3

 $\checkmark$ 

Decoding reason:

Local diaplay Transcode record

Mouse over to the check icon, system will show you the decode reason. Possible decode reasons are:

- Local display
- Smart guard detection
- Counting analysis
- IVS analysis
- Transcode record
- Transcode for client
- Record on motion
- Video preview



# Intelligent NVR Software

Start Monitor All
Start Recording Schedule
Start Smart Guard System
Start Counting Application
Start Adv Intelligent Video Surveillance
Enable Secondary Display
Open Event Report
Open Event Report Open E-Map
Open E-Map
Open E-Map Open Resource Report

### 11.5 DB Tool

The DB Tool repairs database files and Export General Settings. **Warning**: improper use of this DB Tool may cause loss of recorded video.

Step 1: Execute DB Tool from program files.



Step 2: Enter the password of administrator to log in.

Step 2	DBTools login			
	Please enter password for the administrator of Main Console :			
	User name: admin			
	Password:			
	OK Cancel			

### 11.5.1 Repair Database

This page has three repair method, Modify Location, Verify Only, and Repair.

### For modify location:

Playback system can recognize all recording video in the folders listed on Mainconsole - General Setting - Setting - General page. For some reason, user needs to use Playback system to open recording video beyond storage location setting. For this propose, user could follow below steps to modify location by DB tool.

Note: The default storage location is in the installation directory, (ex: C:\Program Files\\SCB\_IP)

#### Step 1: Select Repair database.

😡 DBTools (IP ver	sion 3, 1, 0, 0)	X
Repair database	<ul> <li>Repair database</li> <li>Modify locations to store video files. Please confirm locations where video files were stored and press button "Modify" to confirm.</li> </ul>	

Step 2: Select the repair Method as Modify Location.

- Repair database
Trepail Galabase
Modify locations to store video files. Please confirm locations where video files were stored and press button "Modify" to confirm.
Install Path: C:\Program F#25792003692#2
Method: Modify Location

Step 3: For add database location, please Click button and use URL to choose location.

For remove database location, please choose location form list and Click Abutton to remove location.

Video File Locations	<b>X</b>
C:\Program Files@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@	
D:\Video	

Step 4: Click Modify button to modify location. After modification, the Modify Result will show on the panel.

Modify Result:	2 locations confirmed.		
		Open Log	Modify

## Example of modify database:

In certain cases where video data needs to be transferred from one PC to another PC, user will need to perform the following:

1. Manually copy all recorded video data from the default installation path or other user-defined storage path of the old PC.



- 2. Manually paste all recorded video data to the default installation path or other user-defined storage path of the new PC
- 3. Follow previous page to add new location on new PC.
- 4. Old recorded video data can be viewed by playback system on the new PC.

### For verify and repair proposes:

This tool is used to check and repair your database and recorded video with problems:

- (1) If there are records in database, but no video file, use this DB Tools to delete records.
- (2) If there are video files but no record in database, use this DB Tools to rearrange the database and find these records.
- Step 1: Switch to Repair database windows.

	B DBTools (IP version 3, 1, 0, 0)			
	Repair database Modify locations to store video files. Please confirm locations where video files were stored and press button "Modify" to confirm.			
Step 2: Se	ect the repair Method as Verify Only.			
	Repair database			
	Verify video files stored by surveillance system. Please confirm locations where video files were stored and press button "Verify" to check all files. Fixing database is only needed when verification is failed.			
	Install Path: C:\Program Files			

Ŧ

Method: Verify Only

Step 3: Check the video location windows.

The system will list all video locations in table, but if there are any omit, please use is to insert. Note: After inserting location, the system will show files count below table.

Step 4: Choose the method of "Verify Only", and click "verify". This method will only check the files without modify. Verify result will show how many files broken or missing. Verify Result 41 files verified, 0 files broken, 0 files missing.



Step 5: Choose the method of "Repair (Complete)", and click "Repair". The Repair Result will show how many files are fixed and inserted. Repair Result: 2 files fixed, 41 files inserted.



Step 6: The repaired new database will replace the old one and the original database will change file names with extended repair date and time as below.



Note: Open Log is a tool to record the repaired database. It will record repair method, file operation, start time and end time.

🔋 dbtool.log - Notepad	
<u>Eile Edit Format View H</u> elp	
Operation "Verify only" is started at (2008/07/14 12:01:17) File Broken: D:\Video/20080708/c00002/c00002s00A20080708112323437.dat File Broken: D:\Video/20080708/c00002/c00002s00A20080708114304625.dat 41 files verified, 2 files broken, 0 files missing. Operation "Verify Only" is finished at (2008/07/14 12:01:19)	· 🔀
Operation "Verify Only" is started at (2008/07/14 12:13:19) File Broken: D:\Video/20080708/C00002/C00002S00A20080708112323437.dat File Broken: D:\Video/20080708/C00002/C00002S00A20080708114304625.dat 41 files verified, 2 files broken, 0 files missing. Operation "Verify Only" is finished at (2008/07/14 12:13:20)	
Operation "Repair (Complete)" is started at (2008/07/14 12:13:58) File Repaired: D:\Video/20080708/c00002/c00002s00A20080708112323437.dat File Repaired: D:\Video/20080708/c00002/c00002s00A20080708114304625.dat 2 files fixed, 41 files inserted. Operation "Repair (Complete)" is finished at (2008/07/14 12:14:07)	
<b>(</b>	> .::

### **11.5.2 Export General Settings**

This tool is used when user wants to export all system General Settings to backup, take to another PC for technical trouble shooting.



🖥 DBTools (IP version 3, 1, 0, 0)		
Repair database	Export Configurations Export Main Console configurations for trouble shooting. Please provide the exported *.cfg file to the technical support .	
Export configuration s	Export	

**Step 2**: Select the location you want to Export and type the name of the General Settings. **Step 3**: Press "Save" to start to import database.

Save As		? 🔀
Savejn: 障	SCB-IP	
idump EMap manual mdb skin www	强 ServerConfig.cfg	Go To Last Folder Visited
File <u>n</u> ame:		Save
Save as <u>t</u> ype:	Config Files (*.cfg)	▼ Cancel

# 12. Failover Agent

Failover Agent	
General Server   Startup ✓ Auto Start Up ✓ Auto Login Password Old Password New Password Password Confirm Log File ✓ Save Log H:LOG	Storage         Location         D:\         D:\         K:\         Enable Disk Load Balance         Recycle setup:         Always keep       10       % disk space.         Only Keep       7       days
	V OK X Cancel

# NOTE: THIS SERVICE NOT AVAILABLE WITH EVS-PRO/ EVS-PRO+

Failover Agent is a software to enable a spare recording server (the failover server) to take over the recording work once the regular recording server becomes unavailable. Hence the failover server and the Failover Agent should always be installed on another computer.

### 12.1. Services

Failover Agent runs two services:

Service	Description
failover service	This service always runs and constantly checks the state of the relevant recording servers. This service enables any necessary takeover
recording service	This service enables the failover server to act as a recording server while the regular recording server is unavailable. This service starts when required, i.e. when the failover server takes over the recording work.

*Note:* Failover Agent will failover video data only. Not for No event, alarm, metadata, I/O box, Advanced Intelligent Video Surveillance.

### 12.2. Activate Failover License

Step 1: Open License Manager Tool in Start>> Failover Agent file.

Step 2: Select Activate Tool, check the PC in Online network environment.

Step 3: Insert the SN, SN file to activate license.

**Step 4:** After software license is activated successfully, please restart Mainconsole. **Note:** Please refer to Utilities>>License Management Tool for advanced settings.



*Note:* One OnGuard (Software watchdog) can only connect with one Failover Agent. User cannot use two Failover Agent to monitor one Mainconsole at the same time.

*Note:* Mainconsole and Failover Agent cannot install on same server.

*Note:* Failover Agent will start service when in 2 hours the regular recording server becomes unavailable 5 times and each time during 15 minutes.

### 12.4. Enable and Disable Failover Service

About

Failover Agent supports users to enable and disable its service after Failover Agent starts. By default, the Failover Agent's service is auto-enabled after the start.

If Failover Agent has been manually disabled, its icon in the notification area appears with a red cross on it 🕍. To re-enable Failover Agent:

- 1. Right-Click Failover Agent's icon 📓 in the notification area. A menu will open.
- 2. Click **Enable** from the menu that opens.

Open Failover Agent	
Enable	
Exit	
About	

To disable Failover Agent:

- 1. Right-Click Failover Agent's icon 📓 in the notification area. A menu will open.
- 2. From the menu that opens, select **Disable**.

Open Failover Agent	
Disable	
Exit	
About	

### 12.5. Open Failover Agent

To open the Failover Agent that runs in the background:

- 1. Right-Click the Failover Agent icon in the notification area. A menu will open.
- 2. <u>Select **Open Failover Agent**</u> from the menu that opens.

Open Failover Agent
Disable
Exit
About

Failover Agent will open by showing its UI onscreen.

Failover Agent	
General Server	
Startup	Storage         Location         D:\         K:\         Enable Disk Load Balance         Recycle setup:         Always keep       10         % disk space.         Only Keep       7         days
	V OK Cancel

# 12.6. Check Failover Agent Status

After the Failover Agent starts, its status can be checked by its icon in the notification area.

<ul> <li>S *</li> <li>S </li> </ul>	
Customize	
× 😼 🔁 🔿	7:57 PM 8/6/2012

Failover Agent's service is disabled. The icon has a red cross on it.

🔳 💁 🗻	
er 🖸 🙆	
*	
Customize	
* 😼 🛍	7:57 PM

Failover Agent's service is enabled.

### 12.7. View Version Information

Knowing the version of your Failover Agent is helpful when you contact for support. To know your Failover Agent version info:

- 1. Right-Click the Failover Agent icon in the notification area. A Menu will open.
- 2. From the menu that opens, select **About**.

Open Failover Agent	
Disable	
Exit	
About	

A small dialog will opens showing the exact version of your Failover Agent.

## 12.8. General Settings

Failover Agent features a **General** tabbed page to set the preference using Failover Agent. To access **General** tabbed page:

Open Failover Agent as described in <u>12.4. Open Failover Agent</u>. Failover Agent will open.

Failover Agent	
Failover Agent         General       Server         Startup       ✓         ✓       Auto Start Up         ✓       Auto Login         Password       ✓         Old Password       ✓         Password Confirm       ✓         Log File       ✓         ✓       Save Log         H:LOG       ✓	Storage Location D:1 K:1 Enable Disk Load Balance Recycle setup: Always keep 10 % disk space. Only Keep 7 days
	V OK X Cancel

Make the settings that meet your need by referencing the following:

## 12.8.1. Startup

Startup group box sets how Failover Agent acts when it starts.

Featured settings are:

Settings	Description	Default
Auto Startup	Sets Failover Agent to auto-start when the failover server re-starts up	Selected
	after accidental shutdown.	(Enabled)
Auto Login	Sets Failover Agent to auto-login to enable failover service when it	Selected
	starts.	(Enabled)

Click **OK** button to apply the change and quit setting; or click **Cancel** button to quit setting without saving the change.

### 12.8.2. Password

Failover Agent features a password authorization to control whether to enable failover service. Users are requested to set up such password when they installed Failover Agent. If such password should need to change later, it should be changed here in this **Password** group box.

...

# Intelligent NVR Software

Featured settings are	•	
Settings	Description	Default
Old Password	Enters the old password.	
New Password	Assigns the new password.	
Password Confirm	Enters the new password again.	

Click **OK** button to apply the change and quit setting; or click **Cancel** button to quit setting without saving the change.

Note: Admin only between Mainconsole and Failover server. Failover operation use ID: Admin only

*Note:* We recommend if users renew user account, please connect OnGuard to Failover Agent and updates user information again.

## 12.8.3. Log File

Failover Agent supports recording its operation history into a log file for necessary data analysis. The log file is created in .txt format with "FailoverAgent" for the filename. To access log file setting:

Setting	Description	Default
Save Log	Enables recording Failover	Selected
	Agent's operation history to a log	(Enabled)
	file.	
Field	Sets where to save the log file.	The storage where Failover Agent is installed to, for example C:\program files\

The log file is created in .txt format. Take a closer observation of such log file:

- 1 Failover Agent launches.
- 2 One or more changes are written to Failover Agent settings.
- 3 Failover service is performed. The failover server takes over the recording server named "192.168.2.114" at IP address 192.168.2.114.
- 4 Failover service stops. The failover server stops taking over the original recording server named "192.168.2.114" at 192.168.2.114 and returns the recording work to it.

### 12.8.4. Storage

**Storage** group box assigns the storage to store the recorded videos and manages storage-related settings. Featured settings are:

Settings	Description	Default	
----------	-------------	---------	
		-	Intelliger
-----------------------------	---	---	--------------------------
Location		Adds new storage.	
	×	Deletes the selected storage.	
		Raises the selected storage to higher priority.	
	*	Brings the selected storage to lower priority.	
Enable Disk Load Balance		Evenly distributes recording to multiple drives, which will increase system efficiency.	Deselected (Disabled)

*Note:* Keep video in failover server, not collect back to recording server.

#### 12.8.5. Automatic Recycle

Automatic Recycle group box encloses the settings to delete the outdated data to save storage space. Featured settings are:

Settings	Element	Description	Default
Recycle when disk space is less than	Radio button	Enables the system to recycle.	Selected (Enabled)
	Field	Sets the lowest remaining disk space for the system to start to recycle.	10%
Only keep video for	Radio button	Enables the system to delete older videos.	Deselected (Disabled)
	Field	Assigns a number of days to keep the recorded videos.	7 (by unit of day)

#### 12.9. Server Settings

To access the server settings:

- 1. Open Failover Agent as described in <u>12.4. Open Failover Agent</u>. Failover Agent will open showing **General** tabbed page.
- 2. Click Server tab. Server tabbed page will open.

Server Setting		S192.168.2.114 (192.168.2.114) - 1
Server Name:	192.168.2.114	
Address:	192.168.2.114	
Port	5220	
User Name:	admin	
Password:	***	
Priority:	1	
	Test Server	
Add	Delete Update	* Priority 1 for the highest priority

Make the settings that meet your need by referencing the following:

*Note:* Support up to 8 Mainconsole servers to 1 Failover server and recommend to use 3 Mainconsole servers to 1 Failover server.

#### 12.9.1. Set up A Server

To set up the regular recording server to take over when necessary:

Server Setting	
Server Name:	192.168.2.115
Address:	192.168.2.115
Port:	5220
User Name:	admin
Password:	****
Priority:	5
	Test Server
Add Delete	Update

- 1. In Server Name, Address and Port fields, enter the name, address and port number of the regular recording server to take over.
- 2. In **User Name** and **Password** fields, enter the user name and password to log in the regular recording server to take over.
- 3. In **Priority** field, enter the number (1-8) of the recording server priority. Priority 1 for the highest priority.
- 4. Press Test Server button to check if the server is available.
- 5. Press Add button to apply the setup. The recording server will be added to the server

*Note:* Share same port (NUSP/NUPP) and support LAN only.

#### 12.9.2. Change Server Setting

To make any change to an existing server setting:

192.168.2.115 (192.168.2.115) - 5
1

- 1. On the server list, select the server to change.
- 2. Make change to the setting as described in **<u>12.8.1. Setup</u>**.
- 3. Press **Update** button to apply the change.
- *Note:* In this status, OnGuard and Failover Agent need to connect again to get Mainconsole server information.

12.9.3. Delete a Recording Server

To remove a server:

- 1. On the server list, select the server to delete.
- 2. Press **Delete** button to remove the selected server.

#### 12.9.4. Server List

1. OnGuard have linked to Failover Agent but not connected yet.



2. OnGuard connects to Failover Agent



3. Failover Agent disconnect with Mainconsole



4. Failover Agent is taking over Mainconsole now



Note: Failover Agent not support Web client, MSAD and DDNS.

#### 12.10 Remote Live viewer and Remote playback

#### 12.10.1 Remote Live Viewer

Display a complete list of the server(s), group(s) and camera(s) that are added to the system. Server View: Cameras are listed according to recording server. And pop up message with Failover is running.



*Note:* Failover agent needs to connect remote live viewer or playback first then Failover agent will automatically connect to live viewer/playback and get failover recording.

Note: For Failover agent recording, user still login original Mainconsole server and will automatically transfer to Failover agent.

#### 12.10.2 Remote Playback

Go to Date/Time Panel and Click the field icon on the top of the display window to access the Remote Playback Site



Video records are displayed as a thin line on the time table. Check **Show Recording Schedule** to show the defined period for scheduled recording. It is shown as a thick line in light blue color for Failover recording mode.

100	e			_		
⊠ s	Show Recording Schedule					
□ s	how Event Log	)				
Star	Time:	2013/12	25	• •	0:00:00	•
2	+-	12/25	0	1	2	3
2	TVS_Shop	ping Ma				
2	🛅 Fish eye				=	
2	🛅 Lobby				=	
2	TVS_Roof	:			=	
2	🛅 Park1				=	
2	🛅 Camera 0	6			-	
2	🛅 Camera 0	7			-	
2	🛅 Camera 0	8			-	
6.		<u> </u>	•			

# 13. OnGuard

ype	IP	Desc	cription		
Service					
Save Log		C:\P	rogram Files (x86)	IP Surveillance Syste	m 🔁
ailover Agent Se	rvice				
Server Status: R	unning		Start	Stop	
	5220				

OnGuard is the software watchdog attached to Mainconsole to watch over Mainconsole's service on a regular recording server. OnGuard starts when Mainconsole launches and stops when Mainconsole quits.

#### 13.1. Using OnGuard

# Intelligent NVR Software

Once the Mainconsole (the regular recording server) stops responding, OnGuard will prompt to restart the recording server by showing a dialog. Click **OK** to confirm to restart or click **Cancel** to quit Mainconsole for later manual restart.



Note the failover server (Failover Agent) won't take over the recording server (Mainconsole) unless the recording server stops responding for 5 times within one hour.

#### 13.2. Open OnGuard



To see OnGuard on screen, minimize Mainconsole by click where button at the lower-left on Mainconsole screen. If OnGuard is minimized and therefore isn't viewable, open it by taking the following action:

1		_		
1	Ũ	C	1	ſ
1	Ĵ	C	1	C

- 1. Right-Click its icon 🔛 in the notification area. A menu will open.
- 2. From the menu that opens, select **Open OnGuard**.

Open OnGuard	
Exit	
About	

ype	IP	Description
Service	g	C:\Program Files (x86)\IP Surveillance System
Failover Agent Service Server Status: Running		Start Stop
Port:	5220	

#### 13.3. Quit OnGuard

1.

Right-Click its icon

If it is necessary to exit OnGuard, take the following action:



in the notification area. A menu will open.

2. From the menu that opens, select Exit.

	Open OnGuard
	Exit
	About
OnG	uard then quits.

#### 13.4. Version Information

Knowing the version of your OnGuard is helpful when you contact for support. To know your OnGuard version info:

- 1. Right-Click the OnGuard icon
- in the notification area. A Menu will open. 2. From the menu that opens, select About.

Open Or	nGuard
Exit	
About	

A small dialog will opens showing the exact version of your Failover Agent.



#### **13.5. Check Connection Status**

To check OnGuard's connection status with the remote Failover Agent:

- 1. Open OnGuard as described in 13.2. Open OnGuard. OnGuard will open onscreen.
- 2. Check the connection status in the Status box.

ype	IP	Description		
Save Lo	g	C:\Program Files	(x86)\IP Surveillance S	ystem 🛛 🗃
Failover Age Server Stat	nt Service us: Running	Start	Stop	
Port:	5220			

The information provided is:

Element	Description
Туре	Type of the service connected to, which is Failover Agent.
IP	Delivers the IP address of the Failover Agent connected to.
Description	Delivers the connection status with the Failover Agent.

#### 13.6. Log File

OnGuard supports recording its operation history into a log file for necessary data analysis.

To General Setting file log setting:

- 1. Open OnGuard as described in 13.2. Open OnGuard. OnGuard will open onscreen.
- 2. Find the **Service** box.
- 3. Select **Save Log** to enable log file and browse for a desire folder to save the log file; or deselect **Save Log** if log file isn't needed.

I Save Log	C:\Program Files (x86)\IP Surveillance System
ailover Agent Service	
Server Status: Running Port: 5220	Start Stop

The log file is created in .txt format with the filename "OnGuard". The log file helps users to know the exact -152 -

time when the recording server stops responding.

Take a closer observation of such log file:

- OnGuard Starts.
- 2 OnGuard's Failover Agent service starts. See 13.7. Failover Agent Service to know how to start it.
- 3 Mainconsole quits.

Note: Mainconsole abnormal quit then will log.

- 4 Mainconsole launches.
- 5 OnGuard becomes connected with the remote Failover Agent. The connection is initiated by the Failover Agent.
- 6 OnGuard is disconnected from the remote Failover Agent.

#### 13.7. Failover Agent Service

The **Failover Agent Service** box delivers the status of OnGuard's Failover Agent service. This box also features a setting to manage the port number of the Failover Agent.

уре	IP	Desc	iption		
Service	g	C:\Pr	ogram Files (x86)	NP Surveillance Syste	em 🛛
Failover Age Server Stat	nt Service us: Running	ſ	Start	Stop	
Port:	5220				

#### Featured settings are:

Element	Description	Default
Server Status label	This label delivers the status of OnGuard's service for the Failover Agent. When the service is running it shows "Running"; otherwise it shows "Stopped".	
Start button	Press this button to start OnGuard's Failover Agent service.	
Stop button	Press this button to stop OnGuard's Failover Agent service.	
Port setting	Sets the port number of the remote failover server (Failover Agent) for communication.	5220 (Note)

*Note:* 5220 is the default port number which the recording server and failover server communicate with each other. The failover server relies on this port to gets the General Setting of the recording server taken over.

#### 13.8. Failover Agent and OnGuard Scenario

# Intelligent NVR Software

Scenario	OnGuard mechanism	Failover Agent mechanism	After manually restart Mainconsole
Generate dump file	Auto recover and Mainconsole automaticIly login	When Mainconsole generate 5 <sup>th</sup> dump file within one hour, Failover Agent will start to take over Mainconsole	Same with the setting before restart
Electricity off line	Restart and with startup setting	Failover Agent starts to take over Mainconsole	Same with startup setting
Network connection lost	-	Failover Agent starts to take over Mainconsole	-
OS with close AP message	Auto recover and Mainconsole automaticIly login	When Mainconsole 5 <sup>th</sup> close within one hour, Failover Agent will start to take over Mainconsole	Same with the setting before restart
Virtual memory exceed limitation	Auto recover and Mainconsole automaticIly login	When Mainconsole 5 <sup>th</sup> virtual memory exceed limitation within one hour, Failover Agent will start to take over Mainconsole	Same with the setting before restart
Process delete	Auto recover and Mainconsole automaticIly login	When Mainconsole 5 <sup>th</sup> process cancel within one hour, Failover Agent will start to take over Mainconsole	Same with the setting before restart
BSOD	Restart and with startup setting	Failover Agent start to take over Mainconsole	Same with startup setting
Process hang over 15 minutes	Auto recover and Mainconsole automaticIly login	When Mainconsole 5 <sup>th</sup> process hang over 15 minutes within two hours, Failover Agent will start to take over Mainconsole	Same with the setting before restart

#### Appendix A – iPhone Browser

Live Streaming service can handle requests from iPhone's Safari browser. This section will guide you how to use this feature with iPhone devices.

#### 1.1 General Setting from server

Step 1: Go to "General Setting" and select "Network

**Network Service** 



**Step 2:** Select "Live Streaming", and then click "Start".

Note: The "Port" selected here will be the same as the web live view and web playback.



#### 1.2 Connect to server

 Step 1: Make sure the I-phone is connected to the internet. Open Safari browser and enter the IP address or DDNS "name" of the server followed by the connecting port.

 Example: <a href="http://192.168.1.16:8080/">http://192.168.1.16:8080/</a>

Note: 192.168.1.16 is the IP address of the server.

8080 is the port specified in "Use Default Web Server" in Network Service.

**Step 2:** Enter user name and password to login MainConsole Server, select camera to view live video.

#### 1.3 Live Display

To view live video, select camera from list, use touch panel to zoom in the video.

To switch video, please click to back to list and select another camera to view the video.

#### 1.4 PTZ Control

With cameras that support PTZ function, the PTZ panel will show as picture. User can control camera to pan, tile and zoom in/zoom out manually, or move to pre-set location by select PTZ preset point from drop down list.

nuuo 192.168.1.92/Camera... C. Ξ -. -[4] n [+++] 4 W 4 + 2

For Securitytronix's latest release of iPhone / iPad / Android application based client "STEVS", please visit <u>http://www.securitytronix.com</u> for more information and product demo videos.

#### Appendix B - Remote Desktop Tool

How to install Remote Desktop Tool

Step 1: Insert the Installation CD.

**Step 2:** Go to Remote Desktop Viewer directly and Run Setup.exe file.

#### How to Start Remote Desktop Tool

Step 1: Start - All Programs - Remote Desktop Viewer - Remote Desktop Viewer.

Step 2: Enter address, Port, Password of server. Enable the option to use 8 bits color level to show steadier screen.

Step 3: Click OK to Start Remote Desktop.

🔩 Remote Desktop Viewer 🛛 🛛 🔀				
Server:		-		
Port:	5140	Default		
Password:				
Use 8 bits color level				
OK				

FOR ADDITIONAL SUPPORT, PLEASE CONTACT 1-800-688-9282, AND PRESS 3 FOR SUPPORT, AND 2 FOR CCTV DEPT.